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To:  Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors 
From:   Shawna M. Papale 
Date:   April 22, 2024 
RE:   OCIDA Meeting Agenda 
 
The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency shall meet at 8:00 AM Friday, April 26, 2024. 

Members of the public may listen to the Agency meeting by calling +1-408-418-9388, Access code: 
2630 518 2902 or attend in person. The Minutes of the Agency meeting will transcribed and posted 
on the OCIDA website. 

1. Executive Session (if needed) 

2. Approve minutes – March 26, 2024 

3. Financial Review 

4. Consider a resolution relating to the Chickadee Properties, L.P. Facility, approving the assignment 
of Agency Lease Documents to American Alloy Steel, Inc. and authorizing the form and execution 
of related documents, subject to counsel approval. The Leaseback Agreement provides that IDA 
consent is not required for the sale of the Facility to American Alloy Steel, Inc., and there is a 
request before the board to authorize the assignment of all Agency Lease Documents to be 
effective the date of the deed transfer. 

5. Consider a resolution relating to the One-Pull Solutions Wire and Cable LLC Facility, approving 
the assignment of Agency Lease Documents to Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc. and authorizing the 
form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel approval. One-Pull Solutions Wire 
and Cable LLC dissolved on December 31, 2023 with its interest acquired by its parent company 
Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc., and there is a request before the board to authorize the 
assignment of all Agency Lease Documents to be effective the date of the dissolution. 

6. Jobs Report 

7. Old Business 

 
Next meeting date: Friday, May 17, 2024 at 8:00 AM at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY  

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/
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Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

March 26, 2024 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY /Webex Video/Teleconference 

Members Present: Steve Zogby, David Grow, James Genovese, Aricca Lewis, Tim Reed. 
Members Present Virtually: Franca Armstrong 
EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Laura Cohen, Tim Fitzgerald, Bill Van Shufflin, Maureen Carney, Christian Mercurio. 
EDGE Staff Present Virtually: Mark Kaucher 
Others Present: Jenna Peppenelli, Levitt & Gordon. 
Others Present Webex: Laura Ruberto and Linda Romano, Bond, Schoeneck & King; Gregg Evans and Erica Pawlewicz, 
Bonadio & Co., LLP; Paul Goldman, Goldman Attorneys PLLC. 

S. Zogby called the meeting to order at 8:02 AM. He congratulated Shawna Papale on being named acting president of
Mohawk Valley EDGE.

Executive Session 
At 8:03 AM T. Reed moved, and A. Lewis seconded a motion to enter executive session to discuss litigation. Motion 
carried 6-0. 

At 8:11 AM D. Grow moved, and A. Lewis seconded, a motion to exit executive session. Motion carried, 6-0. 

Minutes – March 6, 2024 
A. Lewis moved to approve the March 6, 2024 minutes. J. Genovese seconded the motion, which carried 6-0.

All Seasonings Ingredients, Inc.– Inducement Resolution 
Chair Zogby introduced an inducement resolution relating to the All Seasonings Ingredients, Inc. Facility, granting 
preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of exemptions from sales tax (valued at $70,153) and reduction 
of real property taxes for a period of ten years (valued at $484,704), which financial assistance is consistent with the 
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. After a brief explanation 
of the project, given by T. Fitzgerald, T. Reed moved to approve the inducement resolution relating to the All 
Seasonings Ingredients, Inc Facility. J. Genovese seconded the motion, which carried 6-0. 

All Seasonings Ingredients, Inc.– SEQR Resolution 
Chair Zogby introduced a SEQR resolution relating to the All Seasonings Ingredients, Inc. Facility. J. Genovese asked 
whether it was necessary to abstain from this vote, since the Oneida County Planning Department can be considered an 
interested party in a SEQR review. Counsel advised that no abstention is required so long as no financial interest exists; 
additionally, he should only abstain from a SEQR resolution vote if the Oneida County Planning Department intends to 
disapprove a SEQR. D. Grow moved to approve the SEQR resolution relating to the All Seasonings Ingredients, Inc. 
facility. J. Genovese seconded the motion, which carried 6-0. 

EDGE Flex Space Facility – Supplemental Resolution 
Chair Zogby introduced a supplemental resolution relating to the EDGE Flex Space Facility, accepting amended 
Application materials and amending the conditions of financial assistance. B. Van Shufflin explained the differences in 
the project as it is currently proposed compared to its original iteration. This project primarily revolves around the 
warehousing needs of the existing Quad-C facility tenant, Semikron-Danfoss. The proposal originally included test & 
assembly space for the Flex Space tenant, but that type of space is not currently needed and wil be phased in over time. 
The balance of the Flex Space building will be made available to meet the needs of the semiconductor supply chain 
across Upstate NY. T. Reed moved to approve the supplemental resolution relating to the EDGE Flex Space facility. D. 
Grow seconded the motion.  L. Ruberto shared that the members are being asked to review this project annually to 
ensure that the project goals, including job creation and the nature and occupancy of the building, are being met. But 
the nature of this building having multiple tenants makes the job requirement difficult. The Agency is being asked to 
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amend its job creation and recapture agreement to consider these unique factors. Additionally, sales tax exemption will 
be benefitting the tenant Semikron-Danfoss, while the mortgage recording tax exemption will benefit EDGE. Finally, 
each staff will present each proposed tenant of the building to the Agency members for approval. With no further 
discussion, the motion carried 6-0. 

Open Meeting Law and Public Records Laws 
J. Peppenelli informed the Agency members that advocacy groups are pushing to include social media under open
meetings law. Under such proposals, any member sharing, liking, or commenting on another member’s post relating to
Agency-related projects would be considered a meeting. She also advised the members to be mindful of forwarding
emails to other members, as this can also be subject to open meetings law. She next led a discussion regarding the
Agency’s open meeting policy and what constitutes as an extraordinary circumstance in order to meet quorum virtually.
She suggested the members consider amending the open meeting policy to include maternity leave as an extraordinary
circumstance. D. Grow moved to amend the Agency’s open meeting policy to include maternity leave as an
extraordinary circumstance. A. Lewis seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0.

Ratify and Confirm PAAA Submissions 
Chair Zogby introduced a resolution to ratify and confirm the required PAAA documents and to approve their submission 
to New York State. J. Genovese moved, and A. Lewis seconded, a motion to ratify and confirm the required PAAA 
documents and to approve their submission to New York State. The motion carried 6-0. 

OCIDA Mission Statement Ratification & Approval of Performance Measurements for 2023 
Chair Zogby asked for a motion to ratify the Agency’s mission statement, and to approve the Agency’s performance 
measurements for 2023. T. Reed made a motion, and D. Grow seconded, to ratify the Agency’s mission statement, and 
to approve the Agency’s performance measurements for 2023. The motion carried 6-0. S. Zogby then reminded the 
members to complete the confidential board performance evaluation forms and to submit them to S. Papale as soon as 
possible. 

Old Business 
C. Mercurio presented to the members a searchable map of OCIDA projects, which give the user the ability to click on
each project on a map and observe project details such as jobs created and retained. This is a web-based tool that can
be embedded into the Agency’s website.

D. Grow shared that the Rome MVCC campus is working on opening a dental clinic, which will be supported by the City
of Rome and by Oneida County, but the project is currently on hold. He encouraged the members to advocate for this
project among their personal networks to help this project move forward.

Interim Financials 
M. Carney reviewed the Feb. 29, 2024 interim financial statement. She shared that the Agency’s cash has increased due
to maturation of investments. The balance of restricted cash is comprised of PILOT holdings. There have been five
commitment fees collected on projects that have not yet closed. The Agency’s fund balance has decreased by 17% over
the past 12 months. Expenses have been in line with the budget so far. The report was accepted as presented.

2023 Audit 
G. Evans and E. Pawlewicz presented the Agency’s draft 2023 audit. They explained that this year’s audit includes an
unmodified opinion, which is the highest opinion given. This means that they believe the financial statements truly
reflect the Agency’s financial condition. Internal controls were deemed to be satisfactory. There were no journal entries,
which is good. A management letter is included in the audit. They are on track to submit the audit by the filing deadline.
D. Grow moved to approve the 2023 audit as presented. J. Genovese seconded the motion, which carried 6-0.

Adjournment 
With no further business, S. Zogby asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. At 9:18 AM J. Genovese moved, and A. 
Lewis seconded, a motion to adjourn. Motion carried, 6-0. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Tim Fitzgerald 



Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

March 31, 2024 

 

Balance Sheet:  

1. Cash & cash equivalents has increased primarily due to the maturity of investments; 

likewise, investment have decreased; overall this is a net decrease of approximately $75K; 

this is primarily due to the decrease in net assets  

2. The balance in restricted cash is made up of the PILOT holdings related to the Indium 

(Hartford) PILOT & the Sovena PILOT; the Sovena PILOT payments will be disbursed in 

April 

3. The $1,000 commitment fees collected from the following for projects that have not 

closed as of March 31: 

1. Central Utica Building (received November 2021) 

2. Solitude Solar, LLC (received February 2022) 

3. Yoder Properties (received May 2023) 

4. BW Solar-NY CDG Oneida 2 (received September 2023) 

5. Lodging Kit Company (received February 2024) 

6. All Seasonings (received March 2024) 

4. Fund balance decreased by 17% over the last 12 months 

 

Budget Comparison Report (Income Statement): 

 

1. Currently the IDA has 2 CD’s, earnings on those CD’s for January along with regular 

bank interest for January and February totaled $5,838 

2. Project closings and application fees received in as of 3/31/24 are as follows: 

 
Expenses are in line with the budget 

  

Other Significant Items to Note: 

 

1. All of the payments have now been received by Indium for the last year of the Hartford 

PILOT; the Agency has received the debt service bill from the Town of New Hartford and 

will distribute the funds accordingly 

2. Per the PILOT Terms, Wolfspeed is billed quarterly each year; the Q1 bill is due to 

Wolfspeed no later than 2/15 and due 3/31; the Q1 payment was received in late February 

and disbursed to the jurisdictions and EDGE in accordance with the PILOT Allocation 

agreement in early March 

3. Per the PILOT Terms, Sovena was billed for the County portion of the PILOT and funds 

have been received and will be disbursed in accordance with the PILOT in April 

 

 

1/5/2024 Above Grid LLC Admin & Commitment Fee 57,068.00

1/16/2024 Collins Solar Admin & Commitment Fee 38,841.00

2/2/2024 Kris Tech Wire Company Project Extension Fee 500.00

2/16/2024 Lodging Kit Company Application Fee 500.00

3/19/2024 All Seasonings Application Fee 500.00

Total as 3/31/24 97,409.00



Current Year Prior Year

467,067 309,735 1

Investments 368,038 600,000 1

316,280 30,253 2

PILOT Holdings- Payment Received (316,280) (30,253) 2

7,250 23,668 

5,093 1,564 

847,448 934,967 

6,679 6,679 

(6,679) (6,679)

0 0 

847,448 934,967 

10,034 4,664 

1,938 4,475 

6,000 7,000 3

17,972 16,139 

17,972 16,139 

429,476 518,828 4

400,000 400,000 

829,476 918,828 

847,448 934,967 

Accounts Payable 

Total Assets

Liabilities

Restricted Cash - PILOT Holdings

A/D-Furniture/Fixt/Eqpt 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet

Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Fund Balance

Fund Balance-Board Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred Revenue

Current Liabilities

March 31, 2024 and 2023

Fixed Assets

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Expenses

Furniture/Fixture/Eqpt

Current Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Fixed Assets



Current Period

Actual

Current Period

Budget

Year-to-Date

Actual

Year-to-Date

Budget 3/31/2023 3/31/2022

Reimbursements 0 0 216 0 0 0 

Interest Income 1,946 1,450 5,838 1 4,350 601 599 

Lease Payments 0 5,292 58,500 15,875 58,250 49,500 

PILOT Application / Admin Fees 500 22,500 97,409 2 67,500 44,998 42,731 

PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2,446 29,242 161,963 87,725 103,849 92,830 

Business Expense 666 103 1,520 227 140 284 

Contracted Service-Accounting 646 646 1,938 1,937 1,875 1,750 

Contracted Services - Legal 850 850 2,550 2,550 2,550 2,550 

Legal Services & PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Contracted Services- Other 355 250 1,065 750 508 0 

Marketing- Contracted Services 0 792 510 2,375 4,330 45 

Dues & Subscriptions 0 167 1,250 500 0 1,250 

Insurance - General 370 375 1,110 1,125 912 912 

Special ED Projects Contingency 0 2,083 0 6,250 6,249 6,250 

Office Supplies & Expense 0 0 80 80 0 0 

Seminars & Conferences 0 208 125 625 0 0 

Service Fees 23,768 23,768 71,305 71,305 69,102 60,750 

26,655 29,242 81,454 87,725 85,666 73,791 

(24,209) 0 80,510 0 18,183 19,039 

With Comparative Periods Ending 3/31/2023 and 3/31/2022

3Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess or (Deficiency) of 

Revenue Over Expenses

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Budget Comparison Report

Current Period: 3/1/2024 - 3/31/2024

Budget Period: 1/1/2024 - 3/31/2024



Cash Flows From ( Used by) Operating Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (89,352)$        

Adjustments for Noncash Transactions

Depreciation and Amortization 0

(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Accounts Receivable 16,418

Accounts Receivable-PILOTs billed 0

Investments 231,962

Prepaid Expenses (3,529)

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 2,833

Deferred Revenue (1,000)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 157,331

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures 0

Net Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities 0

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities

Repayments of Long Term Debt 0

Proceeds from  Long Term Debt 0

Net Cash Flows (Used by) Financing Activities 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 157,331

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 309,735

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 467,067$        

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ending  March 31, 2024



 

000421\00089\3851126.3 
    

2 9 2 5  R I C H M O N D  A V E., 1 4 T H  F L O O R  
H O U S T O N, T E X A S  7 7 0 9 8  

7 1 3 . 8 5 0 . 7 7 6 6  |  BOYARM I L L ER . COM  

ASHLEE ROSS April 17, 2024 SENDER’S E-MAIL: 
 aross@boyarmiller.com 
 
 
 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency  Via CMRR  - 9589 0710 5270 0219 2029  
153 Brooks Road      and Via First Class Mail 
Rome, New York 13441-4105 
Attn:  Chairman 
 
 

Re: Leaseback Agreement dated July 1, 2009 between Chickadee Properties, L.P., a Texas limited partnership 
(the “Company”) and Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), (as amended, the 
“Leaseback Agreement”). All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them 
in the Leaseback Agreement. 

 
 

Dear Chairman: 
 

We are attorneys for the Company.  By way of this letter, we wish to inform you that the Company conveyed the Land 
to American Alloy Steel, Inc., its tenant at the Facility, on April 1, 2024.  This conveyance is permitted under Section 6.3(a) of 
the Leaseback Agreement. 

 
Additionally, we request assignment of all transaction documents with the Oneida County Industrial Development 

Agency to American Alloy Steel, Inc.   
 
The following address shall be the notice address for the Facility owner, American Alloy Steel, Inc.: 
 

 American Alloy Steel, Inc. 
c/o Reliance Inc. 

 55 S. Lake Avenue, Suite 500 
 Pasadena, California 91101 

 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments.  Thank you. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Ashlee Ross 

 
cc: Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC Via First Class Mail 
 501 Main Street 
 Utica, New York 13501 
 Attn:  Linda E. Romano, Esq. 
 



 

 

 American Alloy Steel, Inc.  Via First Class Mail and Via Email to trish.emmerman@reliance.com 
c/o Reliance Inc. 

 55 S. Lake Avenue, Suite 500 
 Pasadena, California 91101 

 
Mohawk Valley EDGE    Via First Class Mail and Via Email to mkaucher@mvedge.org 
584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, New York 13441 
Attn: Mark Kaucher 
 
Bond Schoeneck & King  Via First Class Mail and Via Email to lruberto@bsk.com 
501 Main Street 
Utica, New York 13501-1245 
Attn:  Laura S. Ruberto 
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Authorizing Resolution
Consent to Assignment of
   Agency Lease Documents 
American Alloy Steel, Inc. Facility

Date: April 26, 2024

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York at 8:00 a.m. on April 26, 
2024, the following members of the Agency were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present:

Others Present:  

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced 
that among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain 
matters pertaining to the sale and assignment of a certain industrial development 
facility more particularly described below (American Alloy Steel, Inc. Facility).

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and 
adopted with the following members voting:
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ASSIGNMENT OF THE 
AGENCY LEASE DOCUMENTS FROM CHICKADEE 
PROPERTIES, L.P. TO AMERICAN ALLOY STEEL, INC. AND TO 
EXECUTE RELATED DOCUMENTS.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York (collectively, the “Act”), Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power among other things, to 
assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by 
the Act; and

WHEREAS, Chickadee Properties, L.P. (the “Company”) previously 
requested that the Agency provide certain financial assistance consisting of 
exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, reduction of real property taxes and 
exemptions from sales taxes (the “Financial Assistance”), for a project located at 650 
Harbor Way, City of Rome, Oneida County (the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company leases the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2009 as amended on November 1, 2012 and 
December 1, 2015 (collectively, the “Lease Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility back to the Company pursuant 
to a Leaseback Agreement dated as of July 1, 2009 as amended on November 1, 
2012 and December 1, 2015  (collectively, the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company further subleases the Facility to American Alloy 
Steel, Inc. (the “Sublessee”) for its operation pursuant to a lease agreement dated 
June 2, 2009, as amended (the “Sublease Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of that certain Second Amended 
and Restated Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement by and between the Agency and 
the Company, dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “PILOT Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the Facility is also the subject of an Environmental 
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement by and among the Agency, the 
Sublessee and the Company, dated as of July 1, 2009 (the “Environmental 
Compliance Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Facility is also the subject of Job Creation and Recapture 
Agreements dated July 1, 2009, November 1, 2012 and December 1, 2015 by and 
among the Agency, the Sublessee and the Company (collectively, the “Job Creation 
Agreements”);
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WHEREAS, the Company provided notice to the Agency that it is 
conveying fee title to the Facility to the Sublessee by deed effective April 1, 2024 
(the “Effective Date”), which conveyance is permitted under the terms of the 
Leaseback Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to assign to Sublessee all of the 
Company’s rights, title, interest, benefits and privileges in, under and to the Lease 
Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT Agreement, the Environmental 
Compliance Agreement, and the Job Creation Agreements (collectively referred to 
as the “Agency Lease Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency authorize the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to the Sublessee, 
effective the Effective Date, such that all Agency Lease Documents shall inure to the 
benefit of the Sublessee and remain in full force and effect as of the Effective Date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act; 
and

(c) The deed of the Facility from the Company to the Sublessee and the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to the Sublessee, 
will promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New York and 
improve their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; 
and

(d) The deed of the Facility from the Company to the Sublessee and the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to the Sublessee is 
reasonably necessary to induce the Sublessee to maintain and expand its business 
operation in the State of New York; and
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(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to authorize 
the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to the 
Sublessee.

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby 
determines to authorize the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the 
Company to the Sublessee as of the Effective Date.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment of the deed of the Facility from the Company to 
the Sublessee and the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the 
Company to the Sublessee, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect 
to such sale, assignment and financing are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the 
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver all 
documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Closing Documents”).  The execution thereof by 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency 
are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the 
Leaseback Agreement).

Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all 
acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, 
and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and 
documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts 
and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent 
acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to 
cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of 
the Closing Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting 
of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the 
resolutions contained therein, held on April 26, 2024 with the original thereof on file 
in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the 
Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original 
insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice 
of said meeting, (ii) said meeting was open for the public to attend in person and 
public notice of the time, place of, and instructions to access, said meeting was duly 
given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of April 26, 
2024.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By: ______________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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Your vote is important. Whether or not you
plan to participate in the Annual Meeting, it is
important that your shares be represented, and
we hope you will vote as soon as possible.

To make it easier, you may vote on the internet
or by telephone. The instructions attached to
this Notice describe how to use these
convenient services. Even if you give your
proxy, you have the right to vote electronically if
you participate in the Annual Meeting.

Proxy Voting

Internet
Visit the website noted on your proxy
card to vote online.

By Telephone
Use the toll-free telephone number on
your proxy card to vote by telephone.

By Mail
Sign, date, and return your proxy card
in the enclosed envelope to vote by
mail.

During the Meeting
To vote during the virtual meeting, visit
www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/
RS2024 and use your 16-digit control
number.

The Annual Meeting will be held “virtually”.
You can attend the Annual Meeting online, vote
your shares electronically, and submit your
questions during the Annual Meeting at
www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024.

   
   
   
   

Time and Place

May 15, 2024
10 a.m. Pacific Daylight Time (PDT)

Electronically via live webcast accessible at
www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024

Record Date

Only stockholders at the close of business on March 28, 2024 are
entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the 2024 annual meeting of
stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) or any adjournments thereof.

Items of Business
Voting
Recommendation

1 To elect the eight directors nominated by
our Board of Directors to hold office until
our next annual meeting and until his or her
successor is elected and qualified.

FOR
EACH NOMINEE

2 To consider a non-binding, advisory vote to
approve the compensation of our named
executive officers.

FOR

3 To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as
our independent registered public
accounting firm for 2024.

FOR

4 To approve an amendment to the Reliance,
Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2015
Incentive Award Plan to extend its duration
by 5 years.

FOR

5 To transact such other business, if any, as
properly comes before the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

These items of business are more fully described in the accompanying
proxy statement.
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By Order of the Board of Directors,

WILLIAM A. SMITH II
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, GENERAL COUNSEL AND CORPORATE
SECRETARY

Scottsdale, Arizona
April 3, 2024

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE
AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS

THIS PROXY STATEMENT, OUR ANNUAL
REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS, OUR
2023 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
AND A PROXY FORM FOR VOTING ARE
AVAILABLE ONLINE AT
WWW.PROXYVOTE.COM BY USING THE
16-DIGIT CONTROL NUMBER PROVIDED
TO YOU.
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DEAR FELLOW
STOCKHOLDERS,
We would like to express our gratitude to the entire Reliance family for our
strong performance and forward progress in 2023 and for placing safety at
the forefront of our operations. Continuing to execute our unique and
sustainable business model with a focus on growth and delivering increasing
value to our customers resulted in the second highest sales, profitability, and
cash flow generation in our Company’s history. Importantly, these results
were achieved in a challenging environment with ongoing inflationary
headwinds and declining metal prices.

We thank our loyal and valued customers for relying on us for quick and
accurate deliveries of high-quality products, and we are grateful for the
longstanding relationships with our suppliers who continue to support us
through all market cycles.

We also appreciate our stockholders and their confidence in our future as our
stock price reached new heights, increasing 38% in 2023, and representing a
17.6% compound annual growth rate since our IPO in 1994.

More Than Metal
On February 15, 2024, we unveiled a corporate rebranding to Reliance, Inc.
to portray the Company’s evolution and reinforce our position as a leading
diversified metal solutions provider. Retaining “Steel & Aluminum” in our
corporate name limited the perception of Reliance because we have evolved
into a company that is so much more than metal. Over the years we have
become stronger, more collaborative, and focused as we further differentiate
and diversify Reliance. We are a best-in-class family of companies working
collaboratively to deliver exceptional service to our customers, return value to
our stockholders, provide a safe environment where our employees are proud
to work, and positively contribute to our communities.

Our company-wide community involvement efforts have united under the
Reliance Cares banner. In 2023, we significantly increased our impact in our
communities through expanded programs driven by our employees
throughout our Family of Companies.

We are pleased that our new identity captures the essence of who we have
always been and always will be. We are more than metal. We are industrial
strength.

Employee Health & Safety
The health, safety, and wellbeing of our employees and communities
throughout all aspects of our business. Employee safety remains
fundamental to our day-to-day operational focus. Our 2023 Total Recordable
Incident Rate (TRIR) of 1.96 was significantly lower than the 2020 Metals
Service Center Institute (“MSCI”) average of 3.5 and we remain committed to
living a culture of safety and reducing the number of injuries to zero. “Be
SMART. Be Safe.” was the theme of our 2023 company-wide SMART Safety
program to promote proactive commitment, engagement, and accountability
throughout the organization.

Strong Operational and Financial Performance
We finished 2023 with $14.8 billion in sales and $22.64 of diluted earnings
per share, both representing the second highest results in Reliance history.
We emphasized “Smart, Profitable Growth” in 2023, increasing our volumes
above
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industry trends while maintaining a strong full year gross profit margin of
30.7%, near the high end of our estimated sustainable range. Our
resilient business model – including strong pricing discipline and
significant capital reinvestment in the business to increase our capacity
and value-added processing capabilities – was instrumental to these
results.

In 2023, Reliance performed value-added processing on 50.6% of sales
orders, up from 50.2% in 2022. We maintained a small average order
size of $3,210 with approximately 40% of orders delivered to customers
within 24 hours. We serve more than 125,000 customers in a broad range
of industries including non-residential construction (including
infrastructure), aerospace, automotive, broader manufacturing,
semiconductor, and more.

Disciplined Capital Allocation Strategy
Our strong profitability and effective management of working capital
enabled us to generate $1.67 billion in annual cash flow from operations,
the second highest we have ever reported. Our strong cash flow
facilitated our execution of a disciplined and balanced capital allocation
strategy through investments in both growth and stockholder returns. In
2023, our operating cash flow funded a record $469 million of capital
expenditures, $238 million of cash dividends, and $480 million of share
repurchases, resulting in a 3.2% reduction in total shares outstanding.

Growth
In addition to increasing our volumes through market share gains,
we deployed capital into various growth projects that further
enhanced our value-added capabilities, maintained, upgraded, and
improved our operating facilities, and funded expansion into new
markets. Greenfield locations contributed meaningfully to our volume
growth in 2023. As a result of these growth activities, our 2023 tons
shipped increased 3.7% compared to the industry increase of 1.5%
as reported by MSCI. We continue to identify many opportunities to
support our customers and suppliers as they grow. Our capital
expenditure budget for 2024 is $425 million with approximately two-
thirds targeting growth initiatives.

In addition to our organic growth efforts, we completed one
acquisition in 2023 and announced two acquisitions in the first
quarter of 2024:

Southern Steel Supply, LLC (“Southern Steel”) – an established
service center located in Memphis, Tennessee, distributing
primarily carbon steel products – was acquired in May 2023.
Southern Steel further expanded our reach in the Southeastern
part of the U.S. Southern Steel’s 2022 sales were
approximately $63 million.

Cooksey Iron & Metal Company (“Cooksey”) – a well-known
regional metals service center based in Tifton, Georgia, with a
focus on carbon long products and plate – was acquired in
February 2024. Cooksey’s strong reputation for premium
customer service and rapid delivery to its customers along with
its presence in the fast-growing Southeastern market both
strengthens and expands our position in the region. Cooksey’s
2023 sales were approximately $90 million.

American Alloy Steel, Inc. (“American Alloy”) – a reputable,
Houston, Texas-based national distributor of specialty carbon
and alloy steel plate and round bar, as well as a plate fabricator
– was acquired in April 2024. American Alloy has strong,
decades-long relationships with both customers and suppliers
and a solid reputation for customer service and product
expertise. American Alloy’s 2023 sales were approximately
$310 million.
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Stockholder Returns
Driven by our ongoing commitment to delivering increased value to our stockholders, we returned $718 million
through dividends and share repurchases in 2023. We have paid regular quarterly cash dividends for 64
consecutive years without reduction or suspension and have increased our dividend 31 times since our 1994 IPO,
including our most recent increase of 10% to $1.10 per share ($4.40 per share on an annualized basis) in the first
quarter of 2024. Our recently announced $1.5 billion share repurchase authorization, coupled with our strong
balance sheet and cash generation, allow us to remain opportunistic. We repurchased approximately 1.9 million
shares of RS common stock at an average cost of $255.30 per share, for a total of $480 million, in 2023.

We are very proud of our strong financial position, which has enabled us to reinvest back into our business to support
growth while concurrently returning approximately 45% of our net income and 58% of our free cash flow to our
stockholders over the past three years.

85 Years of Excellence
2024 is a milestone year for Reliance in which we celebrate our 85th anniversary and our 30th anniversary as a publicly
traded company. We are proud of our history and remain anchored to our core business model and values as we move
forward into the future. Our unwavering commitment to employee safety and wellbeing, profitable growth, working
collaboratively, and improving the communities in which we live and work encompass why Reliance is so much more
than metal.

Longer-term, we remain excited about the many growth prospects anticipated under the Infrastructure Bill, the CHIPS
Act, and the Inflation Reduction Act, as well as the onshoring and near-shoring activities in the markets we serve.

Thank you to all of our employees, customers, suppliers, and stockholders for your continued confidence in and
ongoing support of Reliance.

Sincerely,

Karla R. Lewis
President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Center)

Stephen P. Koch
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer
(Right)

Arthur Ajemyan
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Left)
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Reliance, Inc.
16100 N. 71st St., Suite 400
Scottsdale, Arizona 85254

(480) 564-5700

PROXY SUMMARY
This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this proxy statement of Reliance, Inc. (the “Company” or
“Reliance”) and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. This summary does not
contain all of the information that you should consider, and you should read the entire proxy statement carefully before
voting.

NEW NAME
Effective February 14, 2024, Reliance changed its corporate name from Reliance Steel & Aluminum Co. to Reliance, Inc.
to reflect the Company’s evolution to “more than metal” as a leading global diversified metals solutions provider.
Retaining the Reliance brand identity honors the Company’s strong reputation built over 85 years from its humble roots
to becoming the largest metals service center company in North America with a global footprint of more than 315
locations in 40 U.S. states and 12 foreign countries. Modernization of the Reliance brand symbolizes how the Company
has become much more than just a distributor of steel and aluminum. Reliance, Inc. is the culmination of a decades-long
journey resulting from focused execution of an enduring strategic vision to be a best-in-class industrials company
working collaboratively throughout its family of companies to deliver exceptional service to customers, pursue diversified
growth opportunities, generate industry-leading returns for stockholders, positively contribute to the communities in
which we live and work and provide a safe environment where employees are proud to work.

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
Time and Place

May 15, 2024
10 a.m. Pacific Daylight Time (PDT)

Electronically via live webcast accessible at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024

Record Date

Only stockholders at the close of business on March 28, 2024 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the
Annual Meeting or any adjournments thereof.

PROXY VOTING

Internet
Visit the website noted on your proxy

card to vote online.

By Telephone
Use the toll-free telephone number on
your proxy card to vote by telephone.

By Mail
Sign, date, and return your proxy card

in the enclosed envelope to vote by
mail.

During the Meeting
To vote during the virtual meeting, visit www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024 and use your

16-digit control number.
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VOTING MATTERS

Proposal
Voting

Recommendation Page

1 To elect the eight directors nominated by our Board of Directors to hold office until our
next annual meeting and until his or her successor is elected and qualified.

FOR
EACH NOMINEE 10

2 To consider a non-binding, advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named
executive officers.

FOR
11

3 To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting
firm for 2024.

FOR
12

4 To approve an amendment to the Reliance, Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2015
Incentive Award Plan to extend its duration by 5 years.

FOR 14

5 To transact such other business, if any, as properly comes before the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

VIRTUAL STOCKHOLDER MEETING
The Annual Meeting will be held “virtually”. If you were a stockholder as of the close of business on March 28, 2024 (the
“Record Date”), you can attend the Annual Meeting online, vote your shares electronically, and submit your questions by
visiting www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024. You will need to have your 16-digit control number included on
your Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials (the “Notice of Internet Availability”) or your proxy card (if you
received a printed copy of the proxy materials) to join the Annual Meeting. The meeting webcast will begin promptly at
10 a.m. Pacific Daylight Time (PDT). Online check-in will begin approximately 15 minutes before then and we encourage
you to allow ample time for check-in procedures. If you encounter any difficulties accessing the virtual meeting during the
check-in or meeting time, please call the technical support number that will be posted on the Virtual Shareholder Meeting
login page. An audio recording of the Annual Meeting will be available on the Investors section of our website after the
meeting.

Additional information about our virtual stockholder meeting, including procedures for submitting questions at the Annual
Meeting, is provided under “Participation in the Annual Meeting” on page 72.

The Company anticipates that the Notice of Internet Availability will first be mailed on or about April 3, 2024 to all
stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting and we will post our proxy materials on the website referenced in the
Notice of Internet Availability. As more fully described in the Notice of Internet Availability, all stockholders may choose to
access our proxy materials on the website referred to in the Notice of Internet Availability or may request to receive a
printed set of our proxy materials.

PROXY STATEMENT
Your vote is very important. Reliance’s Board of Directors is requesting that you allow your common stock to be
represented and voted at the Annual Meeting by the Company’s officers (proxies) named on the proxy card. The proxy
statement is first being sent and made available to our stockholders on or about April 3, 2024.

 
2 / 2024 Proxy Statement investor.reliance.com

   



●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE HIGHLIGHTS (see page 63)
Highlights of Corporate Governance

All directors are elected annually by majority of votes
cast.

Independent, non-executive Chair of the Board.

All standing committees of the Board consist solely of
independent directors.

Independent directors meet regularly in executive
sessions.
Policy that directors should not stand for re-election after
reaching age 75.

Over 99% Board and 100% committee meeting
attendance by current Board members in 2023.
Stock ownership and retention requirements applicable
to all directors and officers.

Prohibition of speculative, hedging and pledging
transactions by all directors and executive officers.

Stockholder right to act by written consent.
Special meetings may be called by stockholders holding
shares entitled to cast not less than 10% in voting power
of our outstanding stock.

Market-standard, robust proxy access right.

Board oversight of executive succession planning.

No super-majority voting requirements to approve
mergers or other business combinations.

No standing stockholder rights plan or poison pill.
Code of Conduct that applies to all directors, executive
officers and senior management.

Annual Board and committee self-evaluations.

Key Executive Compensation Practices

What We Do

We align executive compensation with the
interests of our stockholders:

Strong pay-for-performance compensation
structure with approximately 74% of our Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and 71% of our
other named executive officers (“NEOs”)
target total direct compensation tied to
performance metrics. See pages 32 & 37.

Target total direct compensation of our NEOs
designed to approximate the market median
of our executive compensation peer group
when targeted performance levels are
achieved. See page 37.

In 2022 and 2023, 80% of all NEO target
equity awards issued were performance-
based. In 2024, 80% of the CEO, CFO and
COO target equity awards are performance-
based and 70% of the other NEOs’ target
equity awards are performance-based. See
pages 44 and 49.

Stock ownership and retention requirements
applicable to all directors and corporate
officers, including our NEOs. See pages 47 &
69.

Clawback and recoupment policy for cash
and equity incentive compensation. See
page 47.

Our executive compensation program is designed to
reward the Company’s executive officers for strong
operational and financial performance and to avoid
excessive risk-taking:

Double trigger provisions for accelerated vesting of equity
awards upon a change in control. See page 45.

All NEO performance-based equity awards are tied to a
three-year performance target. See pages 44 and 49.

Broad and deep distribution of equity awards throughout
management while managing the dilutive impact and
expense associated with those awards. See page 44.

Limited perquisites. See page 45.

Annual stockholder advisory vote to approve NEO
compensation. See page 11.

Independent compensation committee. See page 40.

Independent compensation consultant. See page 41.

Independent, non-executive Chair of the Board enhances
the effectiveness of the Board’s oversight and
governance and compensation practices. See page 67.

All employee awards are subject to a minimum one-year
vesting period, except with respect to a maximum of 5%
of the remaining shares available for grant under the
Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award
Plan.
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What We Don’t Do

We adhere to executive compensation best practices

No incentive plan design or feature which
would encourage excessive risk-taking.

No unlimited compensation; all variable
compensation plans have caps on plan
formulas.

No employment agreements, severance
agreements, change in control/golden
parachute agreements or other similar
agreements with any executive officer.
See page 45.

No tax gross-ups for perquisites, change
in control excise taxes or otherwise.

No hedging of Reliance securities permitted by
directors, officers and employees subject to our
Insider Trading and Securities Compliance Policy.
See page 48.

No pledging of Reliance securities permitted by
directors, officers and employees subject to our
Insider Trading and Securities Compliance Policy.
See page 48.

No acceleration of unvested awards permitted,
except for death, disability, a qualified retirement or
termination without cause following a change in
control.
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CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP AND SUSTAINABILITY
We recognize that we have a corporate social responsibility not only to our investors, but also to our employees, their
families and the communities in which we live and conduct our business. Accountability to our stockholders, employees,
and communities, and a commitment to ethical business practices, motivates and anchors us. Our responsibility to
stockholders requires a diligent commitment to excellence and a focus on sustainable profitability. This commitment to
excellence also requires that we set the highest standards for business practices, ensure a safe and productive
workplace for our employees, are stewards of the natural environments in which we operate, and share our success by
giving back to our communities.

Please refer to the ESG section of our website at https://www.reliance.com/environmental-social-and-governance/ for
further information on our environmental, social and governance matters and initiatives.

The website address presented above and elsewhere in this proxy statement is not intended to function as hyperlinks,
and the information contained on our website is not part of this proxy statement and is not soliciting material.

BOARD NOMINEES (see page 10)

LISA L. BALDWIN
Managing Director, Elliott Management
Corporation
Independent
Committee(s): Audit, Nominating and
Governance

KAREN W. COLONIAS
Former President and Chief Executive
Officer, Simpson Manufacturing Co., Inc.
Independent
Committee(s): Audit, Compensation
(Chair)

FRANK J. DELLAQUILA
Former Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Emerson
Electric Co.
Independent
Committee(s): Audit (Chair)

MARK V. KAMINSKI*
Former Executive Chairman Graniterock
Independent
Committee(s): Audit
 
 

KARLA R. LEWIS
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Reliance, Inc.
Other Public Company Boards: The
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company
Committee(s): None

ROBERT A. MCEVOY
Retired Managing Director, The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc.
Independent
Committee(s): Compensation,
Nominating and Governance

DAVID W. SEEGER
Former President of Zekelman Industries
(formerly JMC Steel Group)
Independent
Committee(s): Compensation,
Nominating and Governance

DOUGLAS W. STOTLAR
Former President and Chief Executive
Officer, Con-Way, Inc.
Independent
Other Public Company Boards: AECOM
Committee(s): Compensation,
Nominating and Governance (Chair)

Non-executive Chair of the Board of Directors
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VOTING MATTERS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Proposal

1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(see page 10)

The Board and the Nominating and Governance Committee believe that the combination
of the various qualifications, skills and experiences of the director nominees will
contribute to an effective and well-functioning Board and that, individually and as a
whole, the director nominees possess the necessary qualifications and diversity to
provide effective oversight of and quality advice and counsel to the Company’s
management.

FOR
EACH NOMINEE

Proposal

2

ADVISORY VOTE ON THE APPROVAL OF THE COMPENSATION OF OUR
NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
(see page 11)

We manage our business with the long-term objective of creating and maximizing value
for our stockholders. Our pay-for-performance philosophy is aligned with and supports
this objective. We are asking our stockholders to approve, on an advisory, non-binding
basis, the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy
statement.

FOR

Proposal

3
RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM
(see page 12)

The Audit Committee has selected KPMG LLP to serve as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for 2024. KPMG LLP has served in this role since 2008.
We are asking our stockholders to ratify this selection at the Annual Meeting.

FOR

Proposal

4
AMENDMENT TO THE RELIANCE, INC. SECOND AMENDED AND
RESTATED 2015 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN
(see page 14)

We are asking our stockholders to approve an amendment to the Reliance, Inc. Second
Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan to extend its duration by 5 years
(through 2030).

FOR
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VOTING INFORMATION
We are furnishing this proxy statement to the holders of our common stock in connection with the solicitation of proxies
on behalf of our Board of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors selected Arthur Ajemyan, our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and William A. Smith
II, our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary, or their designees, to be named as
proxyholders to vote the shares of common stock represented by the proxies at the Annual Meeting. Reliance will pay
the cost to solicit the proxies. The Board of Directors will solicit proxies by mail, by telephone, and electronically via the
internet. In addition, certain of our officers and agents may solicit proxies by telephone, email and personal interview (the
cost of which will be nominal). We expect that banks, brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries
will forward soliciting material to beneficial owners and obtain authorizations to execute proxies. We will reimburse the
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses they incur to forward our proxy materials.

We have retained D.F. King & Co., Inc. (“D.F. King”) to assist in the distribution and solicitation of proxies. Based on our
agreement with D.F. King, we anticipate paying fees of approximately $11,000, plus-out-of-pocket expenses, for these
services. Your bank, broker or financial institution is not able to vote on your behalf for the election of directors, or
on any compensation or incentive award plan matter unless you provide specific instructions by completing and
returning a proxy or voting instruction form or by following instructions provided to you by your bank, broker or
financial institution to vote your shares which often include instructions on how to vote your shares via telephone
or the internet. Voting your shares is important to ensure that you have a say in the governance of our Company.

We intend only the four matters described in this proxy statement to be presented at the Annual Meeting. However, we
may also transact any other business that properly comes before the meeting or any adjournments thereof.

Unless you instruct us otherwise on the proxy, each proxy will be voted FOR the election of all of the nominees named
herein as directors: FOR the approval of the compensation of the Company’s named executive officers; FOR the
ratification of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2024; and FOR the amendment to the
Reliance, Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan.

We intend to make this proxy statement and accompanying material available to each stockholder on the internet
beginning on or about April 3, 2024. An Annual Report on Form 10-K, and an annual report to stockholders will also be
available electronically. Some stockholders will receive these materials by mail and other stockholders may request
copies of these materials at no cost. The annual report and stockholder letter are not incorporated in, and are not a part
of, this proxy statement and do not constitute proxy-soliciting material.

If you are a stockholder of record and execute a proxy or submit a proxy via the internet or telephone, the proxy may be
revoked at any time before it is voted:

by filing with our Corporate Secretary either an instrument revoking the proxy or a proxy bearing a later date,
duly executed in either case; or

by voting electronically at the virtual meeting.

Any written instrument or later dated proxy should be sent or delivered to the Corporate Secretary at the address shown
on the first page of this proxy statement and must be received prior to the Annual Meeting.

In addition, prior to the deadline for internet or telephone voting, you may change your vote using the internet or
telephone method, in which case only your latest internet or telephone proxy submitted before the deadline will be
counted.

If you hold your shares through a broker, bank, financial institution, or other nominee, then you are a beneficial holder,
and you may change your vote by complying with the procedures contained in the voting instructions provided to you by
your broker, bank, financial institution or other nominee.

Even if you currently plan to participate in the Annual Meeting, the Company recommends that you also submit your
proxy as described above so your vote will be counted if you later decide not to participate at the Annual Meeting. If you
submit your vote by proxy and later decide to vote electronically at the Annual Meeting, the vote you submit at the Annual
Meeting will override your proxy vote.

The presence at the virtual meeting or by proxy of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote at the meeting
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Broker non-votes and abstentions are counted for purposes of
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VOTING INFORMATION

determining whether a quorum is present. A broker non-vote occurs when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial
owner (i.e., in “street name”) does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary
voting power with respect to that item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner. We believe that
nominees only have discretionary voting power with respect to the ballot item addressing the ratification of our
independent registered public accounting firm.
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INFORMATION CONCERNING OUR COMMON
STOCK
Our only voting securities are shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share. As of the record date of March 28,
2024, we had a total of 57,425,841 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, all of which may be voted at the
Annual Meeting. Only holders of shares of record on our books at the close of business on the record date will be
entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Each nominee for election as a director at the Annual Meeting will only be elected if the votes cast “FOR” such nominee
exceed the number of votes cast “AGAINST” such nominee, with abstentions and broker non-votes not counted as either
votes “FOR” or “AGAINST” that nominee’s election. As required by the Company’s Bylaws, in the event that an
incumbent director fails to receive a majority of votes cast in an uncontested election, such incumbent director is required
to submit his or her resignation to the Board of Directors within ten calendar days of the date of the certification of the
election results. Pursuant to the procedures set forth in our Bylaws, the Nominating and Governance Committee will
make a recommendation to the Board of Directors within ten calendar days as to whether to accept or reject the
resignation, or whether other action should be taken. The Board of Directors will then act on the resignation, taking into
account the Nominating and Governance Committee’s recommendation, and the Company will publicly disclose such
decision by the Board of Directors with respect to the director nominee. Each of the Nominating and Governance
Committee, in making its recommendation, and the Board of Directors, in making its decision, may consider any factors
and other information that they consider appropriate and relevant. A director who tenders his or her resignation is not
permitted to participate in the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee or the decision of the
Board of Directors with respect to his or her resignation.

The affirmative vote of a majority of votes present at the virtual meeting or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter is
required to: (i) approve, on a non-binding advisory basis, the compensation of the NEOs; (ii) ratify the engagement of
KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2024; and (iii) approve the amendment to the
Reliance, Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan. Abstentions will count as votes against such
proposals.

Broker non-votes will have no effect on Proposal Numbers 1, 2 or 4. Because the ratification of the appointment of
KPMG LLP (Proposal No. 3) is considered a “routine” proposal, a broker holding shares as the nominee for a beneficial
owner may vote for the proposal without voting instructions and, accordingly, we do not expect there to be any broker
non-votes on Proposal No. 3.
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PROPOSAL NO. 1 – ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” THE ELECTION
OF EACH NOMINEE AS A DIRECTOR.

The Board proposes that eight directors, seven of whom are independent, be elected to hold office until the 2025 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and until their successors have been elected and qualified, subject to their earlier death,
resignation or removal. Mrs. Lewis is not considered independent since Mrs. Lewis is our President and Chief Executive
Officer.

The Board possesses a broad range of qualifications and skills that facilitate strong oversight of the Company’s
management and strategy. The following matrix identifies the primary skills that the Nominating and Governance
Committee and the Board considered in connection with the re-nomination of the current directors.* For additional
information regarding each nominee, see “Board of Directors and Management” beginning on page 22.

Lisa L.
Baldwin

Karen W.
Colonias

Frank J.
Dellaquila

Mark V.
Kaminski

Karla R.
Lewis

Robert A.
McEvoy

David W.
Seeger

Douglas W.
Stotlar

Senior leadership experience ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●

Accounting/financial experience ● ● ● ● ● ● ●

Other public company board
experience

● ● ● ● ●

Operational management ● ● ● ● ●

Capital markets/banking ● ● ● ● ● ●

Mergers and Acquisitions ● ● ● ● ● ● ●

Information
Technology/Cybersecurity

●

Industry Experience ● ● ● ●

The absence of a mark does not necessarily indicate that the director does not possess that qualification or skill.

A majority of the votes cast is required for the election of each director at the 2024 Annual Meeting. Neither Reliance nor
your bank, broker or financial institution is able to vote on your behalf for the election of directors unless you provide
specific instructions by completing and returning a proxy or voting instruction form or you follow instructions provided to
you by your bank, broker or financial institution, which often include instructions on how to vote your shares via
telephone or the internet.

Our Board currently has nine members. James D. Hoffman will retire from the Board effective at the 2024 Annual
Meeting, at which time the size of the Board will be reduced to eight members. We expect each nominee for election as
a director will serve if elected. If any nominee is not able to serve, proxies may be voted by the proxyholders for
substitute nominees, unless the Board chooses to reduce the number of directors serving on the Board.

Certain information with respect to each nominee is set forth in “Board of Directors and Management” beginning on
page 22.

 
10 / 2024 Proxy Statement investor.reliance.com



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROPOSAL NO. 2 – ADVISORY VOTE ON THE
APPROVAL OF THE COMPENSATION OF OUR
NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE APPROVEL OF THE
COMPENSATION OF THE COMPANY’S NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS.

We are asking our stockholders to approve, on an advisory, non-binding basis, the compensation of our NEOs as
disclosed in this proxy statement. It is Reliance’s current policy to provide our stockholders with an opportunity to
approve the compensation of our NEOs each year at the Annual Meeting. Accordingly, we anticipate that the next such
vote will occur at the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

We believe that the information we have provided below in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” section of this
proxy statement demonstrates that our executive compensation program was designed appropriately and is working to
ensure management’s interests are aligned with our stockholders’ interests to support long-term value creation.

Accordingly, we are asking our stockholders to approve, in an advisory, non-binding vote, the following resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the stockholders of Reliance, Inc. approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation
paid to Reliance, Inc.’s named executive officers, as disclosed in the 2024 Proxy Statement pursuant to
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s compensation disclosure rules, including the CD&A, the
Summary Compensation Table and other compensation tables and the accompanying footnotes and
narratives and any related material.”

Because your vote is advisory, it will not be binding upon the Board. However, the Board values our stockholders’
opinions, and the Compensation Committee will take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future
executive compensation decisions. The affirmative vote of a majority of votes present at the virtual meeting or by proxy
and entitled to vote is required to approve this proposal.

Neither Reliance nor your bank, broker or financial institution is able to vote on your behalf to support the Company’s
executive compensation unless you provide specific instructions by completing and returning a proxy or voting instruction
form or you follow instructions provided to you by your bank, broker or financial institution, which often include
instructions on how to vote your shares via telephone or the internet.
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PROPOSAL NO. 3 – RATIFICATION OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” THE
RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF KPMG LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2024.

KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, billed us the fees set forth in the table below for services
provided in the last two years:

2023 2022

Audit Fees $ 3,860,000 $ 3,700,000

Audit-related Fees 58,000 58,000
Tax Fees 54,000 42,000

All Other Fees — —

Total Fees Billed $ 3,972,000 $ 3,800,000

Audit fees relate to services rendered in connection with the audit of our annual financial statements and internal control
over financial reporting, quarterly review of financial statements, audit services provided in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings, including consents and comfort letters, and discussions surrounding the proper application of financial
accounting and/or reporting standards.

Audit-related fees are those fees for services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm that are
reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and not included as audit fees.
Tax fees are fees and expenses for professional services rendered by KPMG LLP in connection with U.S. and foreign tax
compliance and planning, and consultation and advice on tax examinations.

The Audit Committee approved all of these services in advance. The Audit Committee has adopted a pre-approval policy
that requires that the Audit Committee approve in advance the services to be provided, the terms of the engagement
letter, and all associated fees set forth in such letter for the independent registered public accounting firm. In addition,
the Audit Committee will review proposed audit, audit-related, tax and other services that management desires the
independent registered public accounting firm to perform to ensure that such services and the proposed fees related to
the services will not impair the independent registered public accounting firm’s independence and that such services and
fees are consistent with the rules established by the SEC. Each quarter, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
reports to the Audit Committee which services, if any, were performed and the amount of any fees that were incurred.
The Audit Committee has delegated to the Chief Financial Officer the authority to add to, amend or modify the list of
services to be provided or the amount of fees to be paid; provided that the Chief Financial Officer will report any action
taken to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting and provided further that the fees involved are reasonably
expected to be less than $50,000.

The Audit Committee selected KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for 2024.
KPMG LLP has served as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm since 2008. The Board of
Directors ratified this selection.

The Board of Directors believes there are significant benefits to having an independent registered public accounting firm
with extensive history with the Company. These benefits include:

the high quality of their audit work and accounting advice, as a result of their institutional knowledge of our
businesses, global operations, key risks, accounting policies, financial systems and internal control framework;

audit efficiency and effectiveness, resulting in a lower fee structure due to history and familiarity with our
businesses; and
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PROPOSAL NO. 3 – RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

time and expense avoided by management and staff in onboarding a new independent registered public
accounting firm.

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to ratify and approve this selection. If the stockholders do not ratify the
selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain KPMG LLP, but may still retain the firm. Even if the
selection is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may change the appointment at any time during the year if it
determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

A representative of KPMG LLP is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting, will have an opportunity to make a
statement if he or she desires to do so, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions. The affirmative vote of
a majority of shares present at the virtual meeting or by proxy and entitled to vote is required to ratify the selection of
KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2024. Because the ratification of the appointment of
KPMG LLP is considered a “routine” proposal, a bank, broker or financial institution holding shares as the nominee for a
beneficial owner may vote for the proposal without voting instructions and, accordingly, we do not expect there to be any
broker non-votes on this proposal.
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PROPOSAL NO. 4 – AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED 2015
INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE AMENDMENT TO THE
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED 2015 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

We are asking our stockholders to approve an amendment to the Reliance, Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2015
Incentive Award Plan (as proposed to be amended, the “Amended Plan”) to extend its term for an additional five-year
period. On February 13, 2024, upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee, the Board unanimously
approved the Amended Plan, subject to approval by our stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

The Reliance, Inc. Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan (the “Existing Plan”) was originally approved by
our stockholders on May 20, 2015 and was further amended and restated following approval by our stockholders on
May 20, 2020. The Existing Plan is the Company’s only compensation plan under which equity-based awards may be
made to employees.

If approved by stockholders, the amendment will extend the duration of the Existing Plan by five years from February 24,
2025 to February 24, 2030. In addition, the Amended Plan contains other non-substantive and conforming changes.

The Amended Plan will not result in any increase in the number of shares authorized for issuance thereunder.

We believe equity compensation is a critical tool for employee motivation and retention. We are proposing to extend the
duration of the Existing Plan to enable us to continue effectively offering equity compensation to our employees. If the
Amended Plan is not approved, the Existing Plan will expire by its terms on February 24, 2025.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The primary goal of the Amended Plan is to extend the duration of the Existing Plan from February 24, 2025 to
February 24, 2030.

If stockholders do not approve the Amended Plan, we will not be able to issue equity-based awards following
February 24, 2025 and will be solely reliant on cash awards to our employees. An inability to grant equity-based awards
would have significant negative consequences to the Company and our stockholders including the following:

Inhibit Pay for Performance and Alignment with Stockholders. A key element of our compensation philosophy is to
pay a meaningful portion of variable compensation in the form of stock-based awards, which we believe aligns
employee and stockholder interests and drives long-term value creation.

Result in Increased Cash Compensation. In order to attract and retain qualified personnel, we would likely be
compelled to alter our compensation programs to increase the cash-based components, which would not provide
the same benefits as equity awards and would limit cash available for other purposes.

Restrict our Ability to Retain Key Employees. We currently use equity compensation as a primary method for
retaining key qualified personnel, including our executive officers. If we are no longer able to offer stock-based
compensation, we might be subject to attrition risk from key employees.

PROMOTION OF SOUND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Existing Plan includes, and the Amended Plan retains, several features designed to protect stockholder interests
and to reflect our compensation philosophy:

minimum vesting provisions that provide awards must be subject to a minimum one-year vesting period, except
with respect to a maximum of five percent (5%) of the remaining shares granted with respect to any award
under the Amended Plan in the aggregate, and subject to certain other terms and conditions described in more
detail herein;
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PROPOSAL NO. 4 – AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED 2015 INCENTIVE AWARD
PLAN

no discretion of the Compensation Committee to accelerate (in whole or in part) the vesting of any award prior
to its scheduled vesting date, other than in the cases of death and disability or a change in control;

no grants of below-market stock options or stock appreciation rights (“SARs”);

no repricing of any stock option or SAR (whether through a reduction of the applicable exercise price per share
or the cancellation and substitution of such an award with cash or another award);

annual limits on the number of shares and dollar amounts of awards that may be granted to an individual in
any one calendar year;

no dividends or dividends equivalents paid on restricted stock awards or other applicable awards (including
restricted stock units) except and to the extent that such awards (whether service-based or performance-
based) to which such dividend or dividend equivalent relate vest, and, if applicable (including as to restricted
stock units), only as and when the shares underlying such awards are paid;

no dividend equivalents with respect to stock options and SARs;

no “evergreen” provision (i.e., no automatic increase in the number of shares available under the plan).
Stockholder approval is required for any increase in the number of shares;

50% acquisition and completion of the transaction in order to trigger a change in control; and

limits on the manner in which shares may be added back to the share reserve.

SHARES SUBJECT TO THE AMENDED PLAN
The Amended Plan will not increase the number of shares reserved for issuance under the Existing Plan.

Our stockholders initially approved the reservation of the 10,000,000 shares in 2006 in connection with the
approval of the Reliance Steel & Aluminum Co. Amended and Restated Stock Option and Restricted Stock
Plan which was amended and restated in 2015 by the Existing Plan. Our stockholders subsequently approved
the reservation of an additional 1,500,000 shares of our common stock in 2020. Accordingly, total number of
shares reserved for issuance under the Existing Plan is 11,500,000 shares of our common stock.

As of the Record Date, there were 1,333,849 remaining total shares of common stock available for issuance
under the Existing Plan and 627,405 shares of our common stock were subject to outstanding awards under
the Existing Plan (including 378,443 shares underlying outstanding unvested service-based awards and
248,962 shares underlying outstanding unvested performance-based awards). As of March 28, 2024, the
closing price of a share of our common stock was $334.18, and there were 57,425,841 total shares of common
stock outstanding.

With respect to the equity awards granted in February 2024:

performance-based equity awards represented 80% of our CEO, CFO and COO’s equity awards and 70%
of our other NEOs’ equity awards;

Approximately 590 employees received a portion of their annual compensation in the form of equity-based
awards; and

approximately 67% of the total grant date fair value was granted to employees who are not named
executive officers.

NEW PLAN BENEFITS AND HISTORICAL GRANT INFORMATION
No awards have been granted or promised with respect to the Amended Plan. Grants of awards under the Amended
Plan remain subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee in its capacity as plan administrator. Therefore, it
is not possible to determine the benefits that will be received in the future by participants in the Amended Plan. Certain
tables below under the general heading “Executive Compensation,” including Summary Compensation, Grants of
Plan Based Awards, Option Exercises and Stock Vesting, and Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End set forth
information with respect to prior awards granted to our individual named executive officers under the Existing Plan.
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The following table shows, for each of the named executive officers and the various groups indicated, the number of
restricted stock unit awards granted under the Existing Plan as of March 28, 2024:

Name and Principal Position

Performance-Based
Restricted Stock

Unit Awards

Service-Based
Restricted Stock

Unit Awards
Karla R. Lewis

President and Chief Executive Officer 59,306 14,826

Stephen P. Koch
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer 30,207 7,552

Arthur Ajemyan
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 14,809 3,702

Jeffrey W. Durham
Senior Vice President, Operations 13,742 4,058

William A. Smith II
Senior Vice President, General Counsel 13,742 4,058

All executive officers as a group (8 persons) 166,245 45,070
Each associate of any such executive officer — —
Each other person who received or is to receive 5 percent of such

options, warrants or rights — —

All employees, including all current officers who are not named executive
officers, as a group (approximately 15,300 persons) 248,962 378,443

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL TERMS OF THE AMENDED PLAN
The Amended Plan is intended to promote the interests of the Company and its stockholders by providing eligible
employees with incentives and rewards to encourage them to continue in the service of the Company or its affiliates. The
Amended Plan is designed to serve this goal by providing such individuals with a proprietary interest in pursuing the
long-term growth, profitability and financial success of the Company. Our Board believes our capacity to grant equity-
based compensation has been a significant factor in our ability to achieve our growth objectives and enhance
stockholder value.

The following summary of the material terms of the Amended Plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete
text of the Amended Plan, which is attached hereto as Annex A.

Administration

The Amended Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee. To the extent necessary to comply with Rule 16b-3
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and with respect to certain historical awards
that are intended to qualify as “performance based compensation” under Section 162(m) prior to the amendments
resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“Tax Cuts and Jobs Act”), the Compensation Committee will take all
action with respect to such awards and will consist solely of two or more non-employee directors of the Company, each
of whom is an “outside director” within the meaning of Section 162(m) and a “non-employee director” within the meaning
of the rules under Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, to the extent required by applicable law, each member of
the Compensation Committee shall be an “independent director” under the rules of the NYSE (or other principal
securities market on which shares of our common stock are traded). The Compensation Committee may delegate to a
committee of one or more members of our Board or one or more of our officers the authority to grant or amend awards to
participants other than (i) our senior executives who are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act, (ii) “covered
employees” with respect to awards intended to qualify as “performance based compensation” under Section 162(m) prior
to the amendments resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, and (iii) officers of the Company to whom the authority to
grant or amend awards has been delegated, subject to restrictions imposed by the Compensation Committee from time
to time, the Company’s governing documents and applicable law. The Board, Compensation Committee or any delegate
thereof, as applicable, are referred to herein as the “plan administrator”.
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Unless otherwise limited by the Board, the Compensation Committee will have the authority to administer the Amended
Plan with respect to grants of equity awards, including the power to determine eligibility, the types and sizes of awards
and the price and timing of awards, as well as the authority to delegate such administrative responsibilities. If the
Amended Plan is approved by stockholders, the Compensation Committee will not have the power to accelerate or waive
any vesting restriction, other than in the cases of death and disability or a change in control.

Eligibility

Persons eligible to participate in the Amended Plan are, as of March 28, 2024, approximately 15,300 employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, as determined by the Compensation Committee. In 2023, approximately 590 employees
received equity awards under the Existing Plan.

Size of Share Pool; Limitation on Awards and Shares Available

The total number of shares reserved for issuance under the Existing Plan is 11,500,000 shares of our common stock as
of March 28, 2024. The Amended Plan will not result in any increase in the number of shares authorized for
issuance thereunder.

If any shares subject to an award under the Amended Plan are forfeited, expire or are settled for cash, or are converted
into shares of another entity in connection with a recapitalization, merger or similar transaction, any shares subject to
such award may, to the extent of such forfeiture, expiration, cash settlement or conversion, be used again for new grants
under the Amended Plan. However, the following shares may not be used again for grant under the Amended Plan:
(1) shares tendered or withheld to satisfy grant or exercise price or tax withholding obligations associated with an option
or SAR; (2) shares subject to a SAR that are not issued in connection with the stock settlement of the SAR on its
exercise; and (3) shares purchased on the open market with the cash proceeds from the exercise of options.

Awards granted under the Amended Plan in connection with the assumption, replacement, conversion or adjustment of
outstanding equity awards in the context of a corporate acquisition or merger will not reduce the shares authorized for
grant under the Amended Plan.

The maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be subject to one or more awards granted to any one
participant pursuant to the Amended Plan during any calendar year is 500,000 shares and the maximum amount that
may be paid under a cash award pursuant to the Amended Plan to any one participant during any calendar year period is
$15 million.

Minimum Vesting Provisions

If the Amended Plan is approved by our stockholders, except with respect to a maximum of five percent (5%) of the
remaining shares granted with respect to any award under the Amended Plan in the aggregate, any award that vests on
the basis of a participant’s continued service may not be granted with vesting conditions under which vesting is any more
rapid than vesting on the one (1) year anniversary of the grant date, and any award with performance-based vesting
must be granted with a performance period of at least twelve (12) months. (Certain substitute awards that the Company
may assume in corporate transactions would not be subject to this provision.) The Compensation Committee may,
however, provide for the earlier vesting, exercisability, and/or settlement under any award in the event of a grantee’s
death or disability or in connection with a change in control. The minimum vesting provisions would not apply to the
payment of dividend equivalent rights settled in cash or dividend equivalent rights settled in shares that are distributed
once an underlying award to which the dividend equivalent right relates becomes vested.

Awards

The Amended Plan provides for the grant of stock options, including incentive stock options (“ISOs”) and nonqualified
stock options (“NSOs”), SARs, restricted stock, restricted stock units (“RSUs”), dividend equivalents or other stock-based
or cash-based awards. Certain awards under the Amended Plan may constitute or provide for a deferral of
compensation, subject to Section 409A of the Code, which may impose additional requirements on the terms and
conditions of such awards. All awards under the Amended Plan will be set forth in award agreements, which will detail all
terms and conditions of the awards, including any applicable vesting and payment terms and post-termination exercise
limitations. Awards will generally be settled in shares of our common stock.
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Stock options. Stock options provide for the purchase of shares of our common stock in the future at an exercise price
set on the grant date. ISOs, by contrast to NSOs, may provide tax deferral beyond exercise and favorable capital gains
tax treatment to their holders if certain holding period and other requirements of the Code are satisfied. The exercise
price of a stock option may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the underlying share on the date of grant (or
110% in the case of ISOs granted to certain significant stockholders), except with respect to certain substitute options
granted in connection with a corporate transaction. The term of a stock option may not be longer than ten years (or
five years in the case of ISOs granted to certain significant stockholders). Vesting conditions determined by the plan
administrator may apply to stock options and may include continued service, performance and/or other conditions.

Restricted stock units. RSUs are contractual promises to deliver shares of our common stock (or the fair market value of
such shares in cash) in the future, which may also remain forfeitable unless and until specified vesting conditions are
met. RSUs generally may not be sold or transferred until vesting conditions are removed or expire. The shares
underlying RSUs will not be issued until the RSUs have vested, and recipients of RSUs generally will have no voting or
dividend rights prior to the time the RSUs are settled in shares, unless the RSU includes a dividend equivalent right (in
which case the holder may be entitled to dividend equivalent payments under certain circumstances). Delivery of the
shares underlying RSUs may be deferred under the terms of the award or at the election of the participant, if the plan
administrator permits such a deferral. On the settlement date or dates, we will issue to the participant one unrestricted,
fully transferable share of our common stock (or the fair market value of one such share in cash) for each vested and
nonforfeited RSU.

Restricted stock. Restricted stock is an award of nontransferable shares of our common stock that remain forfeitable
unless and until specified vesting conditions are met. Vesting conditions applicable to restricted stock may be based on
continuing service, the attainment of performance goals and/or such other conditions as the plan administrator may
determine. In general, restricted stock may not be sold or otherwise transferred until restrictions are removed or expire.
Holders of restricted stock will have voting rights. In addition, if the Amended Plan is approved by our stockholders,
dividends which are paid prior to vesting shall only be paid out to the participant to the extent that the performance-
based or service based vesting conditions are subsequently satisfied and the share of restricted stock vests.

Stock appreciation rights. SARs entitle their holder, upon exercise, to receive an amount equal to the appreciation of the
shares subject to the award between the grant date and the exercise date. The exercise price of a SAR may not be less
than 100% of the fair market value of the underlying share on the date of grant (except with respect to certain substitute
SARs granted in connection with a corporate transaction) and the term of a SAR may not be longer than ten years.
Vesting conditions determined by the plan administrator may apply to SARs and may include continued service,
performance and/or other conditions. SARs under the Amended Plan will be settled in cash or shares of common stock,
or in a combination of both, as determined by the plan administrator.

Other stock-based or cash-based awards. Other stock based or cash based awards are awards other than those
enumerated in this summary that entitle the holder thereof to receive shares or cash immediately or in the future, subject
to terms and conditions determined by the plan administrator. Other stock-based or cash-based awards may be linked to
any one or more of the performance criteria listed below or other specific performance criteria determined by the plan
administrator. Other stock-based or cash-based awards under the Amended Plan will be settled in cash or shares of
common stock, or in a combination of both, as determined by the plan administrator, and may be provided as part of a
bonus, deferred bonus, deferred compensation or other arrangement and/or as payment in lieu of compensation to which
the holder is otherwise entitled.

Dividend equivalents. Dividend equivalents represent the right to receive the equivalent value of dividends paid on
shares of our common stock and may be granted alone or in tandem with awards other than stock options or SARs.
Dividend equivalents are credited but not paid as of dividend payment dates during the period between the grant date
and the date such award terminates or expires, as determined by the plan administrator. Dividend equivalents with
respect to shares subject to an award, whether subject to service-based and/or performance-based vesting criteria, will
only be paid to the participant at the same time or times and to the same extent that the vesting conditions, if any, are
subsequently satisfied and the shares subject to the award vest. Dividend equivalents will not be granted with respect to
stock options or SARs.

Performance awards

Any award may be granted as a performance award, meaning that the award will be subject to vesting and/or payment
based on the attainment of specified performance goals. For purposes of grants to be made under the Amended Plan,
performance criteria used in setting performance goals may include, but are not limited to: (1) net earnings or losses
(either before or after one or more of the following: (a) interest, (b) taxes, (c) depreciation, (d) amortization and (e) non-
cash
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equity-based compensation expense); (2) gross or net sales or revenue or sales or revenue growth; (3) net income
(either before or after taxes); (4) adjusted net income; (5) operating earnings or profit (either before or after taxes);
(6) cash flow (including, but not limited to, operating cash flow and free cash flow); (7) return on assets; (8) return on
capital (or invested capital) and cost of capital; (9) return on stockholders’ equity; (10) total stockholder return; (11) return
on sales; (12) gross or net profit or operating margin; (13) operating income (including, but not limited to, growth rate of
operating income or compounded annual growth rate of operating income); (14) costs, reductions in costs and cost
control measures; (15) expenses including, but not limited to, expenses as a percentage of sales, reductions in
expenses and other expense measures; (16) working capital, including without limitation, days sales outstanding and/or
inventory turn; (17) earnings or loss per share; (18) adjusted earnings or loss per share; (19) price per share or dividends
per share (or appreciation in and/or maintenance of such price or dividends); (20) regulatory achievements or
compliance; (21) implementation or completion of critical projects, including, without limitation, acquisitions, divestitures
and/or other strategic transactions; (22) market share; and (23) economic value, any of which may be measured either in
absolute terms for the Company as a whole or any operating unit of the Company or as compared to any incremental
increase or decrease or as compared to results of a peer group or to market performance indicators or indices. The
Amended Plan also permits the plan administrator to provide for objectively determinable adjustments to the applicable
performance criteria in setting performance goals.

Certain Transactions

The plan administrator has broad discretion to take action under the Amended Plan, as well as make adjustments to the
terms and conditions of existing and future awards, to prevent the dilution or enlargement of intended benefits and
facilitate necessary or desirable changes in the event of certain transactions and events affecting our common stock,
such as stock dividends, stock splits, mergers, acquisitions, consolidations and other corporate transactions. In addition,
in the event of certain non-reciprocal transactions with our stockholders known as “equity restructurings,” the plan
administrator will make equitable adjustments to the Amended Plan and outstanding awards. In the event of a change in
control of the Company (as defined in the Amended Plan), to the extent that the surviving entity declines to assume or
substitute outstanding awards or it is otherwise determined that awards will not be assumed or substituted, the plan
administrator may cause the awards to terminate in exchange for cash, rights or other property, or become fully vested
and exercisable in connection with the transaction. If an award vests and, as applicable, is exercised in lieu of
assumption or substitution in connection with a change in control, the award will terminate upon the change in control. In
addition, in the event that an award is assumed or substituted in connection with a change in control and the holder is
terminated without cause within 12 months following the change in control, such award will become fully vested.

Foreign Participants, Clawback Provisions, Transferability, and Participant Payments

The plan administrator may modify award terms, establish subplans and/or adjust other terms and conditions of awards,
subject to the share limits described above, in order to facilitate grants of awards subject to the laws and/or stock
exchange rules of countries outside of the United States. All awards will be subject to the provisions of any clawback
policy implemented by the Company to the extent set forth in such clawback policy and/or in the applicable award
agreement. With limited exceptions for estate planning, domestic relations orders, certain beneficiary designations and
the laws of descent and distribution, awards under the Amended Plan are generally non-transferable prior to vesting, and
are exercisable only by the participant, unless otherwise provided by the plan administrator. With regard to tax
withholding, exercise price and purchase price obligations arising in connection with awards under the Amended Plan,
the plan administrator may, in its discretion, accept cash or check, shares of our common stock that meet specified
conditions, a “market sell order” or such other consideration as it deems suitable.

Plan Amendment and Termination

Our Board of Directors may amend or terminate the Amended Plan at any time; provided, however, that, except in
connection with certain changes in our capital structure, stockholder approval will be required for any amendment that
increases the number of shares available under the Amended Plan or the individual award limits discussed above,
reduces the price per share of any outstanding stock option or SAR, or cancels any stock option or SAR in exchange for
cash or another award when the option or SAR price per share exceeds the fair market value of the underlying shares. In
addition, no amendment, suspension or termination of the Amended Plan may, without the consent of the affected
participant, impair any rights or obligations under any previously granted award, unless the award itself otherwise
expressly so provides. No awards may be granted pursuant to the Amended Plan after February 24, 2030.
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Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequence

The following is a brief description of the principal United States federal income tax consequences related to awards
under the Amended Plan. This summary deals with the general federal income tax principles that apply and is provided
only for general information. Some kinds of taxes, such as state, local and foreign income taxes and federal employment
taxes, are not discussed. This summary is not intended as tax advice to participants, who should consult their own tax
advisors.

Non-Qualified Stock Options. For federal income tax purposes, if participants are granted NSOs under the Amended
Plan, participants generally will not have taxable income on the grant of the option, nor will the Company be entitled to
any deduction. Generally, on exercise of NSOs, participants will recognize ordinary income, and the Company will be
entitled to a deduction, subject to the limitations imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code, in an amount equal to the
difference between the option exercise price and the fair market value of the common stock on the date of exercise. The
basis that participants have in shares of common stock, for purposes of determining their gain or loss on subsequent
disposition of such shares of common stock generally, will be the fair market value of the shares of common stock on the
date the participants exercise their options. Any subsequent gain or loss will be generally taxable as capital gains or
losses.

Incentive Stock Options. There is no taxable income to participants when participants are granted an ISO or when that
option is exercised. However, the amount by which the fair market value of the shares of common stock at the time of
exercise exceeds the option price will be an “item of adjustment” for participants for purposes of the alternative minimum
tax. Gain realized by participants on the sale of an ISO is taxable at capital gains rates, and no tax deduction is available
to the Company, unless participants dispose of the shares of common stock within (i) two years after the date of grant of
the option or (ii) within one year of the date the shares of common stock were transferred to the participant. If the shares
of common stock are sold or otherwise disposed of before the end of the one-year and two-year periods specified above,
the difference between the option exercise price and the fair market value of the shares of common stock on the date of
the option’s exercise (or the date of sale, if less) will be taxed at ordinary income rates, and the Company will be entitled
to a deduction, subject to the limitations imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code, to the extent that participants must
recognize ordinary income. If such a sale or disposition takes place in the year in which participants exercise their
options, the income such participants recognize upon sale or disposition of the shares of common stock will not be
considered income for alternative minimum tax purposes.

ISOs exercised more than three months after a participant terminates employment, other than by reason of death or
disability, will be taxed as a NSO, and the participant will have been deemed to have received income on the exercise
taxable at ordinary income rates. The Company will be entitled to a tax deduction, subject to the limitations imposed by
Section 162(m) of the Code, equal to the ordinary income, if any, realized by the participant.

Other Awards. The current federal income tax consequences of other awards authorized under the Amended Plan
generally follow certain basic patterns: SARs are taxed and deductible in substantially the same manner as NSOs;
nontransferable restricted stock subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture results in income recognition equal to the
excess of the fair market value over the price paid, if any, only at the time the restrictions lapse (unless the recipient
elects, with our approval, to accelerate recognition as of the date of grant); RSUs, stock-based performance awards and
other types of awards are generally subject to income tax at the time of payment, vesting or settlement based on the fair
market value of the award on that date. Compensation otherwise effectively deferred will generally be subject to income
taxation when paid. In each of the foregoing cases, the Company will generally have a corresponding deduction at the
time the participant recognizes income, subject to the limitations imposed by Section 162(m).

Section 162(m) of the Code

Section 162(m) of the Code denies a deduction to any publicly held corporation for compensation paid to certain
“covered employees” in a taxable year to the extent that compensation to such covered employee exceeds $1 million. As
a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which became effective January 1, 2018, Section 162(m) of the Code no longer
provides an exception for public companies to exceed the $1 million limit on the deduction for executive compensation
paid to certain executive officers when the compensation is qualified as “performance-based compensation”. The
changes under Section 162(m) of the Code are generally effective for taxable years beginning in 2018, but there is a
grandfather rule for compensation paid pursuant to a written, binding contract that was in effect on November 2, 2017,
which was not modified in any material respect on or after that date. It is possible that compensation attributable to
awards under the Amended
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Plan, when combined with all other types of compensation received by a covered employee from us, may cause the
$1 million deduction limitation to be exceeded in any particular year.

Section 409A of the Code

Certain types of awards under the Amended Plan may constitute, or provide for, a deferral of compensation subject to
Section 409A of the Code. Unless certain requirements set forth in Section 409A of the Code are complied with, holders
of such awards may be taxed earlier than would otherwise be the case (e.g., at the time of vesting instead of the time of
payment) and may be subject to an additional 20% penalty tax (and, potentially, certain interest penalties and additional
state taxes). To the extent applicable, the Amended Plan and awards granted under the Amended Plan are intended to
be structured and interpreted in a manner intended to either comply with or be exempt from Section 409A of the Code
and the Treasury regulations and other interpretive guidance that may be issued under Section 409A of the Code. To the
extent determined necessary or appropriate by the plan administrator, the Amended Plan and applicable award
agreements may be amended to further comply with Section 409A of the Code or to exempt the applicable awards from
Section 409A of the Code.

 
investor.reliance.com 2024 Proxy Statement / 21



(1)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

   

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our directors and executive officers:

Name Age Position with Reliance

Karla R. Lewis 58 President; Chief Executive Officer; Director
Stephen P. Koch 57 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer

Arthur Ajemyan 48 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Suzanne M. Bonner 49 Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer
Jeffrey W. Durham 61 Senior Vice President, Operations

Michael R. Hynes 57 Senior Vice President, Operations

Sean M. Mollins 45 Senior Vice President, Operations
William A. Smith II 56 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Lisa L. Baldwin 55 Director

Karen W. Colonias 66 Director
Frank J. Dellaquila 67 Director

James D. Hoffman 66 Director

Mark V. Kaminski 68 Director, non-executive Chair of the Board
Robert A. McEvoy 57 Director

David W. Seeger 67 Director

Douglas W. Stotlar 63 Director

Mr. Hoffman is retiring from the Board and not standing for re-election at the 2024 Annual Meeting. Accordingly, his biography is
not presented below.
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DIRECTORS

LISA L. BALDWIN Independent

Director Since: 2019

Age: 55

Current Committee
Memberships:

Audit
Nominating and
Governance

Recent Business Experience:
Lisa L. Baldwin was appointed a director of Reliance in October 2019. In 2022, Ms. Baldwin joined Elliott
Management Corporation as a managing director. From 2013 until 2021, she served as the Chief
Information Officer of Tiffany & Co. (“Tiffany”), after having served as Vice President Strategic Services
from 2011 to 2013. Prior to joining Tiffany, Ms. Baldwin served as Vice President Information Services at
Coach Inc. (“Coach”) from 2008 to 2011. Prior to joining Coach, Ms. Baldwin worked at International
Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”) from 1997 to 2008 as an information technology consultant in
IBM’s retail practice. Earlier in her career, Ms. Baldwin worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers as a consultant.

Key Qualifications:
The Board believes that Ms. Baldwin’s leadership experience at Tiffany and other firms provides valuable
insights on mitigating cybersecurity risk, incorporating technology into our ongoing operations and utilizing
technology-based solutions to streamline our business. Ms. Baldwin recently completed The National
Association of Corporate Directors’ CyberRisk Oversight Program and earned a CERT Certificate in
Cybersecurity Oversight from the Carnegie Mellon University Software Engineering Institute. Based on her
information technology and management experience, she provides valuable insight on risk management,
cybersecurity and internal controls.

KAREN W. COLONIAS Independent

Director Since: 2016

Age: 66

Current Committee
Memberships:

Audit
Compensation (Chair)

Recent Past Public
Board Service:
Simpson Manufacturing
Co., Inc.

Recent Business Experience:
Karen W. Colonias was appointed a director of Reliance in October 2016 and is the Chair of our
Compensation Committee. From December 2022 through June 2023, Ms. Colonias was the Executive
Advisor of Simpson Manufacturing Co., Inc. (NYSE: SSD) (“SSD”), a manufacturer of building materials.
From January 2012 until December 2022, she served as SSD’s President and Chief Executive Officer.
Ms. Colonias served on SSD’s board of directors from 2013 until April 26, 2023. From May 2009 to
January 2012, Ms. Colonias served as SSD’s Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary. Prior to that,
Ms. Colonias was Vice President of SSD’s global structural product solutions subsidiary, Simpson Strong-
Tie Company Inc. and, in that capacity, managed Simpson Strong-Tie’s manufacturing facility in Stockton,
California from 2004 to 2009. From 1998 to 2009, as SSD’s Vice President of Engineering, Ms. Colonias
was responsible for Simpson Strong-Tie’s research and development efforts. Ms. Colonias joined Simpson
Strong-Tie in 1984 as an engineer in the research and development department, where she was
responsible for the design and testing of new products and code development.

Key Qualifications:
Ms. Colonias is experienced in strategic planning, mergers and acquisitions, facility and plant operations,
international business and global finance. Based on her executive experience, including as the Chief
Executive Officer of SSD, Ms. Colonias provides valuable insight on the management of the Company and
its operations.
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FRANK J. DELLAQUILA Independent

Director Since: 2021

Age: 67

Current Committee
Memberships:

Audit (Chair)

Recent Past Public
Board Service:
Aptiv PLC

Recent Business Experience:
Frank J. Dellaquila was appointed a director of Reliance in October 2021 and is the Chair of our Audit
Committee. From 2009 through May 2023, Mr. Dellaquila served as Emerson Electric Co.’s (NYSE: EMR)
Chief Financial Officer. He joined Emerson in 1991 and previously held several senior financial executive
positions with Emerson including Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer of a $3.6 billion business unit, and
Senior Vice President of Acquisitions and Development before being named Chief Financial Officer in
2009. Mr. Dellaquila is a director of FM Global, a privately-held mutual insurance company, and serves on
its finance committee. Mr. Dellaquila was a director of Aptiv PLC (NYSE: APTV) (“APTV”) from 2017 to
2020. During such time, Mr. Dellaquila also served on APTV’s finance and audit committees. Mr. Dellaquila
received a BS degree in accounting from Fordham University and an MBA in finance from Columbia
University.

Key Qualifications:
Mr. Dellaquila has significant expertise in international finance and tax strategy and financial management
from his experience as Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Emerson. He also
possesses extensive experience in financial controls, risk management, and mergers and acquisitions.
Mr. Dellaquila’s experiences are valuable to Reliance and provide clear support for his nomination for
election to the Board.

MARK V. KAMINSKI Independent

Director Since: 2004

Age: 68

Non-executive Chair of
the Board

Current Committee
Memberships:

Audit

Recent Business Experience:
Mark V. Kaminski was first appointed a director of Reliance in November 2004. Mr. Kaminski was elected
our non-executive Chair of the Board in July 2016, after having served as our Lead Director since
January 2015. Mr. Kaminski serves as an Executive Advisor at Graniterock, a privately-held company that
provides products and services to the construction industry. From 2012 until December 2022, Mr. Kaminski
served as director, executive chairman and a member of the audit, nominating and governance, and
compensation committees of Graniterock, and during 2012 served as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Kaminski
was President and Chief Executive Officer and a director of Commonwealth Industries Inc. a then publicly-
traded company (now Novelis, Inc.), and manufacturer of aluminum products, from 1991 until his retirement
in June 2004. Mr. Kaminski served various capacities with Commonwealth Industries Inc. from 1987 until
his appointment as President and Chief Executive Officer in 1991. Mr. Kaminski is an American Indian,
descendant and member of the Citizen Potawatomi Nation.

Key Qualifications:
Based on his experience as executive chairman of Graniterock and as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Commonwealth Industries Inc, Mr. Kaminski offers valuable insight into management of the
Company and its growth. During his over 40-year career in the metals industry and as the former chief
executive officer of an aluminum producer, he has developed strong contacts with aluminum suppliers and
peer companies that are aluminum distributors. Because of his manufacturing background, Mr. Kaminski is
also able to provide oversight and guidance on improving and maintaining the Company’s excellent
operational efficiency and safety performance.
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KARLA R. LEWIS

Director Since: 2021

Age: 58

Other Public Board
Service:
The Goodyear Tire &
Rubber Company

Recent Business Experience:
Karla R. Lewis became Chief Executive Officer of Reliance in January 2023 after being appointed to the
Board and as President in January 2021. From March 2015 until her promotion to President in
January 2021, Mrs. Lewis served as our Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.
Mrs. Lewis joined Reliance in 1992 as Corporate Controller and has held various positions of increasing
responsibility since then, including serving as Chief Financial Officer from 1999 until January 2021. She
was promoted to Senior Vice President in 2000, Executive Vice President in 2002 and Senior Executive
Vice President in 2015. Prior to joining Reliance, Mrs. Lewis, a certified public accountant (inactive), was
employed by Ernst & Young LLP (Ernst & Whinney) in various professional staff positions. Mrs. Lewis
serves as a member of the board of directors of the Metals Service Center Institute (“MSCI”). Mrs. Lewis is
also a member of The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company (Nasdaq: GT) (“Goodyear”) board of directors
and serves as the Chair of its Finance Committee.

Key Qualifications:
As the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mrs. Lewis has long-time relationships with
the Company’s investors and an in-depth knowledge of the Company’s operations, financial position and its
strategic vision.

Mrs. Lewis analyzes the Company’s organic growth initiatives and evaluates potential acquisitions and
opportunities to expand our business and has the skills and experience with the day-to-day operations of
the Company necessary to guide its strategy. Mrs. Lewis is active in overseeing the Company’s acquisition
strategy and has been involved with over 70 acquisitions since our initial public offering in September 1994.
Mrs. Lewis has been a long-time member of the board of directors of the MSCI and is well respected within
the metals service center industry and by investors, financial institutions, and credit rating agencies. As the
former Chief Financial Officer of the Company, she has proven her ability to raise debt and equity capital
for the Company.
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ROBERT A. MCEVOY Independent

Director Since: 2015

Age: 57

Current Committee
Memberships:

Compensation
Nominating and
Governance

Recent Business Experience:
Robert A. McEvoy was appointed to the Board of Directors in October 2015. Mr. McEvoy’s breadth of
knowledge and experiences includes the metals industry, mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance, and
equity portfolio management. Mr. McEvoy retired from The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (“Goldman Sachs”),
a multinational investment bank and financial services company, in April 2014 after nine years with the firm.
As a managing director at Goldman Sachs, Mr. McEvoy was a portfolio manager focused on the materials
and industrials sectors. From 1989 to 2001, Mr. McEvoy held various positions with the investment banking
firms of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette and Credit Suisse First Boston.

Key Qualifications:
Mr. McEvoy’s investment banking and equity investment background, including his particular focus on the
metals and mining industry and prior investment banking and analyst experience covering Reliance,
enables him to assist the Board and the Company with the benefit of his knowledge of our Company, our
industry and competitors, capital markets and financing strategies. Mr. McEvoy’s experience as an investor
provides the Board and management perspective on the landscape in which Reliance competes for capital.
Mr. McEvoy’s investment banking experience offers insight and experience in evaluating capital market
activities and merger and acquisition opportunities. Mr. McEvoy’s historical knowledge of Reliance and the
global metals industry as a former analyst covering Reliance and other metals companies affords him a
unique perspective and understanding of our business.

DAVID W. SEEGER Independent

Director Since: 2021

Age: 67

Current Committee
Memberships:

Compensation
Nominating and
Governance

Recent Business Experience:
David W. Seeger was appointed a director of Reliance in July 2021. Mr. Seeger served on the board of
directors of Zekelman Industries (formerly JMC Steel Group) from 2014 to 2021 and as President from
2010 to 2016. Mr. Seeger has held numerous leadership positions in the metals industry throughout his
career, including President of Atlas Tube, a division of JMC Steel Group, from 2005 to 2009. Other than his
service on Zekelman Industries’ board of directors, Mr. Seeger has been retired since 2016. Mr. Seeger
received a BA degree in business administration from Michigan State University and an MBA from Loyola
University Chicago.

Key Qualifications:
Mr. Seeger has a strong knowledge of the metals industry. As the former President and director of
Zekelman Industries, Mr. Seeger has extensive knowledge of steel suppliers and our peer companies and
potential acquisition targets that operate in the steel distribution industry, as well as familiarity with the
management teams and owners of these companies. Mr. Seeger understands the factors that impact
pricing and demand, as well as market factors that impact mills and how they will ultimately impact metals
service centers. We believe Mr. Seeger’s experience offers an informed perspective of the Company’s
suppliers, which is valuable to Reliance and its stockholders.
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DOUGLAS W. STOTLAR Independent

Director Since: 2016

Age: 63

Current Committee
Memberships:

Nominating and
Governance (Chair)
Compensation

Other Public Board
Service:
AECOM

Recent Past Public
Board Service:
LSC Communications,
Inc.

Recent Business Experience:
Douglas W. Stotlar was appointed a director of Reliance in October 2016 and is the Chair of our
Nominating and Governance Committee. Mr. Stotlar served as President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director of Con-way, Inc., a transportation and logistics company (previously known as CNF Inc.) from
April 2005 until October 2015. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Con-way
Transportation Services Inc., a regional trucking enterprise (“CTS”) and a subsidiary of Con-way, Inc., from
2004 until 2005. Mr. Stotlar also served as CTS’ Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from
2002 until 2004, and as CTS’ Executive Vice President of Operations from 1997 until 2002. He served as
Vice President at large and was a member of the executive committee of the American Trucking
Association and as a director for the Detroit branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago from
December 2014 until December 2016. Mr. Stotlar currently serves as a director and Chairman of the Board
at AECOM (NYSE: ACM). Mr. Stotlar is a member of the AECOM Compensation and Audit Committees.
Mr. Stotlar was previously a director of LSC Communications, Inc. from 2016 to 2021, then a NYSE-listed
public company.

Key Qualifications:
Mr. Stotlar brings substantial knowledge of the logistics industry, which is important in our business. We
believe that Mr. Stotlar’s prior experience as a chief executive officer of a public company provides insight
on stockholder relations and management matters. In addition, Mr. Stotlar’s experience on boards of other
public companies positions him well to serve as our Nominating and Governance Committee Chair and
member of our Compensation Committee.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
In addition to Mrs. Lewis, the other executive officers of Reliance are as follows:

Stephen P. Koch became Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer (“COO”) of the
Company in July 2022. Mr. Koch had served as Senior Vice President, Operations, of the Company
since April 2010. From July 2007 until he joined Reliance, Mr. Koch was President of Chapel Steel
Corp., a subsidiary of Reliance. Prior to that he held the positions of Executive Vice President of
Chapel Steel Corp. from 2005 to June 2007, and Vice President of Chapel Steel Corp. from 1995
to 2005 and had previously served as Sales Manager of Chapel Steel Corp.

Arthur Ajemyan became Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer in February 2022.
Mr. Ajemyan had served as Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since January 2021, having
been promoted from Vice President, Corporate Controller, a position which he had held since
May 2014. From 2012 to 2014, Mr. Ajemyan served as the Company’s Corporate Controller. From
2005 to 2012, Mr. Ajemyan held various positions in the accounting and finance departments at
Reliance. Prior to joining Reliance, Mr. Ajemyan, a certified public accountant (inactive), held
various professional staff and manager positions at PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1998 to 2005.

Suzanne M. Bonner became Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer in February 2022.
Ms. Bonner became Vice President, Chief Information Officer in July 2019, having been promoted
from Executive Director of Reliance Technology Solutions (“RTS”), a position which she had held
since September 2013. Prior to that time, Ms. Bonner served as Director of Finance at RTS from
September 2009 until September 2013. Ms. Bonner worked in various finance, accounting, and
information systems positions before joining Reliance in 2009.

Jeffrey W. Durham became Senior Vice President, Operations in January 2019. From 2014 until
January 2019, Mr. Durham was Vice President, Merchandising of our subsidiary, Earle M.
Jorgensen Company (“EMJ”). Mr. Durham joined EMJ in 1985 and held various leadership roles in
sales, general management and purchasing.

Michael R. Hynes became Senior Vice President, Operations in July 2022. From January 2019
until July 2022, Mr. Hynes served as President of Phoenix Corporation, a subsidiary of Reliance
(“Phoenix Metals”). Mr. Hynes joined Phoenix Metals in 2007 and held various leadership roles in
sales and general management. Prior to joining Phoenix Metals, Mr. Hynes held various roles of
increasing responsibility at one of the Company’s operating divisions. 

Sean M. Mollins became Senior Vice President, Operations in July 2021. From 2015 until being
promoted to Senior Vice President, Operations, Mr. Mollins served as President of PDM Steel
Service Centers, Inc., a subsidiary of Reliance. Mr. Mollins joined the Reliance family of companies
in 2008 and held leadership positions in sales and general management. Mr. Mollins began his
career at Kaiser Aluminum Corp.
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William A. Smith II was appointed Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary in May 2015, having served as Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary since May 2013. From August 2009 to May 2013, Mr. Smith served as Senior Vice
President, Chief Legal Officer and Secretary of Metals USA Holdings Corp., a publicly traded
metals service center business acquired by Reliance in April 2013. From June 2005 to
August 2008, Mr. Smith served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Cross
Match Technologies, Inc. and also as Director of Corporate Development from September 2006 to
August 2008. Prior to that, he was a partner in the corporate and securities practice group of the
international law firm DLA Piper, where he practiced corporate law, including mergers and
acquisitions.

OTHER CORPORATE OFFICERS
In addition, the following Reliance officers make significant contributions to our operations:

Vandy C. Lupton became Vice President, Health & Human Resources in May 2021, having been promoted from
Executive Director, Health & Human Resources, a position she had held since March 2020. Ms. Lupton joined Reliance
in 2012 as Director of Change Management. Prior to joining Reliance, Ms. Lupton served as a consultant with Accenture.
Ms. Lupton is a member of the Society for Human Resource Management.

Brenda S. Miyamoto became Vice President, Corporate Initiatives in August 2012, having been promoted from Vice
President, Corporate Controller, a position which she had held since May 2007. Prior to that time, Ms. Miyamoto served
as Corporate Controller from January 2004 until May 2007 and Group Controller from December 2001 to January 2004.
For six years prior to joining Reliance, Ms. Miyamoto, a certified public accountant (inactive), was employed by Ernst &
Young LLP in various professional staff and manager positions.

John A. Shatkus became Vice President, Enterprise Risk in January 2021, having previously served as Vice President,
Internal Audit, a position he had held since August 2012. Mr. Shatkus joined Reliance in 2005 and served as Director,
Internal Audit until August 2012. Prior to joining Reliance, Mr. Shatkus was Audit Manager at Sempra Energy and held
various management positions at Sempra Energy over a 20-year period, including Regulatory Affairs Manager and
Accounting Manager. Mr. Shatkus is a certified public accountant.

Brian M. Yamaguchi became Vice President, Supplier Development in July 2021, having previously served as Senior
Director, Supplier Development, a position which he had held since 2014. From 1986 until July 2021, Mr. Yamaguchi
held various positions of increasing responsibility in sales and merchandising at EMJ.

Silva Yeghyayan became Vice President, Tax in August 2012, having been promoted from Director, Tax, a position which
she had held since October 2005. Ms. Yeghyayan is a certified public accountant and was a tax consultant from
April 2004 until joining Reliance in 2005. Ms. Yeghyayan was Senior Tax Manager at Grant Thornton LLP from 2000 to
2004, and held various professional staff and manager positions at Arthur Andersen LLP from 1989 to 2000.
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
This Compensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A”) describes our executive compensation program and philosophy,
the compensation decisions made by the Compensation Committee and the factors considered in making those
decisions. This CD&A focuses on 2023 compensation decisions for our executives, including the Named Executive
Officers (“NEOs”) identified below.

NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Karla R. Lewis
President and Chief

Executive Officer

Arthur Ajemyan
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

Stephen P. Koch
Executive Vice President,

Chief Operating Officer

Jeffrey W. Durham
Senior Vice President,

Operations

William A. Smith II
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
We generated strong operational and financial performance across nearly every key metric in 2023.

Key financial results for 2023 include:

$22.64
$1.67
Billion 30.7%

3.7%
Increase

$717.6
Million

Diluted EPS
Second highest in
Reliance history.

Cash Flow from
Operations
Second highest in
Reliance history.

Gross Profit
Margin
Maintained
towards the high
end of estimated
29% to 31%
sustainable range.

Tons Sold
Emphasized
”Smart, Profitable
Growth“ in 2023,
resulting in our tons
sold growth
exceeding the
MSCI by 1.5% while
we maintained
gross profit margin.

Returns to
Stockholders
Comprised of
$238.1 million of
regular quarter
dividends and
$479.5 million of
share
repurchases.

Consistent with both the philosophy and design of our compensation plans, compensation of our NEOs in 2023 aligned
with our strong operational and financial performance. Our NEOs received payouts under our 2023 annual cash
incentive plan equal to 300% of such NEO’s base salary, and the performance-based equity awards granted to our NEOs
in 2021 paid out at the maximum level based on Company performance over the three-year performance measurement
period ended December 31, 2023, each reflecting management’s delivery of industry-leading operating results and
stellar financial performance.
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2023 Financial and Operating Highlights

The following table highlights our financial and operating results in 2023 compared to 2022:

2023 2022 Change
Sales $ 14.81 billion $ 17.03 billion (13.0)%

Tons sold in ‘000s 5,779.2 5,570.8 3.7%

Average selling price per ton sold $ 2,570 $ 3,073 (16.4)%
Gross profit margin 30.7% 30.8% (0.1)% pts.

Operating income $ 1,739.5 million $ 2,506.9 million (30.6)%

Pretax income $ 1,740.7 million $ 2,430.4 million (28.4)%
Net income attributable to Reliance $ 1,335.9 million $ 1,840.1 million (27.4)%

Cash flow from operations $ 1,671.3 million $ 2,118.6 million (21.1)%

Earnings per diluted share $ 22.64 $ 29.92 (24.3)%
Closing market price of stock at December 31 $ 279.68 $ 202.44 38.2%

Pretax income margin 11.8% 14.3% (2.5)% pts.

Pretax Income Margin – Annual Cash Incentive Plan 11.7% 14.3% (2.6)% pts.
Tons sold growth – Reliance 3.7%

Tons Sold Growth – Annual Cash Incentive Plan 2.2%

Annual return on assets (“ROA”) 16.7% 25.3% (8.6)% pts.
Dividends paid per share $ 4.00 $ 3.50 14.3%

Our tons sold, average selling price per ton sold and Tons Sold Growth (as defined below) exclude tons toll processed.
Gross profit, calculated as net sales less cost of sales, and gross profit margin, calculated as gross profit divided by net sales, are
non-GAAP financial measures as they exclude depreciation and amortization expense associated with the corresponding sales.
About half of Reliance’s orders are basic distribution with no processing services performed. For the remainder of its sales orders,
Reliance performs “first-stage” processing, which is generally not labor intensive as it is simply cutting the metal to size. Because
of this, the amount of related labor and overhead, including depreciation and amortization, is not significant and is excluded from
cost of sales. Therefore, Reliance’s cost of sales is substantially composed of the cost of the material it sells. Reliance uses gross
profit margin as shown above as a measure of operating performance. Gross profit margin is an important operating and financial
measure, as fluctuations in our gross profit margin can have a significant impact on Reliance’s earnings. Gross profit margin, as
presented, is not necessarily comparable with similarly titled measures for other companies.
Presented below is pretax income margin (pretax income as a percentage of net sales), which excludes various non-recurring
charges and credits (“Pretax Income Margin”) and Tons Sold Growth calculated in accordance with our annual cash incentive plan.

(dollars in millions) 2023 2022
Pretax income $ 1,740.7 $ 2,430.4
Restructuring charges 2.2 1.4
Non-recurring expenses of acquisitions — 8.1
Non-recurring settlement charges, net — 1.5
Gains related to sales of non-core assets (3.8 (2.0

Non-GAAP pretax income $ 1,739.1 $ 2,439.4
Sales $ 14,805.9 $ 17,025.0
Pretax Income Margin – Annual Cash Incentive Plan 11.7% 14.3%

2023
Tons sold growth – Reliance 3.7%  
Less: tons sold growth – MSCI Benchmark (1.5
Tons Sold Growth – Annual Cash Incentive Plan 2.2%
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NEO performance-based equity awards are tied to achieving an ROA target over a three-year performance measurement period.
Presented below is Company ROA calculated in accordance with our performance-based restricted stock awards, which is
calculated as operating income, excluding various non-recurring charges and credits for the year, divided by average total assets
for the year.

(dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Operating income $ 1,739.5 $ 2,506.9 $ 1,948.9
Restructuring charges 2.2 1.4 4.8

Non-recurring expenses of acquisitions — 8.1 14.3

Non-recurring settlement charges, net — 0.7 —
Gains related to sales of non-core assets (3.8 (2.0 (5.7

Non-GAAP operating income $ 1,737.9 $ 2,515.1 $ 1,962.3

Total assets – beginning of year $ 10,329.9 $ 9,536.0 $ 8,106.8
Total assets – end of year $ 10,480.3 $ 10,329.9 $ 9,536.0

Total assets – average $ 10,405.1 $ 9,933.0 $ 8,821.4

Annual ROA 16.7% 25.3% 22.2%
ROA for three-year performance period ended December 31, 21.4% 18.8% 14.6%

In 2023, our earnings per diluted share of $22.64 and operating cash flow of $1.67 billion were the second highest in our
history, surpassed only by the records set in 2022 due to a very favorable metals pricing environment.

Tons sold increased 3.7% in 2023 compared to 2022 due to healthy demand in our key end markets, including non-
residential construction (our largest end market), automotive and aerospace, as well as contributions from our organic
growth activities. The increase in our tons sold in 2023 significantly outperformed the 1.5% increase in shipments for the
industry as reported by the Metals Service Center Institute (“MSCI”), while maintaining our gross profit margin at 30.7%,
which was towards the high end of our estimated 29% to 31% sustainable range.

Our net sales of $14.81 billion declined 13.0% in 2023 compared to record levels of $17.03 billion in 2022 due to a
decline in our average selling price per ton sold of 16.4% that was partially offset by an increase in our tons sold.

We believe record metals pricing in 2022 was largely driven by supply chain disruptions caused by the onset of the
conflict between Russia and Ukraine, labor supply and microchip shortages, and impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic,
including the omicron variant surge and lockdowns in China.

We continued to execute our balanced capital allocation strategy in 2023 using cash flow from operations to return
$717.6 million to our stockholders through $238.1 million of record dividends and $479.5 million of share repurchases. In
addition, we continued to fund organic growth by investing $468.8 million in capital expenditures. We also invested in our
growth in 2023 by acquiring Southern Steel Supply, LLC which aligns with our business model and disciplined strategy of
investing in profitable, high-quality businesses that expand our geographic diversity and value-added processing
capabilities.

During 2023, we repurchased approximately 1.9 million shares of our common stock at an average cost of $255.30 per
share, or $479.5 million in total.

We paid a total of $238.1 million in dividends to our stockholders in 2023. In February 2024, we increased our regular
quarterly dividend 10% to $1.10 per share from $1.00 per share.

We have paid regular quarterly dividends to our stockholders for over 64 consecutive years without reduction or
suspension. We have increased our dividend 31 times since our 1994 IPO. Since 2012, the Company’s regular quarterly
dividend has increased more than 633% from $0.15 to $1.10 per share.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 for a more detailed discussion of our results of operations in 2023
compared to 2022 and our financial condition.

Executive Compensation Program Design

Our executive compensation program is designed to reward the Company’s executive officers for strong operational and
financial performance, attract and retain key executive talent, and align executive compensation with the long-term
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interests of our stockholders. Our stockholders have been highly supportive of our program’s pay-for-performance
structure as demonstrated by our say-on-pay voting results exceeding 90% in each of the last five years from 2019
through 2023.

As described in more detail below, we structure our executive officers’ target total direct compensation to be competitive
with the median compensation paid by companies with whom we may compete for executive talent, including those in
our executive compensation peer group. We tie the substantial majority of our executives’ compensation to Company
performance objectives to drive financial and operating performance and reward executives for delivering stockholder
value. We believe that this pay-for-performance philosophy has been instrumental to our success.

We manage our business with the long-term objective of creating and maximizing value for our stockholders. Our pay-
for-performance philosophy is aligned with and supports this objective.

Consistent with our past practice, the Compensation Committee evaluates performance by reviewing:

our operating and financial results, including performance against our executive compensation peer group, our
industry peers, and general economic factors that impact our business and industry;

economic return to stockholders over time, both on an absolute basis and relative to other companies,
including the S&P 500, our executive compensation peer group and our industry peers; and

achievement of the Company’s goals and objectives (including management development and succession,
safety performance, working capital management, growth in profitability and volume, and capital allocation).

The Compensation Committee has linked a substantial majority of our executives’ total direct compensation directly to
the achievement of specific, pre-established Company performance targets. In 2023, approximately 74% of our CEO’s
and 71% of our other NEOs’ target total direct compensation was tied to performance targets.

Relationship Between Pay and Performance

The majority of our executives’ compensation is tied to performance through annual cash incentive awards and long-term
equity incentive awards. Management once again delivered industry-leading operating results in 2023, with sales, diluted
earnings per share and cash flow from operations being the second highest results in the Company’s history.

Annual Cash Incentive Award Plan

Consistent with the delivery of industry-leading results in 2023, each NEO received payments at the maximum level
under our annual cash incentive plan related to both the Pretax Income Margin and Tons Sold Growth metrics, resulting
in a total payout equal to 300.0% of base salary for each NEO.

For 2023, 90% of the award opportunity available under the annual cash incentive plan was based on the Company’s
Pretax Income Margin and 10% of the award opportunity was based on Tons Sold Growth. In 2023, the target allocation
of the cash incentive award between the two separate performance metrics was as follows:

INCENTIVE PAY MIX AT TARGET RESULTS
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As in prior years, the NEOs’ total target annual cash incentive opportunity in 2023 was 150% of individual base salary if
the targets were achieved. Of this amount, 135% of base salary would be received based upon achievement of the
target Pretax Income Margin goal, and 15% of base salary would be received based upon achievement of the target
Tons Sold Growth goal.

As in 2022, the Pretax Income Margin portion of the 2023 annual cash incentive plan opportunity was established on a
sliding scale, as follows:

2023 Pretax
Income Margin

2023 Performance
Award (% of Base

Salary)
2022 Pretax

Income Margin

2022
Performance

Award (% of Base
Salary)

Threshold 3.50% 20.0% 3.50% 20.0%

Target 6.00% 135.0% 6.00% 135.0%

Maximum 9.00% 270.0% 9.00% 270.0%

2023 Pretax Income Margin (calculated in accordance with our annual cash incentive plan) was 11.7%, which resulted in
each NEO receiving the maximum award under the portion of the 2023 annual cash incentive plan related to Pretax
Income Margin equal to 270% of base salary.

For 2023, the Compensation Committee, in consultation with Pay Governance, LLC (“Pay Governance”), the
Compensation Committee’s independent executive compensation advisor, and with input from management, determined
that it would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to determine achievement of the Tons Sold
Growth metric based on performance as measured against the total tons of metal sold by the U.S. metals service center
industry as published by the MSCI (the “MSCI Benchmark”), as follows:

Tons Sold
Growth

Performance Award
(% of Base Salary)

Threshold Equal to MSCI Benchmark 0.0%

Target 1.0% in excess of MSCI Benchmark 15.0%

Maximum 2.0% in excess of MSCI Benchmark 30.0%

The Tons Sold Growth portion of the 2023 annual cash incentive plan opportunity was established on a sliding scale. For
2023, the Compensation Committee set the portion of the target annual cash incentive award to be earned based upon
tons sold at 15.0% of base salary, which amount would be earned if tons sold exceeded the MSCI Benchmark by 1.0%.
The maximum award of 30.0% of base salary would be earned if tons sold exceeded the MSCI Benchmark by 2.0%. No
payment under the tons sold metric would be made if the Company’s tons sold underperformed the MSCI Benchmark.
Mathematical interpolation would be applied to determine the actual incentive award for tons sold in excess of the MSCI
Benchmark up to the maximum of 2.0%.

2023 Tons Sold Growth (calculated in accordance with our annual cash incentive plan) was 2.2% in excess of the MSCI
Benchmark, which resulted in each NEO receiving the maximum award, or 30% of base salary, under the portion of the
2023 annual cash incentive plan related to the Tons Sold Growth metric. The MSCI Benchmark was used to measure the
Tons Sold Growth metric for the first time in 2023. In 2022, the Tons Sold Growth metric was measured as the year-over-
year percentage increase in the Company’s tons sold (no payout for a decline, payout of 15.0% for growth of 2.00% and
a maximum payout of 30.0% for growth that equaled or exceeded 4.00%), with mathematical interpolation applied to
determine the actual incentive award in the applicable range.

The Compensation Committee, in consultation with Pay Governance and with input from management, selected Pretax
Income Margin and Tons Sold Growth as the performance metrics for the annual cash incentive opportunity for 2023.
The Compensation Committee selected Pretax Income Margin because it aligns with how management and the Board
measure the Company’s performance and is typically one of the most important metrics used in the Company’s
corporate and operational decision-making. Tons Sold Growth was selected as a second performance metric by the
Compensation Committee because it promotes growth, compares the Company’s performance against an industry
indicator, and complements and achieves an appropriate balance with the Pretax Income Margin metric. As discussed
under “Changes to 2024 Incentive Plans” below, the Compensation Committee increased the applicable pretax income
margin targets under the annual cash incentive plan for 2024.
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The targets and actual cash incentive awards made to our NEOs in 2023 were as follows:

End of Year
Base Salary

Target (%)
Base Salary

Actual Award
for 2023

Performance
Actual (%)

Base Salary

Karla R. Lewis 1,250,000 150% 3,750,000 300%

Arthur Ajemyan 675,000 150% 2,025,000 300%
Stephen P. Koch 750,000 150% 2,250,000 300%

Jeffrey W. Durham 600,000 150% 1,800,000 300%

William A. Smith II 630,000 150% 1,890,000 300%

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

The NEOs’ performance-based equity awards are tied to achieving an ROA target over a three-year measurement
period. The Compensation Committee has determined that a three-year ROA measurement period, which is directly
influenced by management’s decisions, is an effective metric to measure management’s long-term performance. ROA
also complements and achieves an appropriate balance with the one-year Pretax Income Margin and Tons Sold Growth
metrics under the annual cash incentive award program by holding management responsible for the efficient use of
assets to produce growth and operating profits over a multi-year period. The issued and outstanding 2022, 2023 and
2024 performance-based equity awards will vest if the Company achieves an ROA result at or above a minimum
threshold over the applicable three-year performance periods, subject to a prescribed maximum.

The allocation of performance-based and service-based equity awards is intended to balance performance and retention
objectives. In striking the appropriate balance, the Compensation Committee sought to design a program that
incentivizes strong performance while also strengthening the retention aspects of the long-term equity awards since the
Company does not maintain employment agreements with its officers. Accordingly, in 2022 and 2023, 80% of all NEO
target equity awards issued were performance-based and the remaining awards were service-based, reinforcing the
performance orientation of the Company’s compensation program. As discussed under “Changes to 2024 Incentive
Plans” below, the Compensation Committee increased the applicable ROA targets and changed the allocation of
performance-based and service-based equity awards for certain of the NEOs for the 2024 performance-based equity
awards.

Results for the performance-based equity awards granted in 2021 were determined in the first quarter of 2024 based on
the Company’s ROA in the three-year measurement period from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2023. The
Company’s ROA in the three-year measurement period was 21.4%, which is in excess of the maximum payout and
resulted in the maximum number of awards vesting, or 200% of the target.

 
investor.reliance.com 2024 Proxy Statement / 35



●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key Executive Compensation Practices

What We Do

We align executive compensation with the
interests of our stockholders:

Strong pay-for-performance compensation
structure. In 2023, approximately 74% of our
CEO’s and 71% of our other NEOs’ target
total direct compensation was tied to
performance metrics. See pages 32 & 37.

Target total direct compensation of our NEOs
designed to approximate the market median
of our executive compensation peer group
when target performance levels are achieved.
See page 37.

In 2022 and 2023, 80% of all NEO target
equity awards were performance-based. In
2024, 80% of the CEO, CFO and COO target
equity awards are performance-based and
70% of the other NEOs’ target equity awards
are performance-based. See pages 44 & 49.

Stock ownership and retention requirements
applicable to all directors and corporate
officers, including our NEOs. See pages 47 &
69.

SEC- and NYSE-compliant policy for
recovery of erroneously awarded
compensation (clawback) that applies to all
incentive cash and equity compensation. See
page 47.

Our executive compensation program is designed to
reward the Company’s executive officers for strong
operational and financial performance and to avoid
excessive risk-taking:

Double trigger provisions for accelerated vesting of equity
awards upon a change in control. See page 45.

All NEO performance-based equity awards are tied to
three-year performance targets. See pages 44 & 49.

Broad and deep distribution of equity awards throughout
management while managing the dilutive impact and
expense associated with those awards. See page 44.

Limited perquisites. See page 45.

Annual stockholder advisory vote to approve NEO
compensation. See page 11.

Independent compensation committee. See page 40.

Independent compensation consultant. See page 41.

Independent, non-executive Chair of the Board enhances
the effectiveness of the Board’s oversight and
governance and compensation practices. See page 67.

All employee awards are subject to a minimum one-year
vesting period, except with respect to a maximum of 5%
of the remaining shares available for grant under the
Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award
Plan.

What We Don’t Do

We adhere to executive compensation best practices:

No incentive plan design or feature which
would encourage excessive risk-taking.

No unlimited compensation; all variable
compensation plans have caps on plan
formulas.

No employment agreements, severance
agreements, change in control/golden
parachute agreements or other similar
agreements with any executive officer.
See page 45.

No tax gross-ups for perquisites, change
in control excise taxes or otherwise.

No hedging of Reliance securities permitted by
directors, officers and employees subject to our
Insider Trading and Securities Compliance Policy.
See page 48.

No pledging of Reliance securities permitted by
directors, officers and employees subject to our
Insider Trading and Securities Compliance Policy.
See page 48.

No acceleration of unvested awards permitted,
except for death, disability, a qualified retirement or
termination without cause following a change in
control.
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2023 Say On Pay Vote

In 2023, our stockholders overwhelmingly approved, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation of our NEOs,
with approximately 91% of the votes cast in favor of such compensation. In addition, we believe our stockholders have
been highly supportive of our compensation program, as demonstrated by our say-on-pay voting results exceeding 90%
in each of the last five years from 2019 through 2023. The Compensation Committee considers the favorable advisory
vote as support for its belief that the Company’s pay-for-performance policy operates as it was designed, aligning the
interests of our executive officers and stockholders and driving the NEOs’ performance to enhance long-term stockholder
value and achieve Company objectives. As discussed under “Changes to 2024 Incentive Plans” below, the
Compensation Committee increased the applicable pretax income margin and ROA targets under the incentive plans for
2024.

OVERVIEW OF OUR EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM

Compensation Program Objectives

Our compensation program is designed and managed to align executive compensation with Company performance, to
motivate our executives to deliver financial and operating results that create and maximize value for our stockholders,
and to attract and retain key executive talent. While the Compensation Committee has structured individual components
of pay to vary from market medians, it aims for our NEOs’ total compensation to approximate the market median when
performance targets are achieved. We believe it is important that our executive compensation program:

Aligns the interests of our executives with those of our stockholders. We align the financial interests of our
executive officers with the interests of our stockholders by tying the majority of our executives’ incentive
compensation directly to Company performance. In addition, we have implemented significant stock ownership
requirements for our executive officers to strengthen the alignment of their interests and our stockholders’
interests.

Promotes and maintains a performance- and achievement-oriented culture. In 2023, approximately 74% of our
CEO’s and 71% of our other NEOs’ target total direct compensation was tied to performance metrics. We
establish performance targets that are demanding, support our strategic and financial objectives, and promote
long-term stockholder value, without encouraging unnecessary or excessive risk-taking.

Is competitive. Our program is designed to attract, retain and motivate talented and skilled executives. As such,
we structure total direct compensation at target to be competitive with the median compensation paid by
companies with whom we may compete for executive talent, including those in our executive compensation
peer group. While individual components of pay may vary from market medians, we aim to approximate total
pay at market median when performance targets are achieved.

The Company enjoys a team-oriented corporate culture and rewards the entire team of corporate officers for their
collaborative effort that is reflected in the Company’s industry-leading performance. Attracting and retaining a team of
outstanding corporate officers with complementary skills and expertise has proven successful for the Company’s growth,
both organically and through acquisitions, and for maintaining the Company’s profitable financial performance, each of
which enhances stockholder value. In order to promote our team culture, the Compensation Committee considers
internal pay equity when setting compensation levels for our executives. This team approach is best illustrated by our
annual cash incentive award program in which all NEOs have the same target annual cash incentive award opportunity
(150% of their respective base salaries) based on the same performance objectives. Moreover, equity awards for NEOs
are also comparable, with the exception of the President and CEO, the CFO and the COO.

Elements of Compensation

A summary of the main elements of our executive compensation program is set forth below:

Element Type Description

Cash Base salaries
(see page 43)

The only component composed of fixed cash compensation.

Base salaries for our NEOs in aggregate approximate the
25th percentile compared to comparable officers in our
executive compensation peer group.
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Element Type Description

Annual performance-based
cash incentive awards
(see page 43)

The annual cash incentive plan provides NEOs an opportunity
to receive annual cash incentive awards based on Reliance’s
annual performance. The incentive opportunity is expressed as
a percentage of base salary, ranging from zero for results
below the applicable thresholds up to a maximum of 300% of
base salary if certain financial targets are met. In 2023, 90% of
the incentive opportunity under the annual cash incentive plan
was based on the Company’s Pretax Income Margin and 10%
of the incentive opportunity was based on Tons Sold Growth.

If the Company achieved a Pretax Income Margin in 2023
within the range of 3.50% and 9.00%, then mathematical
interpolation would be applied to determine the actual
incentive award in the applicable range (threshold to target or
target to maximum). 2023 Pretax Income Margin (calculated in
accordance with our annual cash incentive plan) was 11.7%,
which resulted in each NEO receiving the maximum award
equal to 270% of base salary.

In addition to pretax income margin, in 2023 a target annual
cash incentive award of 15% of base salary was based on
Tons Sold Growth exceeding the MSCI Benchmark by 1.0%.
The maximum award of 30% of base salary would be earned if
Tons Sold Growth exceeded the MSCI Benchmark by 2.0%.
No payment under the Tons Sold Growth metric would be
made if the Company’s Tons Sold Growth underperforms the
MSCI Benchmark. 2023 Tons Sold Growth was 2.2% in excess
of the MSCI Benchmark, which resulted in each NEO receiving
the maximum award equal to 30% of base salary.

In 2023, target annual cash incentive opportunities compared
to similar executives of companies in our executive
compensation peer group approximate: (i) the 25th percentile
for our President and CEO (reflecting her promotion into the
CEO role); and (ii) the 60th percentile for our other NEOs in
aggregate.

To promote internal pay equity and reinforce an executive
team concept, the NEOs’ target annual cash incentive
opportunities are based on the same salary percentages.

Long-Term Equity
Compensation

Restricted stock unit awards
(see page 44)

80% of the RSU awards granted to our NEOs in 2022 and
2023 were performance-based and will only vest if the
Company achieves a minimum ROA for the three-year
performance measurement period. Vesting of the remaining
20% of RSU awards granted to our NEOs in 2023 is
dependent on their respective continued service through the
three-year period.

The value of RSU awards granted in 2023 to (i) Mrs. Lewis
was below the median but above the 25th percentile reflecting
her promotion to the CEO role and (ii) the other NEOs were
between the 40th and the 67th percentiles, except for
Mr. Ajemyan who approximated the 25th percentile.

Results for the three-year performance-based awards that
vested on December 31, 2023 resulted in 200% of the target
number of awards vesting, which represented maximum
performance over the three-year performance measurement
period.
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Element Type Description
Retirement or
Deferred
Compensation
Benefits

Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan
(see page 45)

The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) was
frozen to new participants as of January 1, 2009.

Based on her long tenure with the Company, Mrs. Lewis is the
only remaining active participant in the SERP.

The SERP benefit is set to 38% of the average of the
participant’s highest five years total cash compensation during
the final ten years of employment.

In comparing the SERP benefit to the retirement benefits
offered to similar executives at companies in our executive
compensation peer group, the Compensation Committee found
that the benefits to Mrs. Lewis under the SERP are above the
75th percentile of retirement benefits at companies in our
executive compensation peer group.

Deferred Compensation
Plan
(see page 45)

The Reliance, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Deferred
Compensation Plan”) provides supplemental retirement
benefits to certain key employees through discretionary
Company contributions.

Messrs. Ajemyan, Koch, Durham and Smith received
discretionary Company contributions under the Deferred
Compensation Plan in 2023.

In comparing the discretionary Company contribution benefit
under the Deferred Compensation Plan to the retirement
benefits offered to similar executives at companies in our
executive compensation peer group, the Compensation
Committee found that the target values for Messrs. Ajemyan,
Koch, Durham and Smith would be between the 25th and
50th percentiles.

Other Benefits Standard Benefits Widely
Available to Employees

Executive officers, including the NEOs, participate in the same
benefit plans broadly available to all full-time Company
employees, including health insurance and 401(k) plans.

Limited Perquisites
(see page 45)

No perquisites other than certain memberships for certain
NEOs used primarily for business purposes.

Allocation of Compensation Components

Our executive officers are compensated with a balanced combination of the elements described above that vary by:

type of compensation (fixed, variable, service-based and performance-based);

with respect to performance-based compensation, length of the performance period (annual and long-term);

form of compensation (cash and equity); and

with respect to equity compensation, performance-based and service-based.

We believe this balanced allocation supports our compensation objectives, including alignment of our executives’ and
our stockholders’ interests, the retention of our key executives, mitigation of excessive risk taking and appropriate
emphasis of pay-for-performance. The Compensation Committee has designed the overall compensation program to
ensure that the majority of our executives’ compensation is subject to the Company’s annual and long-term performance
as well as stock price appreciation. Although a significant majority of our NEOs’ compensation is tied to Company
performance, the Compensation Committee has no pre-determined mix or allocation among the various elements. The
following chart illustrates the targeted allocation of the principal compensation components for our NEOs in 2023.
The percentages reflect the NEOs’ 2023 salaries and target annual cash incentive compensation, as well as the grant
date fair values of both service-based RSUs and the target number of performance-based RSUs granted in 2023.
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Mix of Principal Compensation Components

TOTAL PAY MIX AT TARGET RESULTS

HOW WE MAKE DECISIONS REGARDING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Committee and Independent Directors

The Compensation Committee, which is composed entirely of independent directors, oversees our executive
compensation program. NEO compensation is subject to final approval by the independent directors of the Board upon
recommendation of the Compensation Committee.

Each year, the independent directors of the Board review and evaluate the CEO’s performance. The Compensation
Committee and the independent directors of the Board incorporate the CEO’s performance review – along with other data
including the Company’s financial results, achievement of the Company’s goals and objectives in the past year and the
proposed objectives for the coming year – into their analysis of the CEO’s total compensation and their consideration of
the appropriate mix and structure of the elements of the CEO’s total compensation.

At the request of the independent directors, our CEO annually provides a review and evaluation of each of the executive
officers, including the NEOs (other than the CEO), identifying accomplishments in the past year, achievement of
objectives and results, executive development and proposed objectives for the coming year. The Compensation
Committee incorporates the CEO’s reviews of the other NEOs, along with other data including the Company’s financial
results and other achievements, into its analysis of the other NEOs’ total compensation and its consideration of the
appropriate mix and structure of the elements of the other NEOs’ total compensation.

The Compensation Committee also reviews data provided by its independent compensation consultant, Pay
Governance, as well as the appropriate mix and structure of the various elements of total compensation, in determining
the total compensation of the CEO and the other NEOs. Although base salaries, annual cash incentive awards and long-
term incentive awards are considered at different times throughout the year, the Compensation Committee analyzes the
proposed total direct compensation package (or the total of base salary, annual cash incentive and long-term incentives)
before making any recommendations regarding individual elements of compensation. The Compensation Committee
formulates preliminary recommendations on the amount and type of compensation to be paid to the CEO and the other
NEOs. The Compensation Committee then discusses with the CEO its preliminary recommendations with respect to the
NEOs (other than the CEO). The Compensation Committee presents its final recommendations to the independent
directors in executive session and the independent directors make the final determination of and approve the
compensation paid to the CEO and the other NEOs.

To ensure that the NEOs and our other executive officers are compensated in a manner consistent with our strategy,
competitive market practices, sound corporate governance principles and stockholder interests, the Compensation
Committee regularly evaluates our executive compensation program. When doing so, the Compensation Committee

 
40 / 2024 Proxy Statement investor.reliance.com



TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

considers the needs of the business, peer practices, external trends and the results of our annual say-on-pay vote. The
Compensation Committee also seeks advice from its independent compensation consultant, as well as input from
executive management.

Independent Compensation Consultant

The Compensation Committee annually engages an independent compensation consultant to assist it in connection with
the review and evaluation of the total compensation package provided to the NEOs and the individual elements thereof.
In 2023, the Compensation Committee engaged Pay Governance as its independent compensation consultant. Pay
Governance reports directly to the Compensation Committee and neither it nor any of its affiliates provided any services
to the Company, other than the services to the Compensation Committee with respect to executive compensation and
the Nominating and Governance Committee with respect to reviews of our director compensation, which the Board
believes does not interfere with the independence of the consultant. The Compensation Committee conducted an
assessment of Pay Governance’s independence, taking into account the factors specified in the NYSE listing standards
as well as information provided by Pay Governance, and based on that assessment, determined that Pay Governance is
independent.

Compensation Committee Review of Executive Compensation Peer Group and Other Data

When making decisions regarding the compensation of our NEOs, the Compensation Committee considers information
from a variety of sources. The Compensation Committee analyzes both the individual elements and the total
compensation package for each of the NEOs, as well as the relationship of those packages among the NEOs.

Together with its independent compensation consultant, the Compensation Committee reviews our financial statements
and compares our financial results with those of both our executive compensation peer group and our industry peer
group, as well as other factors specifically impacting the metals industry, and compares compensation information for our
NEOs with that available for comparable executives. In determining each executive’s total compensation package, the
Compensation Committee considers both qualitative and quantitative criteria, as well as the CEO’s recommendations
and performance evaluations and historical compensation records of the Company. Although a significant majority of
compensation is tied to Company performance, the Compensation Committee has no pre-determined mix or allocation
among the various elements.

The Compensation Committee annually reviews and, as appropriate, revises the executive compensation peer group in
an effort to assure the group continues to reflect any changes in the Company’s business, strategy and size as
measured by revenue, stock market capitalization and other factors. The Compensation Committee also considers
additional factors such as the Company’s stock performance as compared with standard indices, such as the S&P 500,
as well as our industry peer group. The Compensation Committee reviews the issued and outstanding but unvested
equity awards and common stock actually held by each NEO and recognizes that the NEOs are directly impacted by the
Company’s stock price and, accordingly, their interest in the Company’s performance and the impact it has on the market
value of the Company’s stock is closely aligned with that of the Company’s stockholders.

The combination of these analyses helps the Compensation Committee assess how our NEOs are compensated
compared to their peers – both in terms of individual components and total compensation, the reasonableness of the
Company’s incentive plan goals, the alignment of pay and performance, the potential need for recalibration of the
Company’s pay and incentive goals, and the actual elements of NEO compensation.

Executive Compensation Peer Group

There are no public companies in the metals service center industry that are closely comparable to the Company in
terms of size, stock market capitalization, complexity and financial performance. Accordingly, in considering executive
compensation for 2023, as in prior years, the Compensation Committee and the independent compensation consultant
used the executive compensation peer group set forth below.

The Compensation Committee, with input from executive management and the independent compensation consultant,
annually reviews specific criteria and recommendations regarding companies to add or remove from the peer group to
ensure that the companies in the peer group remain relevant and provide meaningful compensation comparisons. The
Compensation Committee strives to maintain consistency in the peer group from year-to-year and only makes changes
when appropriate in consultation with Pay Governance and executive management.

 
investor.reliance.com 2024 Proxy Statement / 41



• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• •

•

•

•

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The peer group set forth below includes companies in the metals processing and distribution industry as well as
industrial and manufacturing companies of comparable size in terms of revenues and/or stock market capitalization and
complexity. The executive compensation peer group has been constructed, in part, such that the Company’s revenues,
stock market capitalization, enterprise value and invested capital generally approximate the median of the executive
compensation peer group companies. However, the industrial and manufacturing companies in this peer group are not
impacted at all, or are affected to a lesser degree than Reliance, by fluctuations in metal pricing.

For fiscal year 2023, the peer group was updated to remove ATI Inc., MRC Global Inc. & Terex Corporation and to
add Alcoa Corporation, Cleveland-Cliffs Inc. and Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corporation. ATI Inc., MRC
Global Inc. & Terex Corporation were removed because their lower revenues compared to the Company fell below our
peer group methodology parameters. Alcoa Corporation, Cleveland-Cliffs Inc. and Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies
Corporation were added to our peer group based on their fit as industrial companies with revenues broadly comparable
to the Company.

AGCO Corporation Dover Corporation Parker-Hannifin Corporation
Alcoa Corporation Eaton Corporation plc Steel Dynamics, Inc.
Ball Corporation Genuine Parts Company United States Steel Corporation
Cleveland-Cliffs Inc. Illinois Tool Works Inc. W.W. Grainger, Inc.
Commercial Metals Company LKQ Corporation WESCO International, Inc.
Crown Holdings, Inc. Nucor Corporation Westinghouse Air Brake

Technologies CorporationCummins Inc. PACCAR Inc.

Analysis of 2023 Company and Executive Compensation Peer Group Compensation

In 2023, the Compensation Committee reviewed the Company’s financial statements and stock performance in
comparison to the peer group’s most currently available financial and stock market data. Consistent with the Company’s
pay-for-performance philosophy, the Compensation Committee also considered the total direct compensation (base
salary, annual cash incentive award and equity awards) and retirement plan benefits of the NEOs as compared to
comparable officers in the executive compensation peer group.

Compared to the executive compensation peer group (based on each peer group member’s most recently released
annual financial statements):

the Company ranked at the 38th percentile for revenues in 2023;

the Company’s Pretax Income Margin ranked at the 54th percentile in 2023; and

the Company’s return on total assets ranked at the 71st percentile in 2023 and 80th percentile for the five-
year period ended December 31, 2023.

Based on information provided by the independent compensation consultant, the Compensation Committee determined
that in 2023 the target total direct compensation of: (i) our CEO approximated the 35th percentile of the chief executive
officers in our executive compensation peer group; (ii) our CFO approximated the 25th percentile of the chief financial
officers in our executive compensation peer group; and (iii) the target total direct compensation of our other NEOs fell
between the 50th and 67th percentiles of the comparable executive officers in our executive compensation peer group.

Internal Pay Equity

The Compensation Committee broadly considers internal pay equity when setting compensation levels for our executives
in order to foster a team culture among the executive officers. Our executive compensation program uses the same
compensation components for all of our NEOs, with a few exceptions. In 2022 and 2023, 80% of all NEO target equity
awards issued have been performance-based and 20% have been service-based. Our annual cash incentive award
program provides all NEOs the same target annual cash incentive award opportunity of 150% of their respective base
salary based on identical performance objectives.
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PRINCIPAL COMPONENTS OF OUR EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM

Base Salary

The base salary payable to each of our NEOs is the minimum compensation that such executive receives in any year.
Base salaries reflect the individual skills, experience and roles and responsibilities of the NEO within the Company.

The Compensation Committee reviews NEO salaries annually and makes adjustments to reflect merit, promotion or
change in role and changes in market salaries for similar positions.

In July 2023, after a review of the base salaries of comparable officers at companies in our executive compensation peer
group and in consultation with the independent compensation consultant, the Compensation Committee recommended,
and the independent directors of the Board approved, base salary increases for the NEOs as follows: 4.2% for
Mrs. Lewis; 4.3% for Mr. Durham and 2.4% for Mr. Smith. In addition, Mr. Koch’s base salary was increased by 9.1% and
Mr. Ajemyan’s base salary increased 17.4% in connection with the implementation of the Company’s strategic long-term
management succession plan, in recognition of their performance and value to the Company, and to encourage their
retention. These base salary increases were effective as of July 2023. Consistent with our historical pay practices, even
after these adjustments, base salaries as a percentage of our NEOs target compensation were below the 25th percentile
compared to comparable officers in our executive compensation peer group.

We do not have employment agreements with any of our executive officers. No executive officer has a minimum base
salary or guaranteed salary increase.

Annual Cash Incentive Awards

In 2023, the Compensation Committee employed Pretax Income Margin and Tons Sold Growth as the metrics for
measuring the Company’s financial performance under the annual cash incentive plan. The Compensation Committee
selected Pretax Income Margin because it aligns with how management and the Board measure the Company’s
performance and is typically one of the most important metrics used in the Company’s corporate and operational
decision-making. Tons Sold Growth was selected as a performance metric by the Compensation Committee because it is
a key performance indicator used by the Board and management to measure and evaluate one of the important
underlying performance elements of the Company’s business. Tons Sold Growth is calculated consistent with our
financial reporting and excludes the Company’s toll processing tonnage. The Compensation Committee believes that
Tons Sold Growth is a key performance indicator used by the Board and management to measure and evaluate one of
the important underlying performance elements of the Company’s business against the Company’s industry peers and
because it motivates growth and complements and achieves an appropriate balance with the Pretax Income Margin
metric.

In 2023, target annual cash incentive opportunities compared to similar executives of companies in our executive
compensation peer group approximate: (i) the 25th percentile for our President and CEO (reflecting her promotion into
the CEO role); and (ii) the 60th percentile for our other NEOs in aggregate.

In concert with the Company’s compensation philosophy of overweighting performance-based pay, our NEOs have
annual cash incentive opportunities that may result in higher cash payments than those for comparable officers within
our executive compensation peer group, but such awards are only payable if the Company meets demanding objectives.

This structure currently results in total target cash compensation: (i) that approximates the 25th percentile for our CEO
(reflecting her 2023 promotion into the CEO role) and between the 25th percentile and 50th percentile for our CFO
compared to their counterparts in our executive compensation peer group; (ii) above the 75th percentile for Mr. Smith
compared to Senior Vice Presidents and General Counsels in our executive compensation peer group; and (iii) between
the 50th and 60th percentiles for our other NEOs compared to similar executives of companies in our executive
compensation peer group.

As in past years, each NEO had a 2023 target annual cash incentive award of 150% of their respective base salaries. In
2023, 90% of any award earned under the annual cash incentive plan was based on Pretax Income Margin and 10% of
any award earned was based on Tons Sold Growth.

The Pretax Income Margin portion of the 2023 annual cash incentive plan opportunity was established by the
Compensation Committee on a sliding scale, ranging from zero for results below the 3.50% Pretax Income Margin
threshold, of base salary for results at the 3.50% Pretax Income Margin threshold, a target of 135% of base salary for

 
investor.reliance.com 2024 Proxy Statement / 43



TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

results at 6.00% Pretax Income Margin up to a maximum of 270% of base salary for Pretax Income Margin of 9.00% or
higher. If the Company achieved a Pretax Income Margin within the range of 3.50% and 9.00%, then mathematical
interpolation would be applied to determine the actual incentive award in the applicable range (threshold to target or
target to maximum).

In addition to Pretax Income Margin, the Compensation Committee set a portion of the 2023 target annual cash incentive
award to be earned based upon Tons Sold Growth at 15.0% of base salary, which amount would be earned if Tons Sold
Growth exceeded the MSCI Benchmark by 1.0%. The maximum award of 30.0% of base salary would be earned if tons
sold exceeded the MSCI Benchmark by 2.0%. No payment would be made under the Tons Sold Growth metric if the
Company’s Tons Sold Growth underperformed the MSCI Benchmark.

When analyzing the actual and potential payouts under the Company’s annual cash incentive plan, especially its
maximum incentive awards and resulting cash compensation levels, the Committee found the plan supported its pay-for-
performance principles in 2023.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation

The Compensation Committee recommends grants of annual discretionary equity awards for the NEOs, but the
independent directors of the full Board approve all such grants. The Compensation Committee considers executive
compensation peer group data from the independent compensation consultant as well as the recommendations of our
CEO with respect to any grants of equity awards to the NEOs (other than the CEO) and other executive officers, as well
as to corporate officers and other key employees.

In making its recommendations to the independent directors, the Compensation Committee considers the position of the
NEO, his or her importance to the Company’s results and operations, his or her individual performance and
contributions, the equity awards previously granted to that individual, the terms and market value of the equity grant, the
total value of the equity grant and the relative number of such recommended grants among the various individuals then
under consideration for grants, as well as the potential dilution and the related expense as a percentage of pretax
income. The Committee also considers market data for executives in comparable positions within our executive
compensation peer group.

In 2022 and 2023, 80% of all NEO target equity awards have been performance-based and 20% have been service-
based. The allocation of performance-based and service-based awards is intended to balance performance and
retention objectives. In striking an appropriate mix between service- and performance-based equity awards, the
Compensation Committee sought to design a policy that incentivizes strong performance balanced with the retention
value of our long-term equity awards since the Company does not maintain employment agreements with its executive
officers. The RSUs will be forfeited if the ROA results are not achieved at or above the threshold (for performance-based
awards), or the individual voluntarily leaves the Company or is terminated for cause. The award agreements for the
RSUs provide for prorated vesting if an individual’s employment terminates (i) due to a qualifying retirement, death or
disability or (ii) without cause following a change in control.

ROA for the performance period is calculated as the average of the three years of annual ROA (operating income for the
year (as adjusted for certain non-recurring items) divided by the average total assets for the year) in the performance
period. Mathematical interpolation is applied to determine the actual incentive award if the calculated ROA result is within
the applicable range (threshold to target or target to maximum).

ROA
Number of RSUs

Vested

Threshold 6.00% 25.0%

Target 8.00% 100.0%
Maximum 13.00% 200.0%

The value of RSU awards granted in 2023 to (i) Mrs. Lewis was below the median but above the 25th percentile
reflecting her promotion to the CEO role and (ii) the other NEOs were between the 40th percentile and the 67th
percentiles, except for Mr. Ajemyan who approximated the 25th percentile.

Results for the performance-based equity awards granted in 2021 were determined in the first quarter of 2024 and
resulted in 200.0% of the target number of awards vesting based on an ROA of 21.4% in the three-year performance
period.
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SERP and Deferred Compensation Plan

SERP. In 1996, the Company adopted the SERP to provide post-retirement benefits to certain of our executive officers
and other key employees at that time and also to provide for a pre-retirement death benefit. The SERP was amended
and restated effective as of January 1, 2009 at which time it was frozen to new participants. The 2009 amendment and
restatement shifted the risk of the performance of the individual’s retirement plan investments from the Company to the
participants, eliminated the offsets to the SERP benefit and reduced the benefit amount to 38% of the average of the
participant’s highest five years total cash compensation during the final ten years of employment (down from 50% and
including offsets for the value of Company contributions to the Reliance Steel & Aluminum Co. Master 401(k) Plan (the
“401(k) Plan”) and the Reliance Steel & Aluminum Co. Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) as well as social
security benefits). The 2009 amendment and restatement also brought the SERP into compliance with Rule 409A under
the Internal Revenue Code, among other things. Because of her long tenure with the Company, Mrs. Lewis is the only
remaining active participant in the SERP.

Deferred Compensation Plan. The Company adopted the Deferred Compensation Plan to provide supplemental
retirement benefits to certain key employees as well as to combine and replace certain deferred compensation plans and
supplemental executive retirement plans that existed at certain companies when we acquired them. The Deferred
Compensation Plan does not provide for any minimum or guaranteed rate of return.

The Deferred Compensation Plan was amended and restated effective January 1, 2013 to allow all corporate officers
and subsidiary officers to participate. Messrs. Ajemyan, Durham, Koch and Smith received discretionary Company
contributions under the Deferred Compensation Plan in 2023.

The Compensation Committee considers the SERP benefits and any benefits under the Deferred Compensation Plan in
its analysis of each of the NEOs’ total compensation. In comparing the discretionary Company contribution benefit under
the Deferred Compensation Plan to the retirement benefits offered to similar executives at companies in our executive
compensation peer group, the Compensation Committee found that the target values for Messrs. Ajemyan, Koch,
Durham and Smith would be between the 25th and 50th percentiles.

In addition, as a former employee of Earle M. Jorgensen Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reliance, Mr. Durham
is entitled to receive the cash equivalent of approximately 725 shares of Reliance common stock with a market value of 
$202,868 as of December 31, 2023 under the Earle M. Jorgensen Company Supplemental Bonus Plan (the “EMJ Bonus
Plan”).

Other Benefits

Limited Perquisites. Perquisites provided by the Company are limited in both type and monetary value. The Company
reimburses certain of our NEOs for certain memberships used primarily for business purposes.

Other Benefits. Other than the SERP and the Deferred Compensation Plan (and, for Mr. Durham, the EMJ Bonus Plan),
described above, the NEOs participate in the Company’s health, welfare, retirement and other plans, such as the 401(k)
Plan and the ESOP, on the same basis as these benefits are generally available to all eligible employees. The ESOP
plan is closed to new enrollment and the Company is not currently making annual contributions to the plan.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

No Employment Agreements; Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

We do not have individual employment agreements that provide change in control or severance benefits to any of our
executive officers, including the NEOs. We have been successful in attracting and retaining an experienced and effective
management team without the use of such agreements. Most of our executives have been with Reliance for many years
and have built their careers at Reliance and/or its subsidiaries. On average, our NEOs have more than 15 years’ tenure
with Reliance and over 27 years of industry experience. Generally, if an employee ceases to be employed at the
Company before his or her RSUs vest, these units will expire on the date the employee is terminated. However, the
executive (or their beneficiary) is eligible to receive a prorated payout of his or her RSUs based on the number of days
employed during the vesting period if the termination of employment is without cause following a change in control or
results from death, disability, or qualifying retirement.
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The following table and discussion set forth the estimated incremental value that would have been transferred to each
NEO under various scenarios relating to a termination of employment if such termination had occurred on December 31,
2023. The actual amounts that would be paid to any NEO upon termination of employment can only be determined at the
time of an actual termination of employment and would vary from those listed below.

Estimated Benefits Upon Termination or Change in Control

Qualified
Retirement

($)

Termination
for Cause

($)

Termination
Without Cause

($)

Termination
Without Cause

Following
Change-in-

Control
($)

Change-in-
Control Only

($)
Death

($)
Disability

($)
Karla R. Lewis
Cash severance payment — — — — — — —
Value of accelerating vesting of

incentive compensation 11,654,048 — — 11,654,048 — 11,654,048 11,654,048
Continuation of benefits — — — — — — —
Pension and nonqualified

compensation benefit 1,188,192 — 1,188,192 2,153,302 — — 1,188,192
Total 12,842,240 — 1,188,192 13,807,350 — 11,654,048 12,842,240
Arthur Ajemyan
Cash severance payment — — — — — — —
Value of accelerating vesting of

incentive compensation 3,431,829 — — 3,431,829 — 3,431,829 3,431,829
Continuation of benefits — — — — — — —
Pension and nonqualified

compensation benefit 99,770 — — 99,770 99,770 99,770 99,770
Total 3,531,599 — — 3,531,599 99,770 3,531,599 3,531,599
Stephen P. Koch
Cash severance payment — — — — — — —
Value of accelerating vesting of

incentive compensation 5,435,561 — — 5,435,561 — 5,435,561 5,435,561
Continuation of benefits — — — — — — —
Pension and nonqualified

compensation benefit — — — — — — —
Total 5,435,561 — — 5,435,561 — 5,435,561 5,435,561
Jeffrey W. Durham
Cash severance payment — — — — — — —
Value of accelerating vesting of

incentive compensation 3,431,829 — — 3,431,829 — 3,431,829 3,431,829
Continuation of benefits — — — — — — —
Pension and nonqualified

compensation benefit — — — — — — —
Total 3,431,829 — — 3,431,829 — 3,431,829 3,431,829
William A. Smith II
Cash severance payment — — — — — — —
Value of accelerating vesting of

incentive compensation 3,431,829 — — 3,431,829 — 3,431,829 3,431,829
Continuation of benefits — — — — — — —
Pension and nonqualified

compensation benefit — — — — — — —
Total 3,431,829 — — 3,431,829 — 3,431,829 3,431,829
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Includes the prorated value of the number of unvested RSUs granted in 2022 and 2023 based on Company ROA calculated over a
shortened measurement period ended December 31, 2023.
Excludes certain benefits generally available to salaried employees, such as certain disability benefits, accrued vacation and
distributions under our 401(k) and ESOP plans.
Represents the amount of benefit in excess of the present value of accumulated benefits payable on retirement by the SERP or
the amount of unvested company contributions under the Deferred Compensation Plan (see page 45).

The annual cash incentive and 2021 performance-based RSU awards do not provide incremental value upon termination
or a change in control without termination occurring on December 31, 2023, as the NEO would be fully vested in the
2023 annual cash incentive and the performance-based restricted stock awards granted in 2021, having been employed
throughout the entire performance period.

The SERP provides that if a participant is terminated without cause following a change in control or after the participant
has attained age 55 and completed 10 years of service, then any unvested rights of a participant to receive certain
retirement benefits under the SERP shall become fully vested.

The Deferred Compensation Plan provides that a participant becomes vested in any Company contributions upon the
earlier of: (i) the date such participant attains age 55 and has at least five years of service in an eligible role; and (ii) the
date such participant attains age 62. The Deferred Compensation Plan provides that the participants receive their vested
account balance upon termination and receive their total account balance upon a change in control.

The RSU award agreements provide for the following prorated vesting if an individual’s employment terminates (i) due to
a qualifying retirement, death or disability or (ii) without cause following a change in control (a.k.a., double trigger):

the service-based RSUs will become vested by prorating the number of such RSUs as if the vesting period
ended on the date of the termination, and

the performance-based RSUs will become vested only upon the achievement of the relevant performance
metric measured during a shortened performance period ending on the most recent quarter-end before the
date of the termination, with the number of shares prorated based on such shortened performance period.

Stock Ownership Requirements

Our stock ownership policy requires our officers to own shares of our common stock (including unvested service-based
RSUs) equal in value to a multiple of their respective base salaries within five years from the date of each officer’s
appointment. Includes shares held indirectly under the ESOP and the 401(k) Plan.

The stock ownership guidelines are intended to discourage excessive risk-taking and to reinforce the alignment of
interests between our officers and stockholders. The stock ownership requirements applicable to our senior executive
officers as well as the value of common stock held by them is set forth below:

Role
Stock Ownership

Requirement
Value of Common Stock

Held at 3/28/24 ($)
Multiple of
Base Pay

CEO 5x base salary $ 32,219,631 25.8x
COO and CFO 4x base salary $ 15,990,847 11.2x
Senior Vice Presidents (excluding the CFO) 3x base salary $ 35,702,454 13.3x

All of the NEOs are in compliance with these stock ownership requirements. See the “Securities Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” table below on page 61 for the current stock ownership of our directors and the
NEOs.

Clawback and Recoupment Policy

To further reduce the possibility of excessive risk-taking, and to foster a culture that emphasizes integrity and
accountability, the Compensation Committee has adopted a compensation recovery policy pursuant to which the
Company must recover erroneously awarded performance-based compensation (generally consisting of the annual cash
incentive and performance-based RSUs) from senior officers in the event the Company is required to prepare an
accounting restatement due to material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under
the securities laws (including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial
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statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements, or that would result in a material misstatement if
the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period).

The policy requires the Company to recover reasonably promptly the amount of incentive compensation received by
senior officers that exceeds the incentive compensation that would have been received taking into account the
accounting restatement, regardless of whether the restatement is due to any fault or misconduct on the part of the
officer. The policy complies with, and will be interpreted and administered in a manner consistent with, all applicable laws
and regulations, including without limitation, Section 303A.14 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual and Rule 10D-1 of
the Exchange Act.

Hedging and Pledging Policies

Our Insider Trading and Securities Compliance Policy contains provisions restricting the hedging and pledging of
Company securities by our directors, officers and certain employees.

Derivatives Trading. Directors, officers and designated insider employees subject to our Insider Trading and Securities
Compliance Policy may not purchase or sell options on Reliance common stock or engage in short sales of Reliance
common stock.

Hedging Policy. Directors, officers and designated insider employees subject to our Insider Trading and Securities
Compliance Policy are prohibited from purchasing financial instruments (including prepaid variable forward contracts,
equity swaps, collars and exchange funds) or otherwise engaging in transactions that hedge or offset any change in the
value of the Company’s securities held directly or indirectly by such individual, including units granted as a component of
compensation or otherwise. None of the Company’s directors or executive officers had any such hedging arrangements
in place as of December 31, 2023.

Pledging Policy. Directors, officers and designated insider employees subject to our Insider Trading and Securities
Compliance Policy are prohibited from holding securities of the Company in a margin account or pledging such securities
as collateral for loans, except for securities pledged as of the effective date of the policy or which have already been
pledged at the time an individual becomes a director, officer or designated insider employee. None of the Company’s
directors or executive officers had any such pledging arrangements in place as of December 31, 2023.

Tax and Accounting Considerations

Under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, a publicly held company generally is limited to a $1 million annual
tax deduction for compensation paid to each of its “covered employees”, which include the NEOs as well as certain other
officers who were covered employees. Prior to the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the “TCJA”), certain
“qualified performance-based compensation” was excluded from the $1 million deduction limit. The TCJA eliminated
most of the exceptions from the $1 million deduction limit, except for certain grandfathered arrangements in place as of
November 2, 2017, when the plan is not modified or where amounts payable under the plan are not subject to discretion.
As a result, most of the compensation payable to our NEOs (and other covered employees) in excess of $1 million per
person in a year will not be fully deductible.

While the Compensation Committee believes that the tax deductibility of compensation is a factor to be considered, the
Compensation Committee believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and our stockholders for the Committee
to exercise discretion to grant awards even if the award is not deductible for tax purposes. Despite the limits placed on
the deductibility of all the stock-based compensation earnings of our corporate officers, the tax benefit realized from our
stock-based compensation plans in 2023 was $7.7 million.

Changes to 2024 Incentive Plans

In February 2024, the Compensation Committee, in consultation with Pay Governance, and with input from
management, determined that it would be in the best interests of the Company’s stockholders to update the metrics used
for measuring the Company’s financial performance under the 2024 annual cash incentive plan as well as performance-
based RSU awards granted in 2024.
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The Compensation Committee made the 2024 annual cash incentive plan more demanding by increasing the pretax
income margin targets. As in 2023, the total annual cash incentive opportunity in 2024 for each NEO under the pretax
income margin metric is 135% of their base salary if the targets are achieved. The 2023 pretax income margin metrics
and the increased 2024 metrics are set forth in the table below:

2023 Pretax
Income Margin

Metrics

2023
Performance
Award (% of
Base Salary

2024 Pretax
Income Margin

Metrics

2024
Performance
Award (% of
Base Salary

Threshold 3.50% 20.0% 5.00% 20.0%
Target 6.00% 135.0% 7.50% 135.0%

Maximum 9.00% 270.0% 10.00% 270.0%

The Compensation Committee also made the performance-based RSU awards granted in 2024 more demanding by
increasing the three year ROA performance metrics. As in prior years, the performance-based awards granted in 2024
will vest if the Company achieves an ROA result over the three-year performance period ending December 31, 2026 at
or above a minimum threshold. The 2023 three year ROA performance metrics and the increased 2024 three-year ROA
performance metrics are set forth in the following table:

2023 ROA
Metrics

2023
Number of

RSUs Vested
2024 ROA

Metrics

2024
Number of

RSUs Vested

Threshold 6.00% 25.0% 7.00% 25.0%

Target 8.00% 100.0% 10.00% 100.0%
Maximum 13.00% 200.0% 13.00% 200.0%

As in prior years, 80% of the target performance-based RSU awards granted to the CEO, CFO and COO in 2024 are
performance-based and 20% are service-based. To achieve a more appropriate balance of performance and retention
objectives, 70% of the target performance-based RSU awards granted to the other corporate officers, including the other
two NEOs, in 2024 are performance-based and 30% are service-based.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is composed entirely of the independent, non-employee
directors listed below.

The Compensation Committee has reviewed the CD&A and has discussed it with senior management. Based on the
review and discussions, the Compensation Committee unanimously recommended to the Board of Directors that the
CD&A be included in this proxy statement and, to the extent appropriate, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

This report is submitted on behalf of the members of the Compensation Committee.

Karen W. Colonias, Chair
David W. Seeger

Robert A. McEvoy
Doug W. Stotlar
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES
The following table summarizes certain information concerning the compensation that our NEOs earned for the years
2023, 2022 and 2021.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal
Position Year

Salary
($)

Bonus
($)

Stock
Awards

($)

Option
Awards

($)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)

Change in
Pension Value

and
Nonqualified

Deferred
Compensation

Earnings
($)

All Other
Compensation

($)
Total

($)

Karla R. Lewis
President and Chief Executive
Officer

2023 1,225,000 — 7,200,503 — 3,750,000 1,484,294 659,476 14,319,273

2022 970,000 — 3,800,149 — 2,806,650 — 562,322 8,139,121

2021 925,000 — 3,799,970 — 2,850,000 1,072,943 212,816 8,860,729

Arthur Ajemyan
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

2023 625,000 — 1,399,891 — 2,025,000 — 180,560 4,230,451

2022 562,500 — 1,400,158 — 1,630,125 — 145,223 3,738,006

2021 500,000 — 1,200,005 — 1,650,000 — 51,858 3,401,863

Stephen P. Koch
Executive Vice President,
Chief Operating Officer

2023 718,750 — 3,800,059 — 2,250,000 — 295,236 7,064,045

2022 656,250 — 1,600,124 — 1,949,063 — 266,200 4,471,637

2021 600,000 — 1,359,940 — 1,875,000 — 214,203 4,049,143

Jeffrey W. Durham
Senior Vice President,
Operations

2023 587,500 — 1,399,891 — 1,800,000 — 437,963 4,225,354

William A. Smith II
Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary

2023 622,500 — 1,399,891 — 1,890,000 — 303,119 4,215,510

2022 602,500 — 1,400,158 — 1,743,525 — 282,604 4,028,787

2021 570,000 — 1,289,942 — 1,770,000 — 231,052 3,860,994

The amounts in this column reflect the grant date fair value of the target number of RSUs awarded in 2023, 2022 and 2021. The
values are calculated in accordance with the Stock Compensation topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (the “Codification”) and pursuant to the Company’s equity compensation plans by multiplying
the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date by the number of service-based RSUs and the target number
of performance-based RSUs awarded to each NEO. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 12
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
grant date fair values of performance-based RSUs granted to each NEO in 2023 at the maximum possible payout are as follows:
$12,960,956 for Mrs. Lewis, $6,840,057 for Mr. Koch; and $2,519,904 for Messrs. Ajemyan, Durham and Smith.

Represents earned amounts under the Company’s annual cash incentive plan. See “Principal Components of Our Executive
Compensation Program-Annual Cash Incentive Awards” on page 43 and “Grants of Plan Based Awards” on page 52.

The amounts represent the increase, if any, in the present value of the accumulated benefits payable on the retirement of the NEO
that participates in the SERP in the year presented; $0 is presented in years the present value declined. These amounts are
determined using interest rate and mortality assumptions consistent with those included in Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. The following summarizes the
total change in pension value in 2023 due to the change in the discount rate, mortality tables, and other factors:

Name

Change in
Pension Value
Due to Change

in Discount
Rate

($)

Change in
Pension Value –

All Other
($)

Total Change
in Pension

Value
($)

Karla R. Lewis 130,875 1,353,419 1,484,294
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The 2023 All Other Compensation amounts are composed of the following:

Name

401(k) Plan
Match

Contributions
($)

Company
Contribution to

Deferred
Compensation Plan

($)

Dividend
Equivalents on

RSUs
($)

Internet
Expense

Allowance
and Health

and
Wellness

Benefit
($)

Other
($)

All Other
Compensation

($)
Karla R. Lewis 11,550 — 647,926 — — 659,476
Arthur Ajemyan 11,550 96,261 71,699 1,050 — 180,560
Stephen P. Koch 11,550 80,973 196,914 — 5,799 295,236
Jeffrey W. Durham 11,550 225,806 196,914 — 3,693 437,963
William A. Smith II 11,550 100,800 186,782 900 3,087 303,119

Messrs. Koch, Durham and Smith received one-time payments of $5,799, $818 and $3,087, respectively, to correct the
overwithholding of certain payroll taxes in prior years.

Includes $2,875 of dividends paid on our common stock during 2023 that increased the equivalent Reliance common shares
Mr. Durham is entitled to under the EMJ Bonus Plan (see page 45).

Mr. Durham was not an NEO in 2022 or 2021 and, therefore, in accordance with SEC rules, only fiscal year 2023 compensation
information is presented.

GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS
The following table sets forth plan based awards granted to the NEOs under our annual cash incentive plan and the
Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan during 2023:

Name

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Non-Equity Incentive

Plan Awards

Grant
Date

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Equity

Plan Awards

All Other
Stock

Awards:
Number of
Shares of

Stock or
Units
(#)

All Other
Option

Awards:
Number of
Securities

Underlying
Options

(#)

Exercise
or Base
Price of
Option

Awards
($/sh)

Grant Date
Fair Value

of Stock
and

Option
Awards

($)
Threshold

($)
Target

($)
Maximum

($)
Threshold

(#)
Target

(#)
Maximum

(#)

Karla R. Lewis 250,000 1,875,000 3,750,000 2/17/2023 5,809 23,237 46,474 5,760,452

2/17/2023 5,809 — — 1,440,051

Arthur Ajemyan 135,000 1,012,500 2,025,000 2/17/2023 1,130 4,518 9,036 1,120,012

2/17/2023 1,129 — — 279,879

Stephen P. Koch 150,000 1,125,000 2,250,000 2/17/2023 3,066 12,263 24,526 3,039,998

2/17/2023 3,066 — — 760,061

Jeffrey W. Durham 120,000 900,000 1,800,000 2/17/2023 1,130 4,518 9,036 1,120,012

2/17/2023 1,129 — — 279,879

William A. Smith II 126,000 945,000 1,890,000 2/17/2023 1,130 4,518 9,036 1,120,012

2/17/2023 1,129 — — 279,879

Reflects the threshold, target and maximum payout amounts of non-equity incentive plan awards that were in effect for 2023 under
the annual cash incentive plan. The award amount is determined as a percentage of the NEO’s year-end base salary, with
the percentage based upon the threshold, target and maximum targets. See “Relationship Between Pay and Performance” on
page 33 for further details of our annual cash incentive plan. These columns do not reflect the actual amounts paid, but only
provide an example of how the awards would be calculated under the plan if the specified levels of Pretax Income Margin and
Tons Sold Growth were achieved. Pretax Income Margin and Tons Sold Growth (as calculated per the terms of the plan) for 2023
were 11.7%, which was above the maximum, and 2.2%, respectively, resulting in a payout under the plan equal to 300.0% of each
NEO’s year-end base salary, which amount is included in the Summary Compensation Table, on page 51.

Reflects the threshold, target and maximum number of shares of common stock of the Company for the performance-based RSUs
granted in February 2023 that will vest if the Company achieves certain ROA results. Consistent with prior years, the awards are
subject to a three-year performance measurement period.

Represents the number of service-based RSUs awarded to each NEO in February 2023 that will vest on December 1, 2025 if the
NEO continues to be employed by the Company on such date.
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Reflects the grant date fair value of the service-based RSUs and the target number of performance-based RSUs awarded to each
NEO. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTING
The following table sets forth information for the NEOs with regard to service-based RSUs vested and settled and
performance-based RSUs determined during 2023:

Name

Number of
Shares Acquired

on Vesting (#)
Value Realized

on Vesting ($)

Karla R. Lewis 78,794 19,699,680

Arthur Ajemyan 8,224 2,143,978
Stephen P. Koch 23,555 5,958,580

Jeffrey W. Durham 23,555 5,958,580

William A. Smith II 22,343 5,651,985

The amounts are based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock when the awards are settled. Results for the
performance-based equity awards granted in 2020 were determined in February 2023. The performance-based equity awards
granted in 2020 vested on December 31, 2022, with payouts on the 2020 ROA award above the maximum target, resulting in total
performance shares earned by our NEOs at 200% of the target.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END
The following table sets forth stock awards held by the NEOs at December 31, 2023:

Number of
Shares or

Units of
Stock That

Have Not
Vested (#)

Market
Value of

Shares or
Units of

Stock That
Have Not

Vested ($)

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:

Number of
Unearned

Shares,
Units or

Other
Rights That

Have Not
Vested (#)

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:

Market or
Payout

Value of
Unearned

Shares,
Units or

Other
Rights That

Have Not
Vested ($)

Name
Service-based
RSU awards

Performance-based
RSU awards

Karla R. Lewis 9,701 2,713,176 120,606 33,731,086

Arthur Ajemyan 2,563 716,820 30,692 8,583,939
Stephen P. Koch 4,705 1,315,894 49,176 13,753,544

Jeffrey W. Durham 2,563 716,820 32,048 8,963,185

William A. Smith II 2,563 716,820 31,454 8,797,055

The annual ROA calculated for the year ended December 31, 2023 was above target. As the previous year’s performance
exceeded target levels for each of the performance-based awards, all performance-based awards are reported at maximum levels
in accordance with SEC rules.

The value is based on a price per RSU of $279.68, the closing price of the Company’s common stock on December 31, 2023.

The table below presents the vesting schedule for unvested and vested but unsettled RSU awards (performance-based RSUs are
presented at maximum levels):
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Name Grant Date

Vesting Schedule for Unvested and Vested but Unsettled RSUs
Service-based vesting on

December 1,
Performance-based vesting on

December 31,

2024 2025 2023 2024 2025

Karla R. Lewis 3/23/2021 — — 42,996 — —

3/22/2022 3,892 — — 31,136 —
2/17/2023 — 5,809 — — 46,474

Arthur Ajemyan 3/23/2021 — — 10,184 — —

3/22/2022 1,434 — — 11,472 —
2/17/2023 — 1,129 — — 9,036

Stephen P. Koch 3/23/2021 — — 11,540 — —

3/22/2022 1,639 — — 13,110 —
2/17/2023 — 3,066 — — 24,526

Jeffrey W. Durham 3/23/2021 — — 11,540 — —

3/22/2022 1,434 — — 11,472 —
2/17/2023 — 1,129 — — 9,036

William A. Smith II 3/23/2021 — — 10,946 — —

3/22/2022 1,434 — — 11,472 —

2/17/2023 — 1,129 — — 9,036

PENSION BENEFITS
The estimated present value of accumulated benefits payable by the SERP at the normal retirement age of 65 for the
executive officer named below, determined using interest rate and mortality assumptions consistent with those included
in Note 13 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2023, is as follows:

Name Plan Name

Number
of Years
Credited
Service

Present
Value of

Accumulated
Benefit ($)

Payments
During

2023 ($)

Karla R. Lewis Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 32 9,843,679 —

Messrs. Ajemyan, Koch, Durham and Smith are not participants in the SERP.

Reliance adopted the Deferred Compensation Plan effective December 1, 2008; it was subsequently amended and
restated effective January 1, 2013. The Deferred Compensation Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee.
NEOs who participate in the SERP do not receive contributions from the Company under the Deferred Compensation
Plan.

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Name

Executive
Contributions

in 2023 ($)

Company
Contributions

in 2023 ($)

Aggregate
Gain in

2023 ($)

Aggregate
Withdrawals/ 

Distributions ($)

Aggregate
Balance at

12/31/23 ($)

Arthur Ajemyan 326,025 96,261 141,403 — 926,703

Stephen P. Koch — 80,973 55,778 — 2,141,105

Jeffrey W. Durham — 225,806 402,745 — 2,378,598
William A. Smith II — 100,800 143,146 — 1,062,139
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The 2023 contributions for Messrs. Koch, Durham and Smith were 100% vested when contributed to the plan in February 2024
based on their age and years of service. The 2023 contribution for Mr. Ajemyan vests in 2030. The 2023 Company contributions
were included in “All Other Compensation” in the Summary Compensation Table on page 51.

Of the amounts in this column, $82,000 for Mr. Ajemyan, $1,013,726 for Mr. Koch, and $192,900 for Mr. Smith were included in the
Summary Compensation Table for previous years.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table provides information as of December 31, 2023 regarding shares outstanding and available for
issuance under our Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan and our Directors Equity Plan:

Plan Category

Number of Securities
to be Issued upon

Exercise of
Outstanding

Options,
Warrants and Rights (#)

Weighted Average
Exercise Price
of Outstanding

Options, Warrants
and Rights ($)

Number of
Securities

Remaining
Available for

Future Issuance (#)

Equity compensation plans approved by
our stockholders — — 1,539,738

Equity compensation plans not approved
by our stockholders — — —

Total — — 1,539,738

Includes 1,444,613 shares available for issuance under our Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan and
95,125 shares available for issuance under our Directors Equity Plan.

PAY RATIO DISCLOSURE
Presented below is the ratio of annual total compensation of our CEO to the annual total compensation of our median
employee (excluding our CEO). The ratio presented below is a reasonable estimate calculated in a manner consistent
with Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The pay ratio rules provide companies
with flexibility to select the methodology and assumptions used to identify the median employee, calculate the median
employee’s compensation and estimate the pay ratio. As a result, our methodology may differ from those used by other
companies, which likely will make it very difficult to compare pay ratios with other companies, including those within our
industry.

We identified the median employee from the Company’s employee population as of December 31, 2023. After excluding
employees under the “de minimis exemption”  (as described below), the Company’s employee population consisted of
14,337 employees located in the U.S., Canada, Mexico and the United Kingdom. For purposes of identifying the median
employee, the Company was permitted to exclude up to 5% of its total employees who are non-U.S. employees. The
Company relied on this exemption to exclude the employee populations of the following jurisdictions, which collectively
accounted for less than 5% of the Company’s total employee population of 15,037 as of December 31, 2023:
Belgium (71); France (21); India (4); Malaysia (67); People’s Republic of China (298); Singapore (45); South Korea
(148); Turkey (21); and the United Arab Emirates (25).

In identifying our median employee, we calculated the annual total compensation of each employee for the 12-month
period that ended on December 31, 2023. Annual total compensation for these purposes included base salary, overtime
wages, bonus, commissions, incentives and comparable cash elements of compensation in non-U.S. jurisdictions and
was calculated using internal payroll records. Specifically excluded from the annual compensation measure in identifying
the median employee were retirement benefits and stock-based compensation. The compensation for full-time
employees who were not employed by us for the entire 12-month period was annualized to reflect compensation for the
entire 12-month period.

The 2023 annual total compensation for our CEO as determined under Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K was $14,319,273.
As reflected in the Summary Compensation Table, $7,200,503 of our CEO’s total 2023 compensation was equity-based
of which 80% is tied to performance targets. The 2023 annual total compensation for our median employee was $72,742.
The ratio of our CEO’s annual total compensation to our median employee’s total cash compensation for fiscal year 2023
is approximately 197 to 1.
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The SEC’s rules for identifying the median compensated employee and calculating the pay ratio based on that
employee’s annual total compensation allow companies to adopt a variety of methodologies, to apply certain exclusions,
and to make reasonable estimates and assumptions that reflect their employee populations and compensation practices.
As a result, the pay ratio reported by other companies may not be comparable to the pay ratio reported above, as other
companies have different employee populations and compensation practices and may utilize different methodologies,
exclusions, estimates and assumptions in calculating their own pay ratios.

PAY VERSUS PERFORMANCE
As required by Item 402(v) of Regulation S-K, we are providing the following information concerning pay versus
performance. The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of our CEO and other NEOs for
each of the fiscal years ending December 31, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020, and our financial performance for each such
fiscal year:

Year

Summary
Compensation

Table Total
for CEO

($)

CAP
to CEO

($)

Average Summary
Compensation

Table Total
for Non-CEO

Named Executive
Officers

($)

Average
CAP

to Non-CEO
Named Executive

Officers
($)

Value of Initial Fixed
$100 Investment Based on:

Net Income
($ in millions)

Annual
ROA

Total
Stockholder

Return
($)

Peer Group
Total

Stockholder
Return

($)

2023 14,319,273 23,779,336 4,933,840 8,260,700 251.8 212.1 1,340.1 16.7%

2022 14,944,260 31,322,752 5,094,388 9,370,352 179.5 154.5 1,844.2 25.3%

2021 14,245,016 47,236,660 5,032,109 11,357,546 141.3 157.2 1,417.4 22.2%

2020 13,100,453 14,073,926 6,003,050 4,913,818 102.5 117.6 372.4 8.9%

In 2023, the CEO was Karla R. Lewis; in 2020, 2021 and 2022, the CEO was James D. Hoffman. In 2023, the other NEOs were
Stephen P. Koch, Arthur Ajemyan, Jeffery W. Durham and William A. Smith II. In 2022, the other NEOs were Mrs. Lewis and
Messrs. Koch, Ajemyan and Smith. In 2021, the other NEOs were Mrs. Lewis and Messrs. Koch, Ajemyan and Smith as well as
William K. Sales, Jr. and Michael P. Shanley. In 2020, the other NEOs were Mrs. Lewis and Messrs. Koch, Sales and Shanley.

For each year presented, reflects the “Total” compensation set forth in the Summary Compensation Table (“SCT”) on page 51 with
respect to our CEO and the average (mean) of the “Total” compensation for the non-CEO NEOs set forth above for the years
presented. See the footnotes to the SCT for further detail regarding the amounts in this column.

Compensation actually paid, or “CAP”, is computed in accordance with Item 402(v) of Regulation S-K. The tables below present
the adjustments made to the respective amounts set forth in the SCT, determined in accordance with SEC rules.

CEO
2023

($)

Total Compensation as reported in Summary Compensation Table (SCT) 14,319,273

Less: Grant date fair value of equity awards granted during the year included in SCT (7,200,503

Plus: Year-end fair value of equity awards granted in the year that remain unvested as of the last day of the
year 11,373,187

Plus: Change in fair value from last day of prior year to last day of year of unvested equity awards 2,705,563

Plus: Change in fair value from last day of prior year to vesting date of unvested equity awards that vested
during year 3,731,961

Less: Change in Pension Value reported in SCT (1,484,294

Plus: Pension value service cost 334,149

Compensation actually paid 23,779,336
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NON-CEO
(AVERAGE)

2023
($)

Total Compensation as reported in Summary Compensation Table (SCT) 4,933,840

Less: Grant date fair value of equity awards granted during the year included in SCT (1,999,933

Plus: Year-end fair value of equity awards granted in the year that remain unvested as of the last day of the
year 3,158,916

Plus: Change in fair value from last day of prior year to last day of year of unvested equity awards 1,032,448

Plus: Change in fair value from last day of prior year to vesting date of unvested equity awards that vested
during year 1,135,429

Less: Change in Pension Value reported in SCT —

Plus: Pension value service cost —

Compensation actually paid 8,260,700

Fair value of equity awards is calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation. The fair value of unvested service-based RSUs, as well as
the fair value of all RSUs upon vesting, is based upon the closing sales price for a share of Reliance common stock on the
NYSE for the applicable date of measurement. The fair value of unvested performance-based RSUs is based upon the
probable outcome of the applicable performance conditions at the time of measurement.

Service cost is calculated as the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to services rendered by the executive during
the applicable fiscal year under the SERP, using the same methodology used in the Company’s GAAP financial statements
included in its Annual Reports on Form 10-K.

Reflects the cumulative total stockholder return of the Company and an industry peer group consisting of publicly-traded metals
service center companies (the “industry peer group”), which is the same industry peer group included in the stock performance
graph furnished with our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2020, the two-years ended
December 31, 2021, the three years ended December 31, 2022 and the four years ended December 31, 2023, assuming a $100
investment at the closing price on December 31, 2019 and the reinvestment of all dividends. The cumulative total stockholder
return reflects market prices at the end of each year and the reinvestment of dividends. Since there is no nationally-recognized
industry index consisting of metals service center companies to be used as a peer group index, Reliance constructed the industry
peer group. The industry peer group consists of Olympic Steel Inc., which has securities listed for trading on NASDAQ; Ryerson
Holding Corporation and Worthington Enterprises, Inc., each of which has securities listed for trading on the NYSE; and Russel
Metals Inc., which has securities listed for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange. The returns of each member of the industry
peer group are weighted according to that member’s stock market capitalization.
In December 2023, Worthington Industries, Inc., which was included in the industry peer group at December 31, 2022, split into
Worthington Enterprises, Inc. and Worthington Steel, Inc. The newly traded Worthington Steel, Inc. common stock received by the
holders of Worthington Enterprises, Inc. common stock at the distribution date is not included in the cumulative total return of the
industry peer group.
Reflects the “Net Income” caption in the consolidated statements of income included in the Company’s Annual Reports on
Form 10-K for each of the years ended December 31.
Annual ROA (operating income divided by average total assets for the year) is a non-GAAP financial measure calculated in
accordance with our performance-based RSU awards and excludes various non-recurring charges and credits. Please refer to
page 31 of this proxy statement for a reconciliation of operating income, excluding various non-recurring charges and credits, to
the “operating income” caption in the consolidated statements of income included in the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K
for each of the years ended December 31.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPENSATION ACTUALLY PAID AND PERFORMANCE
The graphs presented below present the relationship during 2020-2023 of CAP for our CEO and the average CAP of our
non-CEO NEOs to: (1) our cumulative TSR and the cumulative TSR of the constituent companies in our industry peer
group; (2) net income; and (3) the Company’s annual ROA.

A significant portion of our executive compensation program is comprised of performance-based equity awards (see
page 44), which were expected to be settled between 100.0% and 200.0% of target for the outstanding performance-
based RSUs during each of the years of 2020-2023. We believe our sequential record financial performance in each of
the years 2022 and 2021 and significant increases in our TSR during those years when compared to 2020 drove
increases in compensation actually paid to our NEOs. For 2023, our TSR was greater than in each of the years 2022 and
2021, however compensation actually paid to our non-NEOs declined as a result of the promotion of our President (non-
CEO in 2020-2022) to CEO in 2023.

CAP, as required under SEC rules, reflects changes in fair value to unvested and vested equity awards that generally
fluctuates from year to year due to the number of RSUs vested during the year, year-end stock prices and changes in the
estimated number of common shares that are expected to settle performance-based RSU units based on the probable
achievement of performance goals. Unvested awards remain subject to significant risk from forfeiture conditions and
future declines in value based on changes in our stock price. The presented CAP amounts are presented under
calculations required by SEC rules, which do not reflect the actual compensation realized by our NEOs. The ultimate
values actually realized by our NEOs from unvested equity awards, if any, will not be determined until the awards vest
and settle.

CAP VS. ANNUAL ROA

Reliance’s profitability measures during the periods presented were significantly impacted by changes in metals pricing. Year-over-
year changes in average selling price per ton sold: decreased 9.6% in 2020; increased 54.3% in 2021; increased 18.5% in 2022;
and decreased 16.4% in 2023.

The lower CEO and non-CEO CAP in 2023 as compared to 2022 was consistent with Mrs. Lewis’ promotion into the
CEO role during 2023 and a portion of her CAP comprised of long-term equity incentive awards granted while in the
President (non-CEO) role in 2022 and 2021. Our executive compensation program is aligned with our business strategy
and with creating long-term stockholder value by paying for performance, with a significant portion of NEOs’ pay subject
to risk
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and performance. Reflecting our strong pay-for-performance compensation philosophy, our strong results delivered to
stockholders generally translated into above-target payouts of equity awards.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MEASURES
The most important financial performance measures used by the Company in setting pay-for-performance compensation
for the most recently completed fiscal year are described in the table below. These measures are unranked. The manner
in which these measures, together with certain non-financial performance measures, determine the amounts of incentive
compensation paid to our NEOs is described above in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” section.

Significant Financial Performance Measures
Annual ROA
Gross Profit and Margin
Pretax Income and Margin
Tons Sold Growth
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
The Company’s philosophy is to provide competitive compensation necessary to attract and retain high-quality non-
employee directors. We compensate each non-employee director with an annual retainer as well as an annual grant of
stock awards. We do not pay additional fees for attendance at Board meetings, committee meetings, and meetings of the
non-management or independent directors. We pay additional amounts to the chairs of the standing committees of the
Board and the non-executive Chair of the Board. Directors who are employees of the Company (currently, Mrs. Lewis)
receive no additional compensation for service as a director. All directors are reimbursed for expenses incurred in
connection with Board meetings, committee meetings, and meetings of the non-management or independent directors.

In 2023, each non-employee director was paid an annual cash retainer of $140,000 and received an award of 615
shares of stock awards (approximately $150,000 grant date fair value) which are not subject to vesting criteria. In
addition, the Company paid the Audit Committee Chair an annual retainer of $25,000; the Compensation Committee
Chair an annual retainer of $20,000; and the Nominating and Governance Committee Chair an annual retainer of
$20,000. The Company’s non-executive Chair of the Board also received an annual retainer of $150,000. All cash
payments to directors in 2023 were paid in equal quarterly installments.

The Nominating and Governance Committee reviews the competitiveness of director compensation every other year,
including the appropriateness of the form, mix and amount of director compensation, and makes recommendations to the
Board concerning such compensation with a view toward attracting and retaining qualified directors. The Nominating and
Governance Committee also seeks advice from the Company’s independent compensation consultant.

DIRECTOR SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
The following table sets forth certain information regarding fees paid and the Company expense for equity awards issued
to Directors under the Directors Equity Plan during 2023. Mrs. Lewis and Mr. Hoffman did not receive any additional
compensation from the Company for their service as directors.

Name

Fees
Earned or

Paid in
Cash ($)

Stock
Awards ($) Total ($)

Lisa L. Baldwin 140,000 149,820 289,820
Karen W. Colonias 160,000 149,820 309,820

Frank J. Dellaquila 165,000 149,820 314,820

John G. Figueroa 70,000 — 70,000
Mark V. Kaminski 290,000 149,820 439,820

Robert A. McEvoy 140,000 149,820 289,820

David W. Seeger 140,000 149,820 289,820
Douglas W. Stotlar 160,000 149,820 309,820

The amounts in this column reflect a $243.61 grant date fair value per share, determined based on the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 12
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
stock awards were granted to non-employee directors on May 17, 2023 and fully vested on the grant date.
Mr. Figueroa retired from the Board of Directors as of the 2023 Annual Meeting.
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SECURITIES OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following table sets forth certain information as of March 28, 2024, with respect to the beneficial ownership of our
common stock by (i) persons or groups known to Reliance to be beneficial owners of more than five percent (5%) of
Reliance’s common stock, (ii) each director and each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table and
(iii) all directors and executive officers as a group:

Names and Address of Beneficial Owner

Amount and
Nature of

Beneficial
Ownership

Percentage of
Outstanding

Shares Owned

The Vanguard Group
100 Vanguard Blvd.
Malvern, PA 19355

6,975,859 12.15%

BlackRock, Inc.
50 Hudson Yards
New York, NY 10001

6,284,722 10.94%

Arthur Ajemyan 11,875 *

Lisa L. Baldwin 3,586 *
Karen W. Colonias 8,241 *

Frank J. Dellaquila 1,382 *

Jeffrey W. Durham 26,573 *
James D. Hoffman 147,880 *

Mark V. Kaminski 18,959 *
Stephen P. Koch 20,421 *

Karla R. Lewis 74,183 *

Robert A. McEvoy 22,951 *
David W. Seeger 1,382 *

William A. Smith II 19,291 *

Douglas W. Stotlar 8,241 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (16 persons) 398,030 *

Less than 1%.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner is 16100 N. 71st St., Suite 400, Scottsdale, Arizona 85254.
Reliance has been advised that the named stockholders have the sole power to vote and to dispose of the shares set forth after
their names, except as noted.
The Vanguard Group filed an amended Schedule 13G on February 13, 2024 in which it identifies itself as an investment advisor
having shared voting power over 34,859 shares, shared dispositive power over 82,437 shares and sole dispositive power over
6,893,422 shares.
BlackRock, Inc. filed an amended Schedule 13G on January 24, 2024 in which it identifies itself as a parent holding company, with
sole voting power over 5,862,212 shares and sole dispositive power over 6,284,722 shares.
Excludes 1,308 shares and 1,148 shares with respect to which Mr. Ajemyan has a vested right and shared voting power pursuant
to our ESOP and 401(k) plan, respectively. Excludes 18,511 unvested RSUs.
Includes 615 shares owned by Ms. Colonias and 7,626 shares held by Ms. Colonias as trustee of the Colonias Family Trust.

Excludes 1,854 shares with respect to which Mr. Durham has a vested right and shared voting power pursuant to our 401(k) plan.
Excludes 17,800 unvested RSUs.
Includes 49,495 shares held by Mr. Hoffman, 44,343 equivalent common shares beneficially owned by Mr. Hoffman for vested and
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unsettled RSUs and 54,042 held by Hoff Holdings Limited Partnership (“Hoff Holdings”). Hoff Holdings is a limited partnership of
which a revocable trust established by Mr. Hoffman and his spouse is both the sole member of the sole general partner and also a
limited partner, and various trusts for the benefit of Mr. Hoffman’s spouse and his adult children are the other limited partners.
Mr. Hoffman shares beneficial ownership of the Reliance common stock held by Hoff Holdings. Excludes 1,197 shares and 3,684
shares with respect to which Mr. Hoffman has a vested right and shared voting power pursuant to our ESOP and 401(k) plan,
respectively.

Includes 10,482 shares owned by Mr. Kaminski and 8,477 shares held by Mr. Kaminski as trustee of the Elizabeth S. Kaminski Gift
Trust.

Excludes 747 shares and 1,098 shares with respect to which Mr. Koch has a vested right and shared voting power pursuant to our
ESOP and 401(k) plan, respectively. Excludes 37,759 unvested RSUs.

Excludes 7,199 shares and 206 shares with respect to which Mrs. Lewis has a vested right and shared voting power pursuant to
our ESOP and 401(k) plan, respectively. Excludes 74,132 unvested RSUs.

Includes 21,741 shares owned by Mr. McEvoy and 1,210 shares held as custodian for his children under the Uniform Transfers to
Minors Act. Mr. McEvoy disclaims beneficial ownership of the 1,210 shares held as custodian for his children.

Excludes 417 shares with respect to which Mr. Smith has a vested right and shared voting power pursuant to our ESOP. Excludes
17,800 unvested RSUs.

All shares are held by Kivi Talo Holdings LLC of which Mr. Stotlar is the sole member.
See notes 5 through 14, plus 33,065 shares held by other executive officers; excludes 820 shares and 5,826 shares with respect
to which the other executive officers have a vested right and shared voting power pursuant to our ESOP and 401(k) plan,
respectively. Excludes 45,313 unvested RSUs.
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GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors has adopted Principles of Corporate Governance outlining the responsibilities of the Board.
These Principles of Corporate Governance are posted on the Company’s website at
https://investor.reliance.com/corporate-governance-documents and are available in print to any stockholder who
requests a copy from our Corporate Secretary at the address shown on the first page of this proxy statement. The
Board’s primary role is to represent the interests of the Company’s stockholders in strategic and material decisions of the
Company. Among the most important responsibilities are the determination of corporate policies, the identification and
nomination of qualified independent directors, the selection and evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer, the ongoing
review of the senior management team, planning for management succession and the determination of executive
compensation. The Board also provides advice and guidance to management on a broad range of strategic decisions,
including the review and approval of each significant acquisition and the annual capital expenditure budget, and annually
reviews and approves management’s succession plan. In addition, the Board reviews management’s safety program and
record.

SIZE AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD
The Board of Directors presently consists of nine directors, seven of whom are independent. All directors are elected to
serve a one-year term. Since Mr. Hoffman is retiring from the Board and will not stand for re-election at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders in May 2024, the Board expects to reduce the size of the Board to eight directors, of whom
seven will be independent. The Board has adopted a policy that directors should not stand for re-election after reaching
age 75.

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
Board members are expected to attend each Board meeting and each meeting of any committee on which such Board
member serves, and are encouraged to attend the Company’s Annual Meeting. In addition, annually, the Board will tour
one or more of the Company’s facilities and meet with local management of those facilities, as well as hold a strategic
planning session. During 2023, the Board of Directors met ten times, including meetings held by conference telephone
call. All current directors attended at least 90% of the Board and committee meetings in 2023. All nine directors then
serving on the Board attended the virtual Annual Meeting held in May 2023.

COMMUNICATING WITH THE BOARD
Stockholders or other interested parties may communicate with members of the Board of Directors individually or with
the Board of Directors as a whole by sending a letter to the appropriate director or the Board in care of the Corporate
Secretary of Reliance at the Company’s corporate headquarters address appearing at the top of the first page of this
proxy statement. All mail, other than trivial, obscene, unduly hostile, threatening, illegal or similarly unsuitable items, will
be forwarded. Non-urgent items will be delivered to the directors at the next scheduled Board meeting. Mail addressed to
a particular director will be forwarded or delivered to that director. Mail addressed to the “Board of Directors”, “Outside
Directors” or “Non-Employee Directors” will be forwarded or delivered to the non-executive Chair.

PROXY ACCESS
The Company’s proxy access bylaw provision permits a stockholder, or a group of up to 20 stockholders, owning at least
three percent (3%) of the Company’s outstanding common stock continuously for at least three years, to nominate and
include in the Company’s proxy statement director nominees for up to the greater of two directors or 25% of the number
of directors then serving on the Board, subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Company’s Bylaws. We did
not receive any director nominations under our proxy access bylaw for the Annual Meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT
Reliance has a Code of Conduct, which includes a code of ethics, that applies to all directors, executive officers and
senior management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer. Code of Conduct training is assigned to all new
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employees upon hire and to existing employees regularly. The Code of Conduct training includes a certification to
confirm that employees are familiar with and agree to abide by the Code of Conduct and that they have reported,
pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Conduct, any suspected or potential violations of law or Company policy.

Employees are required to report any conduct that they believe to be an actual or apparent violation of the Company’s
policies on business conduct. Retaliation against any employee who seeks advice, raises a concern, reports misconduct,
or provides information in an investigation is strictly prohibited. Our Audit Committee has procedures to receive, retain
and treat complaints received regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters and to address
confidential and anonymous submissions by employees with concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing
matters.

In addition, the following documents are available on our website at https://investor.reliance.com/corporate-governance-
documents and in print to any stockholder who requests them:

Code of Conduct;

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy;

U.S. Political Activity and Spending Practices Policy; and

Human Rights Policy.

To facilitate the reporting of questionable accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters, the Company has
established an anonymous reporting hotline and website through which employees can submit complaints on a
confidential and anonymous basis. The hotline and website are provided by an independent third-party and are available
worldwide. These reports are confidential and anonymous. Procedures are in place to investigate all reports received by
the hotline relating to questionable accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters and to take corrective
action, if necessary. The Audit Committee is notified of these reports at every quarterly committee meeting, or sooner, if
necessary.

In the event Reliance amends or waives any of the provisions of the Code of Conduct applicable to our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller that relates to any element of the
definition of “code of ethics” enumerated in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
Reliance intends to disclose these actions on its website.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board of Directors has authorized three standing committees:

the Audit Committee;

the Compensation Committee; and

the Nominating and Governance Committee.

The charters for each of these committees, as well as our Principles of Corporate Governance are available on our
website at https://investor.reliance.com/corporate-governance-documents and are available in print to any stockholder
who requests a copy from our Corporate Secretary at the address appearing at the top of the first page of this proxy
statement. Each of these committees is composed of only independent directors and regularly reports to the Board as a
whole.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling the Board’s oversight responsibilities over
Reliance’s financial reporting process and systems of internal controls, monitoring the independence, qualifications and
performance of Reliance’s independent registered public accounting firm and maintaining open communication between
the Board and the independent registered public accounting firm, the internal auditors and financial management. The
Audit Committee appoints and oversees the qualifications of the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm. The Audit Committee confers formally with our independent registered public accounting firm, as well as with
members of our management, our internal auditors and those employees performing internal accounting functions, to
inquire as to the manner in which the respective responsibilities of these groups and individuals are being discharged.
The Audit Committee annually reviews its Charter.

Each member of the Audit Committee is an independent director as defined in the listing standards for the NYSE and as
defined in the standards established by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Board of Directors has
determined that Mr. Dellaquila, the Chair of the Audit Committee, is an audit committee financial expert. Each of the
other members
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of the Audit Committee, Ms. Baldwin and Ms. Colonias and Mr. Kaminski, is financially literate. The Audit Committee
regularly reports to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee engages our independent registered public accounting
firm and the Board of Directors as a whole ratifies such action. The Audit Committee reviews and approves the scope of
the audit conducted by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and pre-approves all audit and
non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm, reviews the accounting principles
being applied by Reliance in financial reporting and the adequacy of internal controls and financial accounting
procedures. The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s internal audit function and approves the compensation of the
Director, Internal Audit and makes a recommendation to the Compensation Committee and the Board that they ratify
such compensation. In 2023 the Audit Committee met nine times, and conferred by phone and email as needed.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee assists the Board in determining the compensation of the
Company’s corporate officers, including the NEOs, recommends to the Board annual and long-term compensation for the
Company’s corporate officers, including the NEOs, and prepares an annual report on its activities and determinations for
inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement in accordance with applicable rules and regulations. See “How We Make
Decisions Regarding Executive Compensation” on page 40.

In addition to its role in determining the compensation of corporate officers of Reliance, the Compensation Committee
administers our long-term incentive plans, including our Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan, the
SERP, and the Deferred Compensation Plan. The Compensation Committee has the authority to designate officers,
directors or key employees eligible to participate in the plans, to prescribe the terms of any equity award, to interpret the
plans, to propose changes in the compensation policy and to make all other determinations for administering the plans
and policies; provided that such determinations relating to corporate officers are subject to the approval of the
independent directors of the Board. The Compensation Committee annually reviews its Charter.

Each member of the Compensation Committee is an independent director as defined in the listing standards for the
NYSE, including the additional independence criteria applicable to compensation committee members. Ms. Colonias has
served as Chair of the Compensation Committee since 2022. In 2023, the Compensation Committee met five times, and
conferred by phone and email as needed.

Nominating and Governance Committee. The primary role of the Nominating and Governance Committee is to represent
the interests of our stockholders with respect to the evaluation and composition of our Board of Directors and each of its
standing committees. The Nominating and Governance Committee develops and implements policies and processes
regarding Board and corporate governance matters, assesses Board membership needs, makes recommendations
regarding potential director candidates to the Board, administers the evaluation of Board and Committee performance,
encourages director training and makes any recommendations to the full Board as needed to carry out its purpose. The
Nominating and Governance Committee also regularly considers issues relating to the retirement, succession and
compensation of directors. The Nominating and Governance Committee is also responsible for the oversight and review
of the Company’s activities relating to corporate social responsibility and sustainability matters and the external reporting
thereof. The Nominating and Governance Committee annually reviews its Charter and the Company’s Principles of
Corporate Governance.

Each member of the Nominating and Governance Committee is an independent director as defined in the listing
standards for the NYSE. Mr. Stotlar has served as the Chair of the Nominating and Governance Committee since 2018.
The Nominating and Governance Committee recommends, and the Board has adopted, the Principles of Corporate
Governance posted on our website at https://investor.reliance.com/corporate-governance-documents. In 2023, the
Nominating and Governance Committee met three times and conferred by phone and email as needed.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
Nominations for the Board of Directors are made by the Nominating and Governance Committee and considered by the
Board of Directors acting as a whole. The Nominating and Governance Committee has not adopted a specific policy
regarding the consideration of director candidates recommended by stockholders, but seeks candidates by any method
the Committee determines to be appropriate, including consideration of director candidates proposed by stockholders.
Stockholders may propose director candidates for consideration by the Nominating and Governance Committee by
sending a letter addressed to the Chair of the Nominating and Governance Committee in care of the Corporate Secretary
of Reliance at the Company’s corporate headquarters address appearing at the top of the first page of this proxy
statement. Candidates recommended by stockholders are evaluated by the Nominating and Governance Committee in
the same manner as candidates recommended by other parties. To comply with the universal proxy rules, stockholders
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who intend to solicit proxies in support of director nominees other than the Company’s director nominees must also
provide the Company with the notice and other information required by the universal proxy rules as set forth in our
Bylaws.

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN RISK ASSESSMENT
The Board of Directors as a whole has the responsibility to oversee risk assessment and regularly receives reports from
members of senior management and Chairs of the committees as to any material risk to the Company, including
operational, financial, legal, or regulatory risks, succession issues or risks that could adversely impact the Company’s
reputation. The Audit Committee has taken the lead role in connection with the oversight of risks associated with or
disclosable in the Company’s financial statements and certain regulatory risks. The Audit Committee meets with the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm in executive session (i.e., without management) on a quarterly
basis and receives quarterly updates directly from the Company’s Vice President, Enterprise Risk and Director, Internal
Audit. The Audit Committee conducts an annual discussion regarding potential risks to the Company from a financial
reporting and regulatory standpoint, with input from the Company’s financial management, the Vice President, Enterprise
Risk, the internal audit team, in-house counsel and the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm.

In addition, the Audit Committee regularly reviews the Company’s assessment of cybersecurity threats and risk, data
security programs and information technology risks and potential cybersecurity incidents with management, including the
Company’s Chief Information Officer and Senior Director, Information Security.

To the extent that a risk arises within the purview of our Nominating and Governance Committee or the Compensation
Committee, management reports to the applicable committee. The Chair of the appropriate committee then reports to the
Board as a whole any material risks and the evaluation or mitigation of those risks after any appropriate investigation and
discussions with management and any outside counsel or consultant who may be invited to discuss the issue.

In the Board’s executive sessions, the non-executive Chair of the Board regularly holds a general discussion of potential
and actual risks. The Chair of the Board conducts the meetings, administers the activities of the Board, and facilitates
communication between management and the Board. In addition, the Chair of the Board makes the final determination of
the Board’s meeting agendas. The Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, and General Counsel all regularly attend the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees
and are available to discuss any material risk with the Board or any Committee. In addition, these officers regularly report
to the Board of Directors any material or significant risks of which they become aware. To the extent that the Board
desires it, or the risk warrants it, other Company personnel may be asked to prepare and present a report to the Board
and outside counsel or an appropriate consultant may be invited to discuss the issue at a Board meeting. The Company
believes that these procedures enable the Board to promptly and adequately assess risks that may have a material
impact on the Company and to oversee any mitigation to the extent the Board deems appropriate.

RISKS RELATED TO COMPENSATION PLANS
Our Compensation Committee has concluded that the Company’s various compensation plans do not encourage
excessive or inappropriate risk taking or create any risk that is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company. Each year our Compensation Committee reviews the Company’s existing compensation plans and policies for
the NEOs and corporate officers to ensure that they continue to support the Company’s objectives and enhance
stockholder value, including to the extent there have been any changes to the Company’s risk profile.

Throughout our Company, compensation of our management and key employees is structured with the same elements
as for our NEOs:

base salary,

performance-based cash incentive awards,

equity compensation, and

a 401(k) plan.

Sales personnel are generally paid a base salary plus commissions on the gross profit from sales from their particular
geographic territory or location. Our cash incentive plans for local management teams provide variable compensation
and are performance-based programs tied to various financial and operational measures, including, most commonly,
pretax income, return on manageable assets, gross profit, inventory turn, credit performance and other similar
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performance standards tailored to the job responsibilities of the individual employee and the results of the business unit
or subsidiary for which the individual works. These plans contain features which we believe mitigates excessive risk-
taking. From time to time, discretionary bonuses may be awarded to individual employees based upon that individual’s
performance and contribution to the results of the business unit, subsidiary or the Company as a whole. Our senior
management reviews compensation paid to division managers, subsidiary officers and key employees, and our
Compensation Committee approves all equity awards other than the NEOs’ which are recommended by the
Compensation Committee and approved by the independent directors.

The NEOs are entitled to performance-based incentive cash awards only if the Company’s performance meets certain
thresholds. Performance-based RSU awards granted to NEOs and other key employees are subject to forfeiture if
performance criteria are not met at the end of the three-year performance measurement period. The Compensation
Committee annually considers how our compensation policies and practices may affect our risk profile and whether such
policies and practices may encourage undue risk-taking by our employees. More specifically, the Compensation
Committee considers the general design philosophy of our policies and practices for our employees whose conduct
would be most affected by incentives established pursuant to these compensation policies. The Compensation
Committee believes that having multiple performance awards over multiple periods will reduce the likelihood of
excessive risk-taking. See “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above for a discussion of our executive
compensation program, including our performance-based awards. Moreover, to further reduce the possibility of
excessive risk-taking, the Compensation Committee has a compensation recovery policy pursuant to which the Company
must recover erroneously awarded performance-based compensation (generally consisting of the annual cash incentive
and performance-based RSUs) from senior officers in the event the Company is required to prepare an accounting
restatement due to material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the securities
laws (including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is
material to the previously issued financial statements, or that would result in a material misstatement if the error were
corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period). To encourage retention of key employees,
service-based RSU awards will vest only if the individual continues to be employed by the Company or an affiliate until
the end of the three-year measuring period.

The nature of our business limits potential risk of the actions of individual employees and individual transactions. Our
primary business is to serve customers by providing quick delivery, metals processing and inventory management
services, principally for small orders. Our metals service centers wrote and delivered over 4.6 million orders during 2023
or an average of 18,280 per day, with an average price of approximately $3,210 per order. Most of our customers are
located within 200 miles of the Reliance metals service center serving them. We believe that our focus on small orders
with quick turnaround differentiates us from many of the other large metals service center companies and allows us to
provide better service to our customers, and that it also mitigates excessive risk-taking. It is uncommon for our
operating units to enter into a material contract or agreement, and, on those occasions when a material contract is being
considered, senior management is involved. Further, given the internal processes and controls that we have in place, it
would be difficult for any individual or group of individuals to manipulate the results of their operating unit in a manner
that would have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results.

EXECUTIVE SESSIONS AND THE INDEPENDENT, NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIR
Non-management directors meet regularly in executive sessions without management. “Non-management” directors are
all those who are not Company officers or employees and include directors, if any, who are not “independent” by virtue of
the existence of a material relationship with the Company, former employee status or family relationship or for any other
reason. Executive sessions of the non-management directors are led by the non-executive Chair of the Board. Executive
sessions of the non-management directors are held regularly and sessions may be called by the non-executive Chair of
the Board in his discretion or at the request of the Board.

Mr. Kaminski was elected Lead Director by the independent directors in January 2015. In July 2016, Mr. Kaminski was
elected the independent, non-executive Chair of the Board by the independent directors. Consistent with our Principles
of Corporate Governance, the Board currently does not have a lead independent director because the Chair of the Board
is an independent director. The Board believes that having an independent director serve as the non-executive Chair of
the Board is the appropriate leadership structure for our Company at this time because it allows our Chief Executive
Officer to focus on executing our Company’s strategic plan and managing our operations and performance, while
allowing the Chair of the Board to focus on the effectiveness of the Board and provide independent oversight of our
senior management team.
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DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Other than Mrs. Lewis who is our President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Hoffman who is our former Chief
Executive Officer, the Board has determined that none of our directors have any material relationship with the Company
nor is any director affiliated with any entity or person who has a material relationship with the Company. The Board has
determined that each of Ms. Baldwin, Ms. Colonias, and Messrs. Dellaquila, Kaminski, McEvoy, Seeger and Stotlar
qualifies as an independent director under NYSE rules.

In making its independence determinations, the Board reviewed and considered information provided by the directors
and the Company with regard to each director’s business and personal activities as they may relate to the Company and
to the Company’s management. This review included consideration of the applicable relationships identified below in
“Related Person Transactions and Indemnification,” as well as the following ordinary course, non-preferential
relationships between Reliance and its subsidiaries and our directors:

Director Karen W. Colonias served as a director of SSD until April 26, 2023. Subsidiaries of the Company
conducted approximately $1,498,000 in transactions with SSD in 2023. Reliance believes that these were all
ordinary commercial transactions made at arm’s-length.

Director Frank J. Dellaquila was the Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Emerson
until May 2023. Subsidiaries of the Company conducted approximately $10,416,000 in transactions with
Emerson in 2023. Reliance believes that these were all ordinary commercial transactions made at arm’s-
length.

The amounts paid to each of SSD and Emerson were below the thresholds in the NYSE listing standards for director
independence.

The Board determined that neither of the relationships discussed above constituted a material relationship between the
director and Reliance or its subsidiaries for the purposes of the NYSE listing standards.

DIRECTOR QUALIFICATIONS
The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for assessing membership needs for the Board of Directors,
identifying individuals qualified to become Board members, making recommendations regarding potential director
candidates to the Board of Directors and administering the evaluation of the Board and Committee performance, among
other things. The Nominating and Governance Committee regularly reviews the composition of the Board and of each of
the Board’s Committees. The Nominating and Governance Committee strives to maintain an independent, balanced and
diverse Board with directors who have appropriate backgrounds, skills and characteristics to complement one another.
The Committee reviews management experience, general business knowledge, and specific skills or expertise, such as
finance, value-added wholesaling, technology, cybersecurity, business, law, and marketing. The Committee encourages
all directors to take director training courses in order to keep current on issues facing boards of directors. Certain
characteristics or attributes are sought in all Board members, including integrity, strong professional reputation, a record
of achievement, constructive and collegial personal attributes, and the ability and willingness to devote sufficient time
and energy to serve on our Board. The Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board of Directors believe that
each of the Company’s current Board members meets these criteria and understands what factors result in the Company
outperforming its industry peers. The Company desires to have directors who will commit a substantial amount of time to
serving on the Board to ensure a greater understanding of the Company’s business and culture and to provide continuity
and stability to the Board. Reliance recognizes the value of diversity. Although the Board does not have a formal diversity
policy, it believes that diversity is an important factor in determining the composition of the Board and considers it in
making nominee recommendations.

The Board is committed to prioritizing experience relevant to the Company’s strategy and business, ensuring that
potential Board candidates with a diversity of race, age, ethnicity and gender are included in each pool of candidates
from which Board of Directors nominees are chosen, and including potential candidates from varied backgrounds,
including going beyond the traditional former CEO corporate background as a required criteria for new candidates. The
Company will continue to evaluate board composition and opportunities to strengthen the Board of Directors.

ANNUAL BOARD AND COMMITTEE SELF-EVALUATIONS
Our Board recognizes that a thorough, constructive evaluation process enhances the Board’s effectiveness and is an
essential element of good corporate governance. The Board and each committee conduct an annual self-evaluation
covering key performance areas including, but not limited to, corporate strategy, risk oversight, and the composition,
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conduct and culture of the Board and committees. The self-evaluations and summaries are shared and discussed with
the full Board and each committee which allows the Board and each committee to share their perspectives and consider
any necessary adjustments in response to the collective feedback from the self-evaluations. The Board also regularly
assesses the individual directors’ qualifications, attributes, skills and experience to ensure appropriate representation on
the Board.

DIRECTOR STOCK OWNERSHIP REQUIREMENTS
Directors are required to own shares of the Company’s common stock having a market value at least equal to $520,000;
provided, that directors shall have a period of five years to acquire and begin maintaining that amount of the Company’s
common stock. All of the directors are in compliance with their stock ownership requirements or are in the process of
becoming compliant within five years of the date of appointment.

STOCKHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
To maintain our strong corporate governance practices and ensure that we regularly receive stockholder feedback, we
must engage with investors. Throughout the year, we seek opportunities to connect with our investors to gain and share
valuable insights into current and emerging global governance trends and the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices.

Management conducts extensive engagements with key stockholders. Officers participating in these engagements
include our President and Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Operating Officer, and our Chief Financial Officer. In 2023,
we had direct discussions with stockholders holding approximately 28% of our outstanding shares of common stock in
the aggregate. We pursue multiple avenues for engagement in addition to direct discussions with stockholders, including
video and teleconference meetings, participating at various conferences, road shows and facility tours. These
engagements include discussions about governance, compensation, sustainability and safety, as well as financial and
operational matters, to ensure that management and the Board understand and address the issues that are important to
our stockholders. The Board oversees the discharge by management of stockholder communication and engagement
and receives regular reports on stockholder comments and feedback. The Board encourages dialogue on issues of
interest to stockholders.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION
As of the date of this proxy statement, the Compensation Committee consisted of Ms. Colonias (Chair) and
Messrs. McEvoy, Seeger and Stotlar. During 2023 and as of the date of this proxy statement, none of the members of
the Compensation Committee was or is an officer or employee of Reliance, and no executive officer of the Company
served or serves on the compensation committee or board of any company that employed or employs any member of
Reliance’s Compensation Committee or Board of Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling the Board’s oversight responsibilities over our financial
reporting process and systems of internal controls, monitoring the independence, qualifications and performance of our
independent registered public accounting firm and the performance of our internal auditors, and maintaining open
communication between the Board and the independent registered public accounting firm, the internal auditors, and
financial management and has taken a lead role in financial risk assessment. During 2023, the Audit Committee, which is
composed entirely of independent, non-employee directors, met nine times.

The Audit Committee operates under a written Charter adopted by the Board that outlines its responsibilities and the
practices it follows. The Audit Committee reviews and assesses the adequacy of the Charter at least annually and, when
appropriate, recommends changes to the Board.

In fulfilling its responsibilities under the Charter, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed our audited financial
statements for 2023 with management and the independent registered public accounting firm, including the critical audit
matter arising from the current period audit of the Company’s financial statements set forth therein. The Audit Committee
has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by the
applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Audit Committee also reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered
public accounting firm required by professional standards regarding the independent registered public accounting firm’s
communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and discussed with the independent registered
public accounting firm its independence from management and Reliance. The Audit Committee has also considered the
compatibility of non-audit services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm with its independence.
The Audit Committee approved all fees paid to the independent registered public accounting firm for audit and non-audit
services.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions outlined above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors
(and the Board subsequently approved the recommendation) that the audited financial statements be included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 for filing with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee also evaluated and selected KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for 2024. This selection was ratified by the Board of Directors.

Lisa L. Baldwin Karen W. Colonias
Mark V. Kaminski

Frank J. Dellaquila, Chair
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RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS AND
INDEMNIFICATION
In 2023, we employed two individuals – Grant Hoffman and Ryan Mollins – who are immediate family members of current
or former executive officers during 2023 and/or directors and whose individual aggregate compensation and benefits
paid by the Company in 2023 exceeded $120,000. Each of these employees is compensated in a manner consistent with
our employment and compensation policies applicable to all employees.

The Board of Directors has reviewed and approved these transactions under the standards described below.

Except as set forth above, since January 1, 2023, there have been no related person transactions with any director or
executive officer of the Company or any other related person, as defined in Rule 404 under Regulation S-K promulgated
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and none is proposed. Our policies and procedures with respect to the
review of any proposed transactions are evidenced in the Company’s Code of Conduct, which requires that all material
facts be disclosed to the full Board of Directors (or in the case of non-director employees, to corporate officers) and then
all disinterested persons will review and consider what, if any, actions need to be taken. The Company’s Principles of
Corporate Governance require directors to report any matter that conflicts with the interests of the Company or gives the
appearance of a conflict immediately to the Chairman of the Board and the Chair of the Nominating and Governance
Committee for the matter to be evaluated with respect to the continued appropriateness of such director’s Board
membership, and any personal interest a director has in a matter before the Board must be disclosed to the Board and
such director must excuse himself or herself from participation in the discussion and shall not vote on the matter.
Furthermore, pursuant to its Charter, the Audit Committee conducts an annual review of any related person transactions
for potential conflicts of interest.

We indemnify our directors and our officers to the fullest extent permitted by law so that they will be free from undue
concern about personal liability in connection with their service to Reliance. Our Bylaws require indemnification, and we
have also entered into agreements with those individuals contractually obligating us to provide this indemnification to
them.
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PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL MEETING
Stockholders as of the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. A list of these
stockholders will be available during ordinary business hours at the principal executive offices of the Company in
Scottsdale, Arizona for a period of ten days ending on the day before the meeting date. Each share of common stock is
entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted on. Voting may be done over the internet, by telephone, by completing
and mailing the proxy card, or electronically at the Annual Meeting. Additional information including information about
voting by beneficial holders who hold shares through a bank, broker or financial institution is provided under “Voting
Information” on page 7 and “Information Concerning Our Common Stock” on page 9.

We hope you will participate in the Annual Meeting by accessing our live webcast. If you do, you will need the 16-digit
control number included on your proxy card, on your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or on the
instructions that accompanied your proxy materials. If you are a beneficial holder, you may also vote electronically at the
meeting by using the 16-digit control number included on the voting instruction form provided by your broker. If you are a
beneficial holder but do not have a control number, you may gain access to the meeting by contacting your broker or by
following the instructions included with your proxy materials. Even if you plan to participate in the meeting by live
webcast, we encourage you to vote your shares in advance of the Annual Meeting date.

Submitting questions at the Annual Meeting
You can submit questions electronically at the Annual Meeting during the webcast. During the live Q&A session of the
meeting, members of our senior leadership will answer questions as they come in, as time permits. We have designed
our virtual meeting such that stockholders have equivalent rights to participate and ask and hear management’s
responses to appropriate questions as they had at our prior in-person meetings. To ensure the meeting is conducted in a
manner that is fair to all stockholders, the Chair of the Board (or such other person designated by our Board) may
exercise broad discretion in recognizing stockholders who wish to participate, the order in which questions are asked
and the amount of time devoted to any one question. We also reserve the right to edit or reject questions we deem
personal, profane or otherwise inappropriate. Detailed guidelines for submitting written questions during the meeting are
available at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024.

If you have technical difficulties or trouble accessing the virtual meeting
We will have technicians ready to assist you with any technical difficulties you may have accessing the virtual meeting. If
you encounter any difficulties accessing the virtual meeting during the check-in or meeting time, please call the technical
support number that will be posted on the virtual shareholder meeting login page.
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS
FOR THE 2025 ANNUAL MEETING
We must receive any stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2025 Annual Meeting and included in our
proxy materials relating to such meeting pursuant to Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act no later than December 4, 2024. If
a stockholder proposal intended to be presented at the 2025 Annual Meeting and included in our proxy materials is not
received by the Company on or before December 4, 2024, it will be deemed to be untimely.

Stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2025 Annual Meeting outside of the Rule 14a-8 process (including
nominations made under the universal proxy provisions of the Exchange Act) relating to such meeting must be received
no earlier than January 15, 2025 and no later than February 14, 2025, and must satisfy the requirements specified in the
Bylaws. Any such stockholder proposals submitted without a properly completed timely notice in accordance with the
Bylaws will be deemed untimely and not properly submitted under the Bylaws.

The Company’s Bylaws permit a stockholder (or a group of up to 20 stockholders) who has owned a significant amount
of Reliance common stock (at least 3%) for a significant amount of time (at least three years) to submit director
nominees (the greater of two or up to 25% of the Board) for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement if the
stockholder(s) and the nominee(s) satisfy the requirements specified in the Company’s Bylaws. Director nominations
under the Company’s proxy access bylaw for the Company’s 2025 Annual Meeting must be received no earlier than
November 4, 2024 and no later than December 4, 2024. Any such proxy access director nominations submitted without
the required notice and required information will be deemed untimely and not properly submitted under the Company’s
Bylaws.

Stockholder proposals and director nominations must be addressed to the Corporate Secretary at the Company’s
corporate headquarters address appearing at the top of the first page of this proxy statement. Notices and submissions
must include the information required by the Company’s Bylaws, which are available without charge upon written request
to the Corporate Secretary. Failure to comply with our procedures and deadlines may preclude presentation of your
proposal at our 2025 Annual Meeting.
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STOCKHOLDERS SHARING THE SAME ADDRESS
In accordance with notices that we sent to certain stockholders, we are sending only one copy of our annual report and
proxy statement to stockholders who share the same last name and address, unless they have notified us that they want
to continue receiving multiple copies. This practice, known as “householding,” is designed to reduce duplicate mailings
and printing and postage costs. However, if any stockholder residing at such address wishes to receive a separate
annual report or proxy statement, he or she may so notify the Corporate Secretary at the Company’s corporate
headquarters address or phone number appearing at the top of the first page of this proxy statement and we will
promptly send such stockholder the requested materials, and we will send such stockholder separate materials for future
meetings. If you are receiving multiple copies of the annual report and proxy statement, you can request householding
by contacting the Corporate Secretary at the Company’s corporate headquarters address appearing at the top of the first
page of this proxy statement.
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ANNUAL REPORT
Reliance will furnish without charge to any stockholder, upon written request directed to the Corporate Secretary of
Reliance at its address appearing at the top of the first page of this proxy statement, a copy of its most recent Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

William A. Smith II
Corporate Secretary

Scottsdale, Arizona
April 3, 2024
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ANNEX A
RELIANCE, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED

2015 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN
This Amendment No. 2 (“Amendment”) to the Reliance, Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award
(“Plan”) is adopted by the Board of Directors of Reliance, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), to be effective
as of May 15, 2024, subject to receiving the approval of the shareholders at the Company’s Annual Meeting of
Shareholders scheduled for May 15, 2024.

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Amendment is to amend the Plan. All terms in this Amendment shall have the same
meanings as set forth in the Plan unless otherwise specifically defined.

2. Authority to Amend. Under Sections 13.1 and 13.2 of the Plan, the Board has express authority to amend the Plan
from time to time, subject to stockholder approval if the amendment would: (i) increase the limit on the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued under the Plan or the Award Limit, (ii) reduce the price per share of any outstanding
Option or Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan or take any action prohibited by the Plan provisions
prohibiting repricing, or (iii) cancel any Option or Stock Appreciation Right in exchange for cash or another Award in
violation of specific terms of the Plan. The rules of the New York Stock Exchange require shareholder approval of equity
compensation plans such as the Plan and material revisions thereto, including a material extension of the term of the
plan. This Amendment is intended to extend the term of the Plan and, accordingly, the Board of Directors shall obtain
stockholder approval for this Amendment.

3. Amendment to Term of Plan. Section 13.1(c) of the Plan is hereby amended in its entirety as follows:

“(c) No awards may be granted or awarded during any period of suspension or after termination of the Plan, and
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in no event may any Award be granted after February 24, 2030
(such date, the “Expiration Date”). Any Awards that are outstanding on the Expiration Date shall remain in force
according to the terms of the Plan, the applicable Program and he applicable Award Agreement.”

Reliance, Inc.

 
Name:
Title:

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS

 



Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Date Signature (Joint Owners) DateTO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDSTHIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED. DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLYV41788-P074742. To consider a non-binding, advisory vote to approve thecompensation of our named executive officers.3. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as ourindependent registered public accounting firm for 2024.4. To approve an amendment to the Reliance, Inc. SecondAmended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan toextend its duration by 5 years.5. To transact such other business, if any, as properly comesbefore the meeting or any adjournment thereof.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR"For Against Abstain PROPOSALS 2 - 4. For Against Abstain! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! ! ! ! !! ! !RELIANCE, INC.RELIANCE, INC.16100 N. 71ST STREET, SUITE 400SCOTTSDALE, AZ 852541a. Lisa L. Baldwin1c. Frank J. Dellaquila1h. Douglas W. Stotlar1b. Karen W. Colonias1f. Robert A. McEvoy1g. David W. SeegerPlease sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title as

such. Jointowners should each sign personally. All holders must sign. If a corporation or partnership, please sign in full corporate or partnership name by authorized officer.1e. Karla R. Lewis1d. Mark V. Kaminski! ! !These items of business are more fully described in theaccompanying proxy statement.1. Election of DirectorsTHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR"ALL THE NOMINEES LISTED IN PROPOSAL 1.! ! !Nominees:VOTE BY INTERNETBefore The Meeting - Go to www.proxyvote.com or scan the QR Barcode aboveUse the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of informationup until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on May 14, 2024. Have your proxy card in hand whenyou access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create anelectronic voting instruction form.During The Meeting - Go to www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024You may attend the meeting via the Internet and vote during the meeting. Have the informationthat is printed in the box marked by the arrow available and follow the instructions.VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 11:59 P.M.Eastern Time on May 14, 2024. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then followthe

instructions.VOTE BY MAILMark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage paid envelope we haveprovided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood,NY 11717.SCAN TOVIEW MATERIALS & VOTE w

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.V41789-P07474(Continued and to be signed on reverse side)RELIANCE, INC.Proxy Solicited on Behalf of the Board of Directors ofthe Company for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 15, 2024The undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Arthur Ajemyan and William A. Smith II, and each of them, his or her trueand lawful agents and proxies with full power of substitution in each to represent the undersigned at the Annual Meeting ofStockholders of RELIANCE, INC. to be held at 10:00 a.m. PDT on Wednesday, May 15, 2024, electronically via live webcastaccessible at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024, and at any adjournments thereof, on all matters coming beforesaid meeting.You are encouraged to specify your choices by marking the appropriate boxes (SEE REVERSE SIDE) but you neednot mark any boxes if you wish to vote in accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations. The Board ofDirectors recommends voting FOR all Nominees in item 1, FOR items 2, 3, and 4, and in the discretion of the proxieswith respect to any other business that may properly come before the meeting (and any

adjournment or postponementthereof). The proxyholders cannot vote the shares unless you sign and return this card.

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Date Signature (Joint Owners) DateTO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDSTHIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED. DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLYV41790-P07474RELIANCE, INC.Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title as such. Jointowners should each sign personally. All holders must sign. If a corporation or partnership, please sign in full corporate or partnership name by authorized officer.RELIANCE, INC.16100 N. 71ST STREETSCOTTSDALE, AZ 852542. To consider a non-binding, advisory vote to approve thecompensation of our named executive officers.3. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as ourindependent registered public accounting firm for 2024.5. To transact such other business, if any, as properly comesbefore the meeting or any adjournment thereof.For Against Abstain For Against Abstain! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! !! ! !1a. Lisa L. Baldwin ! ! ! ! ! !1c. Frank J. Dellaquila1b. Karen W. Colonias1f. Robert A. McEvoy1g. David W. Seeger1e. Karla R. Lewis1d. Mark V. Kaminski! ! !These items of business are more fully described in

theaccompanying proxy statement.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR"ALL THE NOMINEES LISTED IN PROPOSAL 1.! ! !1h. Douglas W. Stotlar ! ! !1. Election of DirectorsNominees:THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR"PROPOSALS 2 - 4.4. To approve an amendment to the Reliance, Inc. SecondAmended and Restated 2015 Incentive Award Plan toextend its duration by 5 years.VOTE BY INTERNETBefore The Meeting - Go to www.proxyvote.com or scan the QR Barcode aboveUse the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of informationup until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on May 10, 2024. Have your proxy card in hand whenyou access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create anelectronic voting instruction form.During The Meeting - Go to www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024You may attend the meeting via the Internet and vote during the meeting. Have the informationthat is printed in the box marked by the arrow available and follow the instructions.VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 11:59 P.M.Eastern Time on May 10, 2024. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then followthe

instructions.VOTE BY MAILMark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we haveprovided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood,NY 11717.SCAN TOVIEW MATERIALS & VOTE w

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.V41791-P07474(Continued and to be signed on reverse side)RELIANCE, INC.Proxy Solicited on Behalf of the Board of Directors ofthe Company for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 15, 2024The undersigned hereby (i) constitutes and appoints, and/or (ii) instructs U.S. Bank, N.A., as trustee of the Employee Stock Ownership Plan,to appoint, and/or (iii) instructs Fidelity Management Trust Company, as trustee of the Reliance, Inc. Master 401(k) Plan andthe Precision Strip Retirement and Savings Plan, to appoint, Arthur Ajemyan and William A. Smith II, and each of them,his or her true and lawful agents and proxies with full power of substitution in each, to represent the undersigned at theAnnual Meeting of Stockholders of RELIANCE, INC. to be held at 10:00 a.m. PDT on Wednesday, May 15, 2024,electronically via live webcast accessible at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/RS2024, and at any adjournments thereof, onall matters coming before said meeting.You are encouraged to specify your choices by marking the appropriate boxes (SEE REVERSE SIDE) but you neednot mark any boxes if you wish to vote in

accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations. The Board ofDirectors recommends voting FOR all Nominees in item 1, FOR items 2, 3, and 4, and in the discretion of the proxieswith respect to any other business that may properly come before the meeting (and any adjournment or postponementthereof). The proxyholders cannot vote the shares unless you sign and return this card.
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Authorizing Resolution
Consent to Assignment of
   Agency Lease Documents 
One-Pull Solutions Wire and Cable LLC Facility

Date: April 26, 2024

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York at 8:00 a.m. on April 26, 
2024, the following members of the Agency were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present:

Others Present:  

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced 
that among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain 
matters pertaining to the assignment of a certain industrial development facility more 
particularly described below (One-Pull Solutions Wire and Cable LLC Facility).

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and 
adopted with the following members voting:
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO AUTHORIZE 
THE ASSIGNMENT OF AGENCY LEASE DOCUMENTS FROM 
ONE-PULL SOLUTIONS WIRE AND CABLE LLC TO KRIS-TECH 
WIRE COMPANY, INC. AND TO EXECUTE RELATED 
DOCUMENTS.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York (collectively, the “Act”), Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power among other things, to 
assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by 
the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Agency owns a 38,806± square foot building (the 
“Building”) situated on a parcel of land located at 7500 Cold Point Drive, City of 
Rome, Oneida County New York (the “Land” and together with the Building, the 
“RIDC Facility”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the RIDC Facility to RIDC pursuant to 
a Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2005 as amended on April 1, 2020 and on 
June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “RIDC Lease”); and

WHEREAS, RIDC subleases a 21,106± square foot portion of the 
RIDC Facility to United Parcel Service (the “UPS Facility”); and

WHEREAS, RIDC subleases a 17,700± square foot portion of the 
RIDC Facility (the “Improvements”) to One-Pull Solutions Wire and Cable LLC (the 
“Company”) pursuant to a sublease agreement dated March 21, 2021 (the 
“Sublease Agreement”), the initial term of which is four years with an option to 
renew; and

WHEREAS, the Company previously requested that the Agency provide 
certain financial assistance consisting of reduction of real property taxes and 
exemptions from sales taxes (the “Financial Assistance”) in connection with the 
Company’s renovation of the Improvements and the acquisition and installation of 
equipment therein (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose of manufacturing bundled-
wire products (the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as 
the “Facility” and the renovation and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as 
the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company leases the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2021 (the “Lease Agreement”); and 
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WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility back to the Company pursuant 
to a Leaseback Agreement dated as of July 1, 2021  (the “Leaseback Agreement”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the RIDC Facility is the subject of that certain First Amended 
and Restated Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement by and between the Agency and 
the Company, dated as of July 1, 2021 (the “PILOT Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the Facility is also the subject of an Environmental 
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement by and between the Agency and the 
Company, dated as of July 1, 2021 (the “Environmental Compliance Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Facility is also the subject of a Job Creation and 
Recapture Agreement dated July 1, 2021 by and between the Agency and the 
Company (the “Job Creation Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Company provided notice to the Agency that it dissolved 
effective December 31, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), and all interest of the Company 
was transferred to its parent company, Kris-Tech Wire and Cable, Inc. (“Kris-Tech”); 
and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to assign to Kris-Tech all of the 
Company’s rights, title, interest, benefits and privileges in, under and to the Lease 
Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT Agreement, the Environmental 
Compliance Agreement, and the Job Creation Agreement (collectively referred to as 
the “Agency Lease Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency authorize the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to Kris-Tech, 
effective the Effective Date, such that all Agency Lease Documents shall inure to the 
benefit of Kris-Tech and remain in full force and effect as of the Effective Date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and
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(b) The Facility constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act; 
and

(c) The deed of the Facility from the Company to Kris-Tech and the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to Kris-Tech, will 
promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New York and improve 
their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and

(d) The transfer of the Facility from the Company to Kris-Tech and the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to Kris-Tech is 
reasonably necessary to induce Kris-Tech to maintain and expand its business 
operation in the State of New York; and

(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to authorize 
the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Company to Kris-Tech.

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby 
determines to authorize the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the 
Company to Kris-Tech as of the Effective Date.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment of the transfer of the Facility from the Company 
to Kris-Tech and the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the 
Company to Kris-Tech, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to 
such sale, assignment and financing are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the 
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver all 
documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Closing Documents”).  The execution thereof by 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency 
are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the 
Leaseback Agreement).
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Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all 
acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, 
and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and 
documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts 
and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent 
acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to 
cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of 
the Closing Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting 
of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the 
resolutions contained therein, held on April 26, 2024 with the original thereof on file 
in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the 
Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original 
insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice 
of said meeting, (ii) said meeting was open for the public to attend in person and 
public notice of the time, place of, and instructions to access, said meeting was duly 
given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of April 26, 
2024.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By: ______________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary



12/31/2023 OCIDA Project Report UPDATED APRIL 19, 2024 Civic Facility

Project Name Address Muni
State Sales Tax 
Exemption

Local Sales Tax 
Exemption

County  Property 
Tax Exemption

Local Tax 
Exemption

School Tax 
Exemption

Mortgage 
Recording 
Tax 
Exemption

Total Exemptions 
Net of RPTL Section 
485-b Exemptions County PILOT Local PILOT School PILOT Total PILOTS Net Benefit

FTE 
before 
IDA

FTE to be 
created

FTE to be 
retained

FTE 
12/31/23 

 FTE 
construction 
jobs

 

80% 
Minimum 
Standard By

126 Business Park LLC 2019 126 Business Park Drive UTICA -$                  -$                36,269.05$          74,337.69$         72,874.51$            -$           183,481.25$        20,891.87$      42,804.25$      41,982.79$        105,678.91$       77,802.34$          0 4 48 58 0
63 Wurz Ave., LLC 53-63 Wurz Ave. UTICA -$                  -$                5,044.00$            10,140.00$         10,228.00$            -$           25,411.00$          3,214.00$        6,696.00$        6,503.00$          16,413.00$         8,998.00$            120 4 120 123 0 99.2 2-Apr-24
99 Otis 99 Otis Street ROME -$                  -$                43,736.36$          83,883.73$         145,427.36$          -$           273,047.45$        2,519.30$        4,978.42$        8,455.66$          15,953.38$         257,094.07$        25 10 25 60 0
Adjusters International 126 Business Park Drive UTICA -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     14 5 0 19 0 Last Report
Alder Creek Beverage, LLC 12044 State Route 12 BOONVILLE -$                  -$                45,294.00$          7,427.00$           122,551.00$          -$           175,272.00$        30,197.00$      7,185.00$        80,884.00$        118,266.00$       57,006.00$          44 10 44 56 12
American Alloy Steel/Chickadee 650 Harbor Way ROME -$                  -$                26,000.00$          49,828.00$         85,629.00$            -$           161,457.00$        23,659.00$      45,341.00$      77,919.00$        146,919.00$       14,538.00$          23 0 23 39 0
B240 LLC 1371 Floyd Avenue ROME -$                  -$                99,715.00$          191,105.00$       334,150.00$          -$           624,971.00$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    624,971.00$        0 47 0 19 0 37.6 19-Dec-22
B240 LLC Phase 2 129 & 143 Air City Blvd. ROME 51.00$              61.00$             33,736.00$          64,656.00$         113,052.00$          -$           211,557.00$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    211,557.00$        0 34.5 0 6 0 27.6 28-Dec-23
B240 LLC, Phase 3 109 and 169 Air City Blvd. ROME 29,132.81$       34,595.21$      35,467.00$          67,973.00$         118,852.00$          -$           286,019.92$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    286,019.92$        0 0 0 0 0
Baggs Square Partners, LLC 310 Broad Street UTICA -$                  -$                29,283.00$          58,858.00$         59,372.00$            -$           147,513.00$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    147,513.00$        0 1 0 8 0
Booz Allen Hamilton Inc. 99 Otis Street ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     158 60 158 297 0
Brooklyn Brewery 50 Campion Road UTICA -$                  -$                8,068.00$            16,202.00$         15,899.00$            -$           40,169.00$          5,379.00$        10,802.00$      10,600.00$        26,781.00$         13,388.00$          0 6 0 8 0
Burrstone Energy 1656 Champlin Avenue UTICA -$                  -$                58,243.00$          22,471.00$         110,601.00$          -$           191,314.00$        7,126.00$        2,996.00$        23,388.00$        33,510.00$         157,804.00$        0 2 0 2.5 0
Camden Renewables Solar 1751 NYS Rt. 69 CAMDEN -$                  -$                8,622.50$            931.00$              21,630.52$            -$           31,184.03$          10,191.31$      1,076.16$        24,642.61$        35,910.08$         (4,726.05)$           0 0 0 0 0
Cardinal Griffiss Realty 153 Brooks Road ROME -$                  -$                27,178.26$          52,086.07$         88,353.23$            -$           167,617.56$        21,352.69$      42,195.24$      72,512.24$        136,060.17$       31,557.39$          135 0 135 130 0 108 17-Jun-20
Central Utica Building 601 State Street UTICA 231,125.00$     274,461.00$    -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           505,586.00$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    505,586.00$        146.5 14.4 146.5 0 0 In Const.
Champion Home Builders Co. Rte 12 & 20 SANGERFIELD -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     75 0 75 116 0
Cold Point Corporation Henry Street ROME -$                  -$                26,988.15$          51,721.74$         86,939.42$            -$           165,649.31$        2,741.73$        5,943.65$        9,014.60$          17,699.98$         147,949.33$        37 15 37 51 0 41.6 16-Mar-23
Crane-Ballou LLC 316 Broad Street UTICA -$                  -$                9,415.00$            18,921.00$         19,159.00$            -$           47,495.00$          -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    47,495.00$          0 0 0 30 0
*Cree. Inc./Wolfspeed 5737 Edic Rd. MARCY 328,514.89$     390,111.43$    756,171.00$        96,604.00$         2,826,187.00$       -$           4,397,588.32$     60,752.18$      34,386.08$      224,662.60$      319,800.86$       4,077,787.46$     0 614 0 476 0 22-May-30
Delta Luxury Townhomes Liam Lane(48 Addresses) ROME 66,988.08$       79,548.35$      -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           146,536.43$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    146,536.43$        0 0 0 0 40
Deployed Resources, LLC 162 McPike Rd. ROME -$                  -$                23,404.00$          46,249.00$         79,478.00$            -$           149,131.00$        2,647.00$        5,230.00$        8,987.00$          16,864.00$         132,267.00$        30 16 30 100 0
ECR International, Inc. 2201 Dwyer Ave. UTICA -$                  -$                28,236.33$          56,766.97$         56,743.43$            -$           141,746.73$        28,236.33$      56,766.97$      56,743.43$        141,746.73$       -$                     0 3 0 80 0 Terminated
East Coast Olive Oil One Olive Grove Street ROME -$                  -$                112,888.00$        216,345.00$       371,787.00$          -$           701,019.00$        74,768.00$      143,290.00$    246,243.00$      464,301.00$       236,718.00$        132 20 132 175 0
Engler Electric Inc.-Golden Prop. 1020 Erie St. UTICA -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     35 12 35 28 0 37.6 1-Nov-24
Family Dollar Services, Inc. 640 Perimeter Road ROME -$                  -$                527,497.00$        1,010,927.00$    1,752,621.00$       -$           3,291,045.00$     248,529.00$    476,296.00$    818,511.00$      1,543,336.00$    1,747,709.00$     350 0 350 331 0 280
GLDC Alion 778 775 Daedalian Drive ROME -$                  -$                11,619.76$          22,268.02$         38,605.56$            -$           72,493.34$          5,688.93$        11,374.56$      18,833.72$        35,897.21$         36,596.13$          55 15 55 42 0 56 1-Apr-23
GLDC Building 240 NW Cor of Hill Rd and Floyd Ave ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0 No agreement
GLDC Building 770-774 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                7,768.91$            3,632.30$           19,403.56$            -$           30,804.77$          5,826.68$        2,724.23$        14,552.67$        23,103.58$         7,701.19$            60 11 60 41 0 No agreement
GLDC Building 776-778 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                8,438.00$            19,749.00$         26,636.00$            -$           54,822.00$          6,328.00$        14,812.00$      19,977.00$        41,117.00$         13,705.00$          139 0 139 42 0 No agreement
GLDC Building 780 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                1,480.51$            2,627.97$           3,731.36$              -$           7,839.84$            1,110.38$        1,970.98$        2,798.52$          5,879.88$           1,959.96$            6 0 6 24 0 No agreement
GLDC Building 796-798 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                14,632.19$          28,042.01$         47,567.47$            -$           90,241.67$          10,974.14$      21,031.51$      35,675.60$        67,681.25$         22,560.42$          130 15 130 108 0 No agreement
GLDC Facility XIII 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0 No agreement
GLDC Master Lease 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0 Last Report
GLDC XVII Griffiss Business & Tech Park ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0 No agreement
GSPP 4575 State Route 69 4575 State Route 69 TABERG -$                  -$                37,919.56$          41,324.04$         137,082.18$          -$           216,325.78$        9,118.54$        9,937.22$        32,964.24$        52,020.00$         164,305.78$        0 0 0 0 0 No agreement
GSPP 7024 Fox Rd. Solar 7024 Fox Rd. MARCY -$                  -$                33,804.00$          4,319.00$           116,130.00$          -$           154,252.00$        15,403.00$      1,989.00$        27,107.00$        44,499.00$         109,753.00$        0 0 0 0 0 No agreement
GSPP Hillsboro & Dunbar Solar Hillsboro & Dunbar Roads CAMDEN -$                  -$                1,530.61$            165.27$              3,839.70$              -$           5,535.57$            8,309.84$        877.49$           10,312.01$        19,499.34$         (13,963.77)$         0 0 0 0 0 No agreement
GUSC Co-Generation Facility 410 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     16 2 16 18 0 No agreement
Goodrich 104 Otis Street ROME -$                  -$                60,323.53$          115,607.68$       190,296.83$          -$           366,228.04$        56,704.12$      108,671.22$    178,879.02$      344,254.36$       21,973.68$          240 5 240 271 0 No agreement
Griffiss Surgery Center 105 Dart Circle ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     20 11 11 47 0
Gutchess Vernon 6395 and 6405 Skinner Road VERNON CENTER -$                  -$                8,523.00$            916.00$              29,230.00$            -$           38,669.00$          2,842.00$        305.00$           9,223.00$          12,370.00$         26,299.00$          12 8 12 32 0
H.J. Brandeles Corporation 8101 Halsey Road WHITESBORO -$                  -$                5,072.97$            2,248.08$           17,890.00$            -$           25,211.05$          -$                -$                 4,143.00$          4,143.00$           21,068.05$          45 5 45 45 0 40 12-Jun-22
Hale's Bus Garage, LLC 37 Kirkland Avenue CLINTON -$                  -$                11,561.00$          9,250.00$           45,298.00$            -$           66,109.00$          9,160.00$        6,015.00$        33,973.00$        49,148.00$         16,961.00$          29 13 29 45 0
Hangar Road Rome, LLC 184 Brooks Rd. ROME -$                  -$                39,135.00$          75,003.00$         131,143.00$          -$           245,281.00$        7,971.00$        15,751.00$      27,069.00$        50,791.00$         194,490.00$        90 22 90 105 0 89.6 5-Aug-23
Horsht - FIS & TLC 161 & 175 Clear Rd/132 Base Rd. ORISKANY 8,653.53$         10,283.43$      -$                    -$                    41,288.07$            -$           60,225.03$          -$                -$                 26,560.55$        26,560.55$         33,664.48$          336 15 336 348 0 280
Housing Visions/Canal Village James St. ROME -$                  -$                8,303.78$            16,409.18$         28,199.07$            -$           52,912.03$          2,595.03$        5,128.06$        7,839.37$          15,562.46$         37,349.57$          0 1.5 0 2 0
Indium Corporation 5836 Success Drive ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     12 12 612 160 0 Last Rept.
Indium WPD-ICA Holdings 301 Woods Park Dr. NEW HARTFORD 19,247.95$       22,856.94$      67,061.87$          28,172.11$         285,071.80$          -$           422,410.67$        67,061.87$      28,172.11$      255,087.80$      350,321.78$       72,088.89$          97 0 97 97 0
JGV-Alfred-Vicks 123 Dry Road ORISKANY -$                  -$                20,297.00$          9,096.00$           65,661.00$            -$           95,054.00$          3,870.00$        1,614.00$        25,017.00$        30,501.00$         64,553.00$          123 0 114 77 0 98.4 27-Feb-23
Kris Tech Wire 2018 80 Otis Street ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     58 10 58 68 0
MGS Manufacturing, Inc. 122 Otis Street ROME -$                  -$                24,334.00$          48,084.00$         82,633.00$            -$           155,051.00$        8,371.00$        16,541.00$      27,981.00$        52,893.00$         102,158.00$        45 3 45 44 0 36.8 29-Aug-22
Marcy Nano Cree PIF 5737 Edic Rd. MARCY -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0
Marcy Nano Electric Substation 5815 SUNY-Marcy Parkway MARCY -$                  -$                3,574.22$            456.68$              13,262.11$            -$           17,293.01$          -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    17,293.01$          0 0 0 0 0
Matt Brewing Co., Inc. 814 Edward Street UTICA -$                  -$                46,201.15$          95,071.16$         95,381.67$            -$           236,653.98$        33,853.88$      72,924.69$      71,421.31$        178,199.88$       58,454.10$          114 0 114 114 0
Matt Brewing Co., Inc. 811 Edward St. UTICA 2,634.37$         3,128.31$        -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 20 0 7 0
McCraith Beverages, Inc.- 2022 20 Burrstone Rd. NEW YORK MILLS 76,675.01$       91,051.01$      -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           167,726.02$        -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    167,726.02$        128 10 128 30 38 138
McCraith Beverage 2018 20 Burrstone Road NEW YORK MILLS -$                  -$                25,343.64$          30,679.57$         105,414.12$          -$           161,437.33$        19,759.24$      24,747.02$      76,170.39$        120,676.65$       40,760.68$          93 14 93 107 0 15-Dec-25
Med-Care Administrators 9360 River Road MARCY -$                  -$                3,735.29$            477.20$              13,962.78$            -$           18,175.27$          2,490.32$        318.15$           9,308.52$          12,116.99$         6,058.28$            43 10 43 33 53 Min. 90% in Oneida County
Mohawk Adk RR (GVR) 1 Mill St. Suite 101 BATAVIA -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     18 0 18 0 0 Last Report
MVCC 1101 Sherman Drive UTICA -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     13 3 13 9 0 No Agreement
Nortek Powder Coating 5900 Success Drive ROME -$                  -$                7,377.00$            9,318.00$           24,029.00$            -$           40,724.00$          4,918.00$        6,212.00$        16,020.00$        27,150.00$         13,574.00$          14 4 14 19 0
Northland Communications 9560 Main St. HOLLAND PATENT -$                  -$                11,284.11$          4,351.19$           37,982.20$            -$           53,617.50$          10,773.58$      4,154.33$        28,486.65$        43,414.56$         10,202.94$          68 3 68 81 0
One-Pull Solutions Wire & Cable 5880 Success Dr/7500 Cold Pt. Dr ROME -$                  -$                4,311.28$            5,445.00$           13,909.20$            -$           23,665.48$          1,437.93$        1,816.61$        4,636.40$          7,890.94$           15,774.54$          0 22 0 8 0 17.6 1-Jul-24
***Orgill, Inc. 1 Atlas Drive ROME -$                  -$                425,055.51$        814,602.22$       1,412,257.74$       -$           2,651,915.47$     74.36$             150.79$           236.13$             461.28$              2,651,454.19$     0 225 0 243 0
Oriskany Mfg. 2 Wurz Avenue YORKVILLE -$                  -$                12,967.02$          18,685.18$         44,786.26$            -$           76,438.46$          10,373.94$      15,377.41$      35,830.18$        61,581.53$         14,856.93$          80 0 80 96 0
Owl Wire & Cable, Inc. (Rome) 3127 Seneca Turnpike CANASTOTA -$                  -$                5,911.89$            11,342.03$         19,491.20$            -$           36,745.12$          4,847.75$        9,300.46$        15,982.78$        30,130.99$         6,614.13$            46 0 46 46 0
Parco Properties, Inc. 23 Garden St. NEW YORK MILLS -$                  -$                30,350.17$          54,740.89$         104,059.56$          -$           189,150.62$        30,415.15$      53,820.91$      105,529.84$      189,765.90$       (615.28)$              168 17 168 154 0 148 1-Dec-24
Park Outdoor 2429 Chenango Road UTICA -$                  -$                2,662.00$            5,352.00$           5,399.00$              -$           13,413.00$          2,278.00$        4,740.00$        4,603.00$          11,621.00$         1,792.00$            16 1 17 18 0
Pivot Solar NY 4 5718 Tilden Hill Rd. VERONA -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      22,208.00$     22,208.00$          6,026.00$        1,106.00$        17,934.00$        25,066.00$         (2,858.00)$           0 0 0 0 37
Polce Management Group 401 Phoenix Dr. ROME -$                  -$                4,855.00$            9,593.00$           16,230.00$            -$           30,677.00$          2,121.00$        4,191.00$        7,075.00$          13,387.00$         17,290.00$          22.5 5 22.5 32.5 0
Quiet Meadows Solar Farm 1 4330 Stoney Brook Dr. VERONA -$                  -$                17,322.94$          3,577.55$           66,873.67$            -$           87,774.16$          5,636.55$        1,164.06$        21,759.39$        28,560.00$         59,214.16$          0 0 0 0 0
Quiet Meadows Solar Farm 2 4426 Sholtz Rd. VERNON -$                  -$                23,311.81$          2,556.50$           89,766.08$            -$           115,634.39$        7,200.22$        774.13$           27,725.65$        35,700.00$         79,934.39$          0 0 0 0 0
Renmatix, Inc 679 Ellsworth Road ROME -$                  -$                35,620.94$          70,390.84$         120,966.19$          -$           226,977.97$        5,596.56$        11,059.42$      19,082.48$        35,738.46$         191,239.51$        0 13 0 7 0 10.4 Terminating
Michael Baldwin/RAS 111 Dart Circle ROME -$                  -$                6,554.25$            12,952.20$         21,910.17$            -$           41,416.62$          4,369.50$        8,634.80$        14,606.78$        27,611.08$         13,805.54$          15 10 15 37 0
Runnings Supply/JR&R II 5865 Success Drive ROME -$                  -$                35,801.00$          46,632.00$         121,577.00$          -$           204,010.00$        14,916.00$      19,429.00$      47,808.00$        82,153.00$         121,857.00$        16 2 16 53 0
SQ1 Holdings 2021 170 Base Rd. ORISKANY -$                  -$                5,483.00$            2,457.00$           17,775.00$            -$           25,716.00$          1,829.00$        819.00$           5,925.00$          8,573.00$           17,143.00$          24 6 24 19 0 Sq1 in Compliance
SQ1 Holdings  2016 170 Base Road ORISKANY -$                  -$                1,800.31$            806.78$              5,836.25$              -$           8,443.34$            832.82$           347.23$           2,636.95$          3,817.00$           4,626.34$            11 6 11 17 0 Sq1 in Compliance
Special Metals Corporation 4317 Middle Settlement Rd. NEW HARTFORD -$                  -$                89,406.31$          37,152.10$         389,693.15$          -$           516,251.56$        27,208.53$      10,875.56$      112,440.00$      150,524.09$       365,727.47$        323 2 323 354 0
The Hartford 301 Woods Park Drive CLINTON -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     600 0 500 807 0
The Indium Corp of America 34 Robinson Rd CLINTON -$                  -$                10,843.77$          8,159.54$           41,089.00$            -$           60,092.31$          5,868.29$        4,030.62$        24,436.98$        34,335.89$         25,756.42$          636 8 636 636 0
The Sloan Family Trust 8089 Halsey Road WHITESBORO -$                  -$                17,859.83$          8,001.35$           62,986.73$            -$           88,847.91$          16,779.38$      7,517.30$        59,176.28$        83,472.96$         5,374.95$            61 8 61 79 0
Universal Photonics 10 Ward St VERNON -$                  -$                12,513.00$          1,343.00$           40,522.00$            -$           54,378.00$          6,256.00$        672.00$           27,015.00$        33,943.00$         20,435.00$          55 20 55 44 0 60 1-Jul-15
Utica First Insurance Co 5981 Airport Road ORISKANY -$                  -$                12,070.00$          5,361.00$           39,026.00$            -$           56,456.00$          8,047.00$        3,574.00$        26,017.00$        37,638.00$         18,818.00$          80 5 80 138 0
Varflex Corporation 5780 Success Drive ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     18 5 18 23 0
Varflex Corporation 2020 5780 Success Drive ROME -$                  -$                11,466.00$          14,484.00$         37,657.00$            -$           63,607.00$          5,958.00$        7,526.00$        19,566.00$        33,050.00$         30,557.00$          0 5 0 5 0
West Dacks/Lodging Kit 13492 State Route 12 BOONVILLE -$                  -$                6,899.00$            10,483.00$         18,667.00$            -$           36,050.00$          3,561.00$        5,411.00$        9,635.00$          18,607.00$         17,443.00$          23 3 23 31 0
Woodhaven Ventures 1130 Floyd Ave. ROME 1,394.29$         1,655.72$        3,635.66$            6,967.59$           12,185.36$            -$           25,838.61$          727.13$           1,393.52$        -$                  2,120.65$           23,717.96$          0 0 0 1 1
SG Oneida Solar PV 6788 Mallory Rd. HOLLAND PATENT -$                  -$                362.00$               71.00$                1,031.00$              -$           1,464.00$            -$                -$                 19,563.00$        19,563.00$         (18,099.00)$         0 0 0 0 0
SSC Kirkland Solar 73 Kirkland Ave. KIRKLAND -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0
Kris-Tech Wire 2023 80 Otis St. ROME 141,819.95$     168,411.19$    65,215.49$          124,982.92$       216,680.11$          -$           717,109.66$        12,302.39$      24,310.86$      41,219.94$        77,833.19$         639,276.47$        0 5 115 46 0 Add 68 from Kris-Tech2018
GLDC Master Lease 2023 584 Phoenix Drive ROME -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     0 0 0 0 0
MA&N and G&MV Railroads Multi Muni/Oneida County MULTI/UTICA -$                  -$                -$                    -$                    -$                      -$           -$                    -$                -$                 -$                  -$                    -$                     12 2 12 12 0

Additional 2023 Induced Projects - Closed in 2024
Collins Solar 155 Mappa Ave Barneveld
Above Grid Solar 5727 Rome Taberg  Rd. Rome

* Cree-Wolfspeed Wolfspeed paid $3,129,136.07 to OCIDA under terms of a PILOT Increment Financing agreement. Under the terms of an allocation agreement entered into with all affected jurisdictions, PILOT payments were made to jurisdictions as reported, and Maynard Fire District was paid $17,244.68 and Dunham Library was paid $7,159.48.
*** Orgill, Inc. Orgill paid $384,404.59 to OCIDA under the terms of the executed PILOT Agreement.  Under the terms of a separate PILOT increment financing(PIF) allocation agreement entered into with all affected tax jurisdictions, a portion of the PILOT payment was paid by OCIDA to the county, town and school district as reported.
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